East Sussex
County Council

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment,
Councillor Claire Dowling

MONDAY, 15 JANUARY 2024 AT 10.00 AM

COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, LEWES

AGENDA
1. Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 11 December 2023 (Pages 3 - 6)
2. Disclosure of Interests

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under
the terms of the Code of Conduct.

3. Urgent items
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take
at the appropriate part of the agenda.

4. Petition to introduce traffic calming measures including a 20mph speed limit, relevant
mandatory signs and occasional radar checks to deliver safety in Southfields Road,
Eastbourne (Pages 7 - 18)

Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

5. Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) - Bus Priority Measures Consultation Outcome
(Pages 19 - 234)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

6. Hastings and Bexhill Movement and Access Package (Pages 235 - 240)
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

7. Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3

PHILIP BAKER

Assistant Chief Executive
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent
LEWES BN7 1UE 5 January 2024

Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Demaocracy Officer,
01273 337495
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.qgov.uk

eastsussex.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment, Councillor Claire
Dowling, on 11 December 2023 at Committee Room, County Hall, Lewes

Councillors Godfrey Daniel, Johnny Denis, Roy Galley, Wendy Maples, Pat Rodohan, Stephen
Shing and Georgia Taylor spoke on item 4 (see minute 48)

Councillors Wendy Maples, Paul Redstone, Stephen Shing and Georgia Taylor spoke on item 5
(see minute 49)

Councillor Wendy Maples spoke on item 6 (see minute 50)

Councillors Wendy Maples and Stephen Shing spoke on item 7 (see minute 51)

44. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 20 NOVEMBER 2023

44.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20
November 2023.

45. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

45.1 There were none.

46. URGENT ITEMS

46.1 There were none.

47. REPORTS

47.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book.

Page 3



48. ALTERNATIVE WEED MAINTENANCE TRIALS 2023

48.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport.

DECISIONS
48.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

(1) conclude the alternative weed maintenance trials, noting the feedback, outcomes and
challenges;

(2) agree to continue the use of Glyphosate as weed maintenance on the public highway until a
suitable alternative or additional funding becomes available; and

(3) agree to provide the option for residents to opt into a volunteer maintenance scheme or
District, Borough, Parish or Town Councils to take on weed maintenance through a local
agreement.

REASONS

48.3 The Council notes the concerns of Councillors and residents relating to the continued
use of Glyphosate and are committed to finding an alternative means of controlling weed
growth, however the Authority must also meet its statutory duty to maintain a safe and useable
highway network.

48.4 At the present time, there is no alternative solution that can be effectively used to treat
weeds over a highway network of over 1,900 miles of road channels and footways.

49. RURAL VERGES AS WILDLIFE CORRIDORS - TRIAL OF EARLY SEASON
REDUCTION IN RURAL GRASS CUTTING

49.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport.

DECISIONS

49.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

(1) Agree to offer a reduced number of cuts for grass verges in rural areas;

(2) Agree the proposed updates to the Highway Verges and Vegetation Policy; and

(3) Agree that single track lanes, with the exception of wildlife verges, will continue to be
excluded in any reduced rural grass cutting because of safety concerns along narrow roads.

Page 4



REASONS

49.3 Overall, the trial has been well received, with feedback each year being taken onboard,
and appropriate changes made, such as the exclusion of single-track lanes.

49.4 The trial has successfully included 618 miles (out of a total of 1,790 miles) of rural
verges managed for biodiversity reasons.

50. COMMUNITY MATCH SCHEMES FOR 2024/25

50.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport.

50.2 It was noted that the maximum contribution for the proposed schemes outlined in the
report is £50,000 per scheme since the applications were made before the Lead Member for
Transport and Environment resolved to increase the maximum contribution to £60,000 per
scheme on 18 September 2023.

DECISIONS
50.3 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

(1) Agree that £20,000 of match funding is allocated towards the Etchingham Community Match
speed reduction scheme for detailed design work and construction in 2024/25;

(2) Agree that £11,500 of match funding is allocated towards the Icklesham Parish Council
Community Match bus stop and accessibility improvement scheme for detailed design work and
construction in 2024/25;

(3) Agree that £1,930 of match funding is allocated towards Pett Parish Council for the
Community Match application for the installation of 13 bollards along a popular walking route:

(4) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to approve the
50% match funding contribution for the schemes in (1) and (2) above, up to a maximum
contribution of £50,000 per scheme once the design and construction costs are known; and

(5) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to agree the
terms and conditions of the grant funding agreement with Pett Parish Council for the £1,930
grant from the Community Match funding allocation towards the scheme as set out in (3) above.

REASONS

50.4 The Community Match programme continues to provide the opportunity for Town or
Parish councils, local resident groups and organisations to secure match funding to enable local
priority schemes to be delivered which otherwise would not come forward using County Council
funding alone through the capital programme of local transport improvements.

50.5 From the £250,000 allocation for 2024/25, there is sufficient funding available to provide
the community match funding required to deliver the schemes that have submitted applications.

Page 5



51. CHANGES TO THE CHARGEABLE WASTE SERVICE AT EAST SUSSEX COUNTY
COUNCIL HOUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLING SITES

51.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport.

DECISIONS
51.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

(1) Note the requirement to change the Chargeable Waste Scheme at Household Waste
Recycling Sites;

(2) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to amend the
current scheme, as outlined in paragraph 2.5 and Appendix 1 of the report, from 31 December
2023;

(3) Agree to the recommended price increase for paid for non-household waste (beyond the
expected free allowance) from 1 April 2024, as set out in paragraph 3.5 of the report; and

(4) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to make future
changes, as required, to the amended scheme and policy and charges.

REASONS

51.3 The scheme has delivered significant savings for East Sussex County Council since it's
commencement in 2018.

51.4 When Government’s revised regulations come into force on 31 December 2023, East

Sussex County Council’'s Chargeable Waste scheme will need to be amended for it to remain
legally compliant.

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 15 January 2024

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Title: Petition to introduce traffic calming measures including a 20mph

speed limit, relevant mandatory signs and occasional radar checks
to deliver safety in Southfields Road, Eastbourne

Purpose: To consider the need for the implementation of a 20mph speed limit
with traffic calming measures and relevant signing in Southfields
Road, Eastbourne.

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to advise petitioners that:

(1) A potential scheme to implement a 20mph speed limit, traffic calming and relevant
mandatory signs has been assessed through the approved High Level Sift process
and is not a priority for the County Council at the present time;

(2) Petitioners may wish to consider setting up a Community Speed Watch group for
the area to carry out occasional speed checks; and

(3) Petitioners may wish to consider taking a potential scheme forward through
Community Match. A Community Match Appraisal at a cost of £500 would be
required prior to a Community Match application.

1 Background Information

1.1 At the County Council meeting on 10 October 2023, a petition was presented to the
Chairman by Councillor Rodohan on behalf of a group of residents from the Southfields Road area
of Eastbourne. The petitioners request that the County Council implement a 20mph speed limit,
traffic calming measures, relevant mandatory signs and occasional radar checks to deliver safety
in Southfields Road. A copy of the petition is available in the Members’ Room.

1.2 Standing Orders provide that where the Chairman considers it appropriate, petitions are
considered by the relevant Committee or Lead Member and a spokesperson for the petitioners is
invited to address the Committee. The Chairman has referred this petition to the Lead Member for
Transport and Environment.

2 Supporting Information

2.1 Southfields Road is covered by a 30mph speed limit as indicated by the system of street
lighting. The road is a bus route with a number of bus stops present along the road. A location plan
can be found at Appendix 1.

2.2 The crash data supplied by Sussex Police for the three-year period up to 30 September
2023 shows that there have been two crashes resulting in personal injury within Southfields Road.
The crashes were not attributed to excessive or inappropriate speed. A crash data plan can be
found at Appendix 2.

2.3 A speed survey was undertaken in Southfields Road for the seven-day period from 21
November 2023. This indicated average vehicle speeds of 23mph for both northbound and
southbound traffic. The speed survey can be found at Appendix 3.

Page 7



2.4 The County Council has a limited amount of funding to develop local transport
improvements and needs to ensure that resources are allocated to those schemes which will be of
the greatest benefit to local communities. To help prioritise the number of requests received for
improvements, a High Level Sift process was developed to determine which schemes should be
funded through the Integrated Transport Programme.

2.5 The request for a 20mph speed limit, traffic calming measures and relevant mandatory signs
has been assessed through the approved High Level Sift process and did not meet the benchmark
score to be taken forward.

2.6 Although this request is not currently a priority for the County Council, petitioners may wish
to liaise with Eastbourne Borough Council to determine if they would be interested in supporting a
community funded scheme through the Community Match Initiative. The support from the Borough
Council does not need to be financial — any group interested in taking a scheme forward through
Community Match can provide the funding.

2.7 Petitioners are advised that a Community Speed Watch group could be formed which would
allow concerned residents to carry out speed checks, which can then be relayed to Sussex Police.

3 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 It is recommended that the petitioners are advised that a scheme to implement a 20mph
speed limit, traffic calming measures and relevant mandatory signs in Southfields Road has been
assessed through the approved High Level Sift process and did not meet the benchmark score to
be taken forward. However, appropriate improvements could be considered should an alternative
source of funding become available, or an application through Community Match was successful.

3.2 To determine what measures could be suitable in this area, prior to a Community Match
application, the petitioners would need to commission a Community Match Appraisal at a cost of
£500. This would help identify possible improvements for further discussions and provide the group
with an estimate of what they might cost to assist in their budget considerations.

3.3 Occasional radar checks could be carried out by concerned residents, should they wish to
form a Community Speed Watch group. Contact details for the District Speedwatch Administrator
can be provided to Councillor Rodohan and the Lead Petitioner upon request.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Victoria Bartholomew
Tel. No. 01424 724284
Email: Victoria.Bartholomew@eastsussex.qov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
Councillor Rodohan

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

Page 8


mailto:Victoria.Bartholomew@eastsussex.gov.uk

; ', Ilf‘-.. C\}_/,gi>\\l\:; -:.___,v?
4 A Y —
i : Xk
:E-"-h'i-"-“:h:i'—w. \-f-}‘---? T ,-..JI hl #ﬂjﬁb

Zi= g o

Fre. The Goffs, = ;

LV e T

oy X
. %

s o ."'lr f.l"h:" .l?b‘:‘?jf: P 4 "'frhh"-{?ﬁ:'x&\ ¥

© database right Landmark Information Group Ltd. All rights reserved 2023

z I
e . . ra i e 3 iom ; ‘ o J e B
Cities Revealed aerial photography © The Geolnformation Group 2012 # } i, ks SR £ : e d :
i i L ry . ~ o {5 e #
Aerial Photography © Getmapping.com 2023. © East Sussex County Council 2023. i A \S\é . e . A iir WG : it o i i
4 iy! 5 - 3y gt el 2 b 1 RaTh >
© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey 100019601. . 2 il Jr/ o) b ot B - | e e
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, "u\ ; 5 i« ol ey i L R e = al ,__-] g
the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, 5 Pas, o ﬂ /Q \\Y’f'? i ".—:I' ke =y gt e T L
. . . . R . . - e - = A - I AT i b S & VR A SR, o Vo e WD for e 20
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to thlrd paft,eg in any form. 7 ﬂ)\\l 1 X\V,/ o :_}%\\\ M@G@@C&p}/nght:ﬂl rlqhti;eserved. Ef.‘_,St._$USS.e IL\,LC_O_HﬂEy:TCrounc|I 100019601 2022_

Southfields Road, Eastbourne Appendix 1 Scale: 1:2,000 wE:::éE.?::cﬁ
Author: Date: 27/11/2023 WMM' A~




This page is intentionally left blank



Totaglasualties 3)

Extal (0)
erious (1)

ploht  (2)

LN

Upperton Road |»

The Goffs

Colour-coding by SEVERITY

Total Accidents (2)

A Fatal

4 Serious

3 Slight
£+ Damage Only

East Sussex
County Council

Southfields Road, Eastbourne - Appendix 2 SCALE 1:2000
Date range: 01/10/2020 DATE 27/11/2023
- 30/09/2023
DRAWING NO. 1
DRAWN BY
,Crown copyright. All rights reserved. veB
East Sussex County Council. ORIGINAL SIZE
Licence No. 100019601. 2023



victoriab
Text Box
Southfields Road


victoriab_1
Arrow

victoriab_2
Arrow

victoriab_3
Text Box
The Goffs


victoriab_4
Arrow

victoriab_5
Text Box
Upperton Road 


victoriab_6
Arrow


This page is intentionally left blank



eastsussex.gov.uk Appendix 3 East Sussex
County Council

Transport Monitoring
Team

Speed Survey for
Road Safety Team
Southfields Rd, Eastbourne
Nov 2023

For further information regarding the commissioning of all
types of transport surveys please contact:

Transport Monitoring Manager

Transport Monitoring Team,

East Sussex County Council,
Communities, Economy & Transport Department, County Hall,
St. Anne’s Crescent, Lewes, East Sussex, BN7 1UE

Email: transport.monitoring@eastsussex.gov.uk



Area Surveyed:
Our ref: A6224 — Southfields Road, Eastbourne, by No.19
Grid Ref: 50.770285, .2760744

Monitoring Period: 21 Nov to 30 Nov 2023

Methodology:

The survey was carried out using a Speed Detection Radar (SDR), attached to a
post at the location.

Results:
The volume and speed of traffic were recorded and the results are displayed as
summaries.

The average 85™ percentile speed over twenty four hours was recorded as:
A6224 Northbound 29 miles per hour
Southbound 29 miles per hour

The 85" percentile speed is the speed at, or below, which 85 percent of the traffic is travelling, or
viewed another way, the speed that only 15 percent of drivers exceed.

The average speed over twenty four hours was recorded as:

A6224 Northbound 23 miles per hour
Southbound 23 miles per hour

The average speed is the speed at, or below, which 50 percent of the traffic is travelling, or viewed
another way, the speed that only 50 percent of drivers exceed.

East Sussex County Council’s Transport Monitoring Team carries out a range of
transport surveys including:

e Classified Turning Counts e Automatic Volumetric Counts
e Journey Time Surveys ¢ Radar Speed Surveys

o Bus Time Surveys o Cycle Surveys

e Pedestrian Counts ¢ Video Surveys

e Passenger Counts
e Parking Surveys

Historical data is available from numerous sites across East Sussex.

Page 14




Site Number: 00006224
Southfields Road, Eastbourne, by No.19

Details Channels

Site Reference: 00006224 Channel 1:Northbound (North)
Latitude: 50.7702850470128 Channel 2: Southbound (South)
Longitude: 0.276074409484863

Site Configuration:

Interval: 60
Telemetry: No
Q o 5 - 1
) The Goffs o ° ME 5,
1 Y S
. E
g b
. Q Q
P Qua L =
£ a % 9 :
,..('ub % Q
i i
p o )
‘-mu,.;'?zr B . 9
o ¢
2 e

Location

AB224 NB.jpg AB224 SB.jpg

Page 15



£20Z JoquieoaQ .0 UO 61§l :1e psiuld
S|eqo|9 I 9pNjou| B PAPNoU| SIUBAT [B907]

0 0 0 0 0 I 9 6C rAS) 4 L € 0 9 9z 0 oLl

00:€Z  00:LL 00:€z  00:€Z  00:lZ  00:8L 00:G1 00:G1 00:91 00:91 0071 0019k  00:€Z  00:1Z 00:€2 00:€Z 00:G1 yead Wd

0 0 0 0 0 0 9 ve rAZ Ll 9 z 0 9 62 98

00:LL  00:LL 00:LL 00:LL 00:00 00:L0 00:80 00:80 00:80  00:LL 00:LL 00:LL  00:LL  00:L0 00:20 00:80 yead WY

0 0 0 0 Z 8 LL 8GE 8¥S 68l 9S ze 0 S €2 62 6scl (¥2-0HYe

0 0 0 0 4 L 89 G¥e 0rs L8} ag A4 0 S €T 8¢ Lzel (yZ-9)H8L

0 0 0 0 z 9 €9 Leg T4 €8l €5 4 0 g £z 8z G8LL (zz-9)H9L

0 0 0 0 I S 0s 682 (WA L9} 8¥ 8l 0 S €T 8¢ 0L (61-L)Hz1
[e0l

0 0 0 0 0 0 > 9 9 L 0 0 0 g oz 0 Ll 00:€2

0 0 0 0 0 0 z 8 oL € L L 0 9 ve 62 ve 00:22

0 0 0 0 0 I 4 kL Ll 4 ! L 0 9 T4 0 rA% 0012

0 0 0 0 0 0 € €l 9l g z ! 0 9 VT 62 Ly 00:02

0 0 0 0 0 0 4 9l 8l 9 z z 0 9 144 6C 8 00:61 Q

0 0 0 0 0 I € 0z € Ll v z 0 g £z 8z L 00:81 o

0 0 0 0 0 0 S Lz 6v 9l 14 I 0 S €T 8¢ A} 00:L} o

0 0 0 0 0 0 4 sz rAS) 4 g € 0 g e Lz oLl 00:91 %

0 0 0 0 0 0 9 62 IS Ll S 4 0 S €2 82 oLl 00:S1

0 0 0 0 0 0 9 8¢ o 9l L z 0 g €z 8z 0l 00:71

0 0 0 0 0 0 g 9z o ! v L 0 g €z 8z 06 00:€l

0 0 0 0 0 ! 4 8¢ 6¢ 14! 14 b 0 g € 8¢ 6 00:Ck

0 0 0 0 0 0 z 4 8¢ Ll 9 z 0 g e Lz 98 0011

0 0 0 0 0 0 € 4 9 9l S z 0 g e 8z z8 00:04

0 0 0 0 0 0 4 ze Le Ll € L 0 g €T 8z L 00:60

0 0 0 0 0 0 9 vz rAZ Ll z L 0 g vz 8z 98 00:80

0 0 0 0 0 0 € Sl 14! 14 b b 0 g 4 62 8¢ 00:20

0 0 0 0 0 0 z 9 6 L L 0 0 g 14 6C 0z 00:90

0 0 0 0 0 0 I z z 0 0 0 0 S 92 S 00:50

0 0 0 0 0 0 I L ! ! 0 0 0 g 144 4 00:%0

0 0 0 0 0 0 ! z b 0 0 0 0 4 8¢ 14 00:€0

0 0 0 0 0 0 z z 0 0 0 0 0 g 6¢C 14 00:20

0 0 0 0 0 0 z z L 0 0 0 0 9 9z 9 00:10

0 0 0 0 0 0 z 4 z 0 0 0 0 9 6C 6 00:00

09<=  09>-6§ GS>-0S 09>-Gy Gb>0F Ov>SE G€>0¢ 0€>-GZ G¢>-0C 02>GL SI>0FL O0l>S Uudng> uopeimaq obesoAy  susdidd  SwNjoA
gLug ziwg LLug  oLug  eug guig Lug qug gug yuig gug zug Lug  piepuels uespy uigs [eloL
pUNOqyLIoON panddy siayi4 oN uoday (sAeq |Iv) Arewwng paadg
2290000 -92udlidjoy 9IS €20¢/cL/L0 0L €20¢/LL/Lg wold ¥¢290000 -1equnN aus

610N Aq ‘suinogise3 ‘peoy sp|ayyinog



£20Z JoquieoaQ .0 UO 61§l :1e psiuld
S|eqo|9 I 9pNjou| B PAPNoU| SIUBAT [B907]

0 0 0 0 0 r4 oL 8L orl 6¥ Ll z 0 9 Lz €e 62

00:€Z  00:€Z  00:Zc  00'€Z  00:0z  00:kz  00:Gt 00:G1 00:G1 00:91 00:91 001Gl  00:€Z  00:€Z 00:€2 00:€Z 00:G1 yead Wd

0 0 0 0 0 z Gl S0l Lyl 0s vl v 0 8 0 ve LLe

00:LL  00:LL 00:LL 00:€0  00:£0 000 0080  00:80 0080  00:LL 00:LL 00:LL  00:LL  00:€0 00:€0 00:00 00:80 yead WY

0 0 0 L 14 (4 LLL 0€6 L9€L SLY €01 1574 0 S €2 62 660€ (¥2-0HYe

0 0 0 b € (114 951 16 9G€1L €Ly z01 e 0 g € 8¢ 910 (v2-9)H8IL

0 0 0 L € 8l g} 688 6EEL 69% zoL 4 0 g £z 8z G862 (zz-9)H9L

0 0 0 0 z €l L1} 06L orzl 344 96 8l 0 g €T 8¢ 0zLe (61-L)Hz1
[e0l

0 0 0 0 0 I 9 8 L L 0 0 0 9 Lz e ve 00:€2

0 0 0 0 0 z 9 9l oL € 0 0 0 g oz ze L€ 00:22

0 0 0 0 0 r4 9 ze 0z L ! L 0 9 T4 0 6S 0012

0 0 0 0 0 ! 8 14 9z 8 z 0 0 g 14 0¢ oL 00:02

0 0 0 0 0 I 8 (A7 ey 8 z 0 0 4 T4 6C €01 00:61 ~

0 0 0 0 0 r4 oL LS L9 0z v 0 0 g ve 62 vSlL 00:81 —

0 0 0 0 0 I (1] 9 901 6¢ L I 0 g €T 8¢ 8¢z 00:L} L

0 0 0 0 0 I 8 LS 9Ll 6¥ kL L 0 g €T Lz e 00:91 @

0 0 0 0 0 I oL 8L orl Ly oL z 0 4 €z 8z 62 00:G1 o

0 0 0 0 0 r4 8 €9 S6 L€ 6 L 0 g €z 8z 1T 00:¥1

0 0 0 0 0 0 6 19 zolL 6¢ 9 L 0 g €z 8z 0zz 00:€l

0 0 0 0 0 ! 6 L9 €0t e 6 z 0 g € 8¢ T4 00:Ck

0 0 0 0 0 I L qg S0l 0S 4! 4 0 g e Lz L€2 0011

0 0 0 0 0 I L 6S 0l Ly oL z 0 g €T 8z 0€2 00:04

0 0 0 0 0 I Ll 08 901 e 6 z 0 g 144 8z 4% 00:60

0 0 0 0 0 r4 Gl S0l Lyl 9 9 L 0 4 vz 62 LLe 00:80

0 0 0 0 0 r4 €l 0S rAZ oL z b 0 g T4 0¢ 4! 00:20

0 0 0 0 0 I 4 Ll oL 4 z z 0 L 144 0 €€ 00:90

0 0 0 0 0 0 I S € ! 0 0 0 9 T4 6C L 00:50

0 0 0 0 0 0 z z ! 0 0 0 0 g 6C g 00:%0

0 0 0 0 0 ! z b b 0 0 0 0 8 0¢ 9 00:€0

0 0 0 0 0 0 z z b 0 0 0 0 L 8¢ 9 00:20

0 0 0 0 0 0 € € € 0 0 0 0 g 8z oL 00:10

0 0 0 0 0 I g S € 0 0 0 0 9 6C ve Sl 00:00

09<=  09>-6§ GS>-0S 09>-Gy Gb>0F Ov>SE G€>0¢ 0€>-GZ G¢>-0C 02>GL SI>0FL O0l>S Uudng> uopeimaq obesoAy  susdidd  SwNjoA
gLug ziwg LLug  oLug  eug guig Lug qug gug yuig gug zug Lug  piepuels uespy uigs [eloL
punoqyinos panddy siayi4 oN uoday (sAeq |Iv) Arewwng paadg
2290000 -92udlidjoy 9IS €20¢/cL/L0 0L €20¢/LL/Lg wold ¥¢290000 -1equnN aus

610N Aq ‘suinogise3 ‘peoy sp|ayyinog



£20Z JoquieoaQ .0 UO 61§l :1e psiuld
S|eqo|9 I 9pNjou| B PAPNoU| SIUBAT [B907]

0 0 0 0 I € oL 801 L6l oL 9l 4 0 9 9z ze vOv

00:€Z  00:LL 00:ZZ  00:€Z  00:lZ  00:kZ 0Ol 00:G1 00:G1 00:91 00:91 0019k  00:€Z  00:1Z 00:€2 00:€Z 00:G1 yead Wd

0 0 0 0 I > 0z x4} 681 89 0z 9 0 L 62 ve L6€

00:LL  00:LL 00:LL 00:00  00:00 000 0080  00:80 0080  00:LL 00:LL 00:LL  00:LL  00:€0 00:€0 00:€0 00:80 yead WY

0 0 0 L 9 ze 174 88zl GL6l 799 8G1 SP 0 S €2 62 8GEY (¥2-0HYe

0 0 0 ! S Lz 44 LSTL 9681 099 LS1 44 0 S €T 8¢ eLTy (v2-9)H8IL

0 0 0 L g ve L0Z ozzL 981 289 oS5l rAZ 0 g £z 8z 0LLY (zz-9)H9L

0 0 0 0 € 8l L9 SL0L OLLL 609 124! 9€ 0 S €T 8¢ Y9LE (61-L)Hz1
[e0l

0 0 0 0 0 I 6 vl €l z 0 0 0 9 oz ze (7 00:€2

0 0 0 0 0 z 6 €z 0z 9 z L 0 9 14 Le 29 00:22

0 0 0 0 I € oL rA% Le Ll z L 0 9 T4 0 16 0012

0 0 0 0 I I 4! 8¢ A 4! 4 z 0 9 e 0¢ Ll 00:02

0 0 0 0 0 I zL 85 19 14! € z 0 g 144 6C LSL 00:61 Q

0 0 0 0 0 € €l L 66 Le L z 0 g ve 62 9z 00:81 o

0 0 0 0 0 I Gl 16 1e] S ol 4 0 S € 8¢ oge 00:L} o

0 0 0 0 0 I zL z8 891 oL 9l 4 0 g e 8z zse 00:91 %

0 0 0 0 0 I L 801 L6l 9 14! € 0 g €z 8z 04 00:G1

0 0 0 0 0 r4 14! 16 7l €5 Gl € 0 g €z 8z 8L 00:71

0 0 0 0 0 L vl L8 rAZ} €5 Ll z 0 g €z 8z oLg 00:€l

0 0 0 0 0 ! €l 6 evl 8¥ 14! € 0 g € 8¢ 9Le 00:Ck

0 0 0 0 0 I oL 9L evl 89 0z 9 0 g e 8z €ze 0011

0 0 0 0 0 I oL 08 orl €9 14! 4 0 g €T 8z AR 00:04

0 0 0 0 0 I S1 zoL LEL Sy Al z 0 g €T 8z SLE 00:60

0 0 0 0 0 r4 0z x4} 681 o 8 z 0 4 vz 62 L6€ 00:80

0 0 0 0 0 € 9l S9 9g Sl € 4 0 S T4 0¢ 091 00:20

0 0 0 0 0 I 9 Ll 61 S z z 0 9 144 0 €5 00:90

0 0 0 0 0 I z 9 S z 0 0 0 9 9z 6C 9l 00:50

0 0 0 0 0 0 z € z ! 0 0 0 g Lz 6 00:%0

0 0 0 0 0 ! 4 € z 0 0 0 0 L 62 ve oL 00:€0

0 0 0 0 0 ! € 14 b 0 0 0 0 9 8¢ € oL 00:20

0 0 0 0 0 0 g 9 14 0 L 0 0 9 Lz €e 9l 00:10

0 0 0 0 I r4 L 6 14 ! 0 0 0 9 6C ve 144 00:00

09<=  09>-6§ GS>-0S 09>-Gy Gb>0F Ov>SE G€>0¢ 0€>-GZ G¢>-0C 02>GL SI>0FL O0l>S Uudng> uopeimaq obesoAy  susdidd  SwNjoA
gLug ziwg LLug  oLug  eug guig Lug qug gug yuig gug zug Lug  piepuels uespy uigs [eloL
s|auueyd ||Iv panddy siayi4 oN uoday (sAeq |Iv) Arewwng paadg
2290000 -92udlidjoy 9IS €20¢/cL/L0 0L €20¢/LL/Lg wold ¥¢290000 -1equnN aus

610N Aq ‘suinogise3 ‘peoy sp|ayyinog



Agenda Iltem 5

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 15 January 2024

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Title: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) - Bus Priority Measures

Consultation Outcome

Purpose: To note the outcome of the bus priority public consultation and
approve the final recommended package of bus priority scheme
proposals to be taken forward to the next design stages and
construction, subject to Department for Transport approval.

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to:

(1) Note the outcomes of the stakeholder and public consultation on the Bus Service
Improvement Plan bus priority measures.

(2) Approve the recommended next steps for each proposed scheme within the Bus Service
Improvement Plan bus priority programme as set out in Appendix 4.

(3) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to approve, in
consultation with the Lead Member for Transport and Environment the final content of the
bus priority package included in the Project Adjustment Request submitted to the
Department for Transport and to take any actions necessary to give effect to
recommendation 2.

1. Background Information

1.1 Following the publication of the Government’s Bus Back Better Strategy in March 2021, East
Sussex County Council submitted its Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) to the Department for
Transport (DfT) in October 2021. The East Sussex BSIP sets out ambitious and structured plans and
supporting policies to improve and increase the use of bus services and bus related infrastructure in
the county, working in close co-operation with neighbouring Local Transport Authorities and with
stakeholders representing local bus operators, statutory consultees, community and business voices,
bus passengers, and the voluntary and health transport sectors.

1.2 In July 2022, the County Council were notified that East Sussex had been indicatively allocated
£41.4m towards the delivery of capital (£22.1m) and revenue (£19.3m) elements of its BSIP. Of the
£22.1m capital, £18.5m was indicatively allocated towards the delivery of bus priority measures in the
county. In September 2022, the DfT confirmed the County Council’s BSIP funding with a spend and
delivery deadline of 31 March 2025.

1.3 The introduction of bus priority measures (e.g. bus lanes, bus gates) is identified under the
‘Integrated and accessible transport for all' Local Transport Plan (LTP4) theme as a key tool to
delivering objectives by supporting bus operators to ensure their buses are punctual and that their
customers are receiving a reliable service. This will contribute towards the delivery of the ‘Deliver safer
and accessible journeys’ LTP4 objective by improving accessibility to services as well as making a
significant positive contribution to better air quality, decarbonisation and the local economy.

2. Supporting Information

Identification of potential bus priority measures

2.1 In developing the BSIP, the County Council carried out a survey in summer 2021 to
understand what improvements bus users would want to see introduced on the bus network. One of
the highest priorities identified was improving the punctuality and reliability of bus services across the
county.

2.2 An initial package of capital funded bus priority measures was identified and included in the East
Sussex BSIP submitted to Government in October 2021. This package was subsequently reviewed and

Page 19



refined following feedback from Government officials in spring 2022. The potential bus priority measures
were identified from an assessment of bus service data provided by the bus operators to determine
where the key punctuality and reliability hotspots were on the network, as well as a review of previous
and current multi-modal corridor studies which had considered bus priority schemes within them. A
subsequent high level desktop assessment of these potential locations was then undertaken to
determine whether bus priority measures could reasonably and physically be introduced.

2.3 A feasibility study was commissioned in October 2022 to develop potential bus priority scheme
options at 12 locations focussed on two broad areas — Eastbourne and Newhaven/Peacehaven. The
objectives of the proposed bus priority measures were to:
e Improve bus reliability through the introduction of bus priority measures and signals to reduce
delays, speed up journey times and improve reliability;
¢ Reduce congestion and improve traffic flow which in turn will support the county’s ambitious
carbon reduction targets by reducing vehicle emissions;
e Encourage greater bus use; and
e Complement wider transport initiatives so collectively East Sussex County Council can
transform the existing transport system to provide a safe, reliable, and accessible network for
all users.

Feasibility study outcomes

2.4 Seven schemes from the feasibility study, spread across Eastbourne and
Newhaven/Peacehaven, were prioritised for public and stakeholder consultation following engagement
with the bus operators.

Package 1: Eastbourne Package 2: Newhaven and Peacehaven
¢ King’s Drive ¢ Newhaven Town Inner Ring Road:
e Seaside Corridor and Seaside Virtual Bus Priority
Roundabout ¢ Newhaven Drove Road and Denton
e Eastbourne Station Area Roundabout
e Sovereign Harbour e A259 Peacehaven

2.5 These schemes were prioritised on the basis they generated the highest benefits in terms of
journey time savings for bus users and generating additional bus passengers, alongside their
contribution towards the BSIP’s aims, the strategic needs and priorities of key stakeholders and
deliverability within the March 2025 funding time limits. Further details of the scheme proposals can be
found in the consultation brochure at Appendix 1. The feasibility study initial costing exercise highlighted
that the cumulative value of the seven schemes put forward for consultation exceeded the £18.5m BSIP
capital allocation available.

Consultation approach

2.6 The BSIP bus priority public consultation period ran for 8 weeks between 31 July and 25
September 2023. The consultation approach is outlined in detail in section 2 of the consultation report
at Appendix 2. In summary this included:

¢ A consultation brochure available on the County Council’s consultation webpage — (East Sussex
BSIP Bus Priority Measures — East Sussex — Citizen Space) — in both standard and easy-read
formats with hard copies available at the public drop-in events, and across various venues;
Online webinar available on the consultation webpage;

e Six in-person drop-in consultation events across Eastbourne, Newhaven, Peacehaven and
Telscombe with exhibition boards showing the proposals with members of the project team
available to answer questions. The events were well attended by residents, interest groups, bus
operator staff, locally elected councillors and MPs;

o Distribution of 472 information postcards about the consultation to properties in the direct vicinity
of the proposed schemes. Postcards were also delivered to local bus operators who distributed
them to bus passengers;

e Social media coverage and press release.

2.7 Stakeholders were identified through a comprehensive mapping exercise to determine those
who may have an interest or could be affected by the proposed schemes and emailed about the
consultation. This included County, District, Borough and Town Councillors, local MPs, local bus

Page 20


https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/busprioritymeasures/
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/busprioritymeasures/

operators, local businesses and organisations representing the business community, active travel
groups, accessibility action groups, transport users, education providers, emergency services, resident
associations, as well as voluntary and community sector organisations.

2.8 Prior to the consultation, briefings were also held with elected Members from East Sussex
County Council, Lewes District Council, Eastbourne Borough Council, Peacehaven Town Council and
Newhaven Town Council. A focussed engagement was undertaken with active travel groups and the
proposals were presented to the County Council’s Disability Reference Group and East Sussex Seniors
Association.

2.9 An Equality Impact Assessment was produced prior to the public consultation (see Appendix 3)
and will be updated to reflect the outcome of the public consultation and subsequent stages of design
and delivery.

Consultation Outcomes and Analysis

2.10 A total of 1,854 consultation responses were received. This comprised 1,819 online survey
responses and 35 returned paper copies. 1,152 free text survey responses were analysed. Additional
documents were also submitted during the consultation period in various formats, including technical
reports, photographs, drawings and sketches. A total of 1,113 respondents said that they use the bus
with 565 (49.8%) of those respondents stating that they use the bus at least once a week. 163 (14.6%)
respondents who used the bus reported that they did so five or more times a week. Any further enquiries
received post-consultation have also been responded to.

2.11 Inresponse to the closed survey questions, respondents responded as follows:

Scheme Strongly | Support | Neither Oppose | Strongly | Don’t
support support / oppose | know

oppose
King's Drive (n=1179) 13.9% 8.3% 8.7% 10.7% 52.5% 5.9%
Seaside Roundabout and 11.2% 6.3% 2.9% 7.6% 70.2% 1.7%

Seaside Corridor (n=1505)
Eastbourne Station (n=1047) | 18.7% 13.8% 10.8% 9.7% 43.5% 3.4%
Sovereign Harbour (n=949) 19.8% 14.0% 10.6% 8.6% 43.4% 3.5%
Newhaven Town Ring Road: 21.6% 15.4% 12.0% 8.9% 32.8% 9.3%
Virtual Bus Priority (n=527)

Newhaven Drove Road and 20.7% 14.1% 9.8% 7.8% 39.0% 8.6%
Denton Roundabout (n=502)
A259 Peacehaven (n=573) 23.2% 14.7% 9.9% 6.5% 40.5% 5.2%

2.12 Analysis of the quantitative responses received during the consultation shows that all the
schemes received more opposition than support. The Seaside Roundabout and Seaside Corridor
scheme specifically, had the largest proportion of opposing responses, with 70% strongly opposing this
scheme. Meanwhile, the Newhaven Town Centre scheme focussing on the Ring Road had the largest
proportion of supportive respondents (37% support overall), alongside the extension of the bus lanes
on the A259 Corridor in Peacehaven and Telscombe Cliffs (38% support overall).

2.13 A summary of scheme specific responses and consultation feedback is set out in section 1 and
sections 4-8 of the consultation report at Appendix 2. The free text responses highlighted concerns
about the loss of or changes to on-street parking provision especially as part of the Seaside Corridor
proposals, perceived negative impact on general traffic flow as a result of redesigning road space to
introduce bus lanes, as well as the introduction and use of shared footway/cycleways. Proposals which
looked to improve crossings for pedestrians often had more supportive reactions from respondents.

Next steps
2.14 The County Council has received significant capital funding to deliver bus priority measures

which support the East Sussex BSIP objectives and is identified as a key tool to delivering safer and
accessible journeys objective in the draft LTP4.

Page 21



2.15 Taking into consideration the outcomes of the public consultation, and feedback, indicative
costs, indicative delivery timescales and the expected benefits for bus users, Appendix 4 sets out the
recommendations for each scheme and whether they should proceed, not proceed or be subject to
further review pending discussion and approval from the DfT.

Project Adjustment Request

2.16 The DfT has a spend and delivery deadline of March 2025 for all capital funded bus priority
measures. Any changes to the bus priority proposals being delivered are subject to the Department’s
approval, via the submission of a formal Project Adjustment Request (PAR). The PAR must outline the
final schemes chosen to progress to detailed design and construction, any changes to scope, updated
costs, budget transfers from schemes not being progressed, and evidence of benefits to bus
passengers (i.e. journey saving time). The submitted PAR will be considered via DfT’s panel process,
and the County Council will be notified if the recommended schemes can progress through to
construction.

3. Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 Following receipt of Government funding to deliver the County Council's Bus Service
Improvement Plan, the initial package of bus priority measures was identified and developed focussed
on two areas — Eastbourne and Newhaven/Peacehaven. A final package of seven bus priority schemes
across these two areas were prioritised and put forward for public consultation between July and
September 2023 on the basis that they generated the highest benefits for bus users and could generate
additional bus passengers and meet the DfT’s delivery timescales. An initial costing exercise highlighted
that the cumulative value of the schemes put forward for consultation exceeded the £18.5m BSIP capital
allocation available.

3.2 The delivery of the bus priority measures (bus lanes, bus gates) will contribute towards achieving
the objectives of East Sussex’s draft LTP4 and BSIP. Various factors have been considered in
determining which schemes should proceed to the next design stages and construction, including the
consultation feedback, bus user benefits, the delivery timescale of 31 March 2025 and costs of each
scheme, and that not all schemes can be afforded within the funding envelope.

3.3 The Lead Member for Transport and Environment is therefore recommended to note the BSIP
bus priority consultation outcomes and approve the recommended next steps for each scheme as set
out in Appendix 4. The final recommendation is to delegate authority to the Director of Communities,
Economy and Transport in consultation with the Lead Member for Transport and Environment to
approve the final content of the BSIP bus priority package included in the Project Adjustment Request
(PAR) submitted to DfT, and to take any actions necessary to progress those schemes recommended
to proceed to the next design stages and construction.

RUPERT CLUBB

Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Indi Hicks
Tel. No: 07514721385
Email: indi.hicks@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
Councillors Belsey, Collier, di Cara, Holt, MacCleary, Osborne, Rodohan, Tutt

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Bus Service Improvement Plan 2021 - eastsussex.gov.uk/media/znybvybw/east-sussex-county-
council-bus-service-improvement-plan-2021.pdf

Page 22


https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/media/znybvybw/east-sussex-county-council-bus-service-improvement-plan-2021.pdf
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/media/znybvybw/east-sussex-county-council-bus-service-improvement-plan-2021.pdf

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE
IMPROVEMENT
PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY
MEASURES

Public Consultation Brochure
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

T Xipuaddy

East Sussex
County Council

22 Funded by
=0 UK Government

U
S




Page 24



Contents

What is the Bus Service Improvement Plan?
Objectives of the Proposed Bus Priority Measures
The Proposed Scheme Locations

The Proposed Schemes: Package One

The Proposed Schemes: Package Two

Next Steps

I-gve Your Say

S%ay Informed

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

N o~ W

19
27
28

30

East Sussex
County Council

55

g2 Funded by -“n ~
27 UK Government ng

This brochure outlines what we are
proposing as part of the BSIP Bus
Priority Measures in the county in more
detail as well as outlining the benefits
and impacts of the proposed schemes
and how you can have your say.

We are asking for your input so that we
can be sure of taking all opinions,
comments and opportunities into
account.

You can find more information about
the proposals and complete the
feedback survey by scanning the QR
code or visiting
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.
uk/economy-transport-environment/
busprioritymeasures or in the Have
Your Say section of this brochure.

Page 2



East Sussex
County Council

What is the Bus Service Improvement Plan? &3 [ rahment SUesy

The East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) actively addresses the National Bus Strategy and sets out
our plans to improve bus services, working in close cooperation with neighbouring Local Transport Authorities,
bus operators, community and business voices, bus passengers, and the voluntary and health transport sector.
Through the BSIP we will deliver bus service improvements, bus stop improvements and bus priority measures.

We want your views on the proposed schemes in this brochure as part of the BSIP bus priority measures. Your
views are important to us, and this public consultation is an opportunity to provide feedback and comments on
the latest plans to help shape the detailed design stage.

Our BSIP aims are to:

-

« Improve the reliability and punctuality of bus services The East Sussex Bus Service

e

&
% and explore methods to make bus services more Improvement Plan will..
accessible. ... ensure that residents and visitors enjoy
« Encourages an increase in the proportion of people the highest possible quality bus services
travelling by bus. that provide a frequent and comprehensive
« Enhance the bus network, reducing journey times and choice, reduce congestion and make a
improving reliability and punctuality of bus services. positive contribution to the community,
« Increase bus usage across the county by building a bus better air quality and decarbonisation.

network that meets everyone's needs.
« Complement and support wider transport investment
across the country.

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 3



Objectives of the
Proposed Bus Priority Measures

Improved Bus
Reliability

abed

N

The introduction of bus
priority measures and
signals to reduce delays,
speed up journey times
and ensure buses arrive on
time.

Reduce Congestion
and Improve Traffic
Flow

2

This means you will spend
less time stuck in traffic
and more time where you
need to be! Not only will
this make journeys quicker
and more reliable, it will
reduce vehicle emissions
and improve local air
quality.

Encourage
Greater Bus Use

This will help reduce
congestion on the county’s
busy road network. This
will in turn improve air
quality and create safer,
more pleasant places in
which to live, work and do
business.

[Feudris East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Complement Wider
Initiatives

C—-

Collectively, the measures
will transform the existing
transport system to
provide a safe, reliable and
accessible network for all
users. The improvements
will provide a realistic and
reliable alternative to the
car and support the county
focus of achieving net zero
emissions by 2050 at the
latest.

—=
=

East Sussex
County Council

a4» Funded by M
=7 UK Government QMWV

Create Safer
Options

A number of proposed
dedicated spaces for active

travel will help reduce
conflict between the
different  road users,
supporting safer, more

attractive journeys. In turn
encouraging more people

to walk and cycle,
therefore fostering
happier, healthier and

more active communities.

Page 4



East Sussex
County Council

The Proposed Scheme Locations AR Dk Gevorment Sy

The proposed packages of schemes are in Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven.
Package one covers Eastbourne and the schemes are shown below.

Map 1: Map showing overview locations of the proposed schemes in Package One.

N
@) Tenpin HAMPDEN PARK
Eastbourne
Q Sainsbury’s /
Lottbridge
Golf Club N
Q Sovereign
Harbour
East Sussex College
Eastbourne
ST. ANTHONY'S
Q HILL
King’s Drive, Seaside Corridor
;)U Upperton and Roundabout
«Q
D
N
(00]
ROSELANDS
Eastbouprie
Beatch
Eastbourne
Station Area
Gildredge
Park

The Royal

Eastbourne

Golf chb EASTBOURNE

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 5



East Sussex
County Council

g=a Funded by
=573 UK Government WAy

i

The Proposed Scheme Locations

Package two spans across Newhaven and Peacehaven, the schemes are shown below.

Map 2: Map showing overview locations of the proposed schemes in Package Two.

4 ZND
TELSCOMBE
PIDDINGHOE SOUTH
HEIGHTON
Tesco
Express

Q Newhaven Town
o Centre Ring Road
Q Télscombe Virtual Bus Priority
% Tye v MOUNT.

Q S PLEASANT
N
© ¢
TELSCOMBE
CLIFFS
Peacehaven 4 .
use
PEACEHAVEN Golf Cougse Nelwhgver, Valley
Q Town'Train
Station Q
Sezct I\!e.wh.aven
Conveniernce Rehatilitation Gentye Drove Road, Newhaven
Peaceha\.:en NEWHAYEN | Town Area and Denton
A259 Corridor Peacehaven Roundabout
Cliffs
Q Newhaven

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

'O

= East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Fort

v

Page 6



East Sussex
County Council

Funded by M
~ UK Government QM

Sy

The Proposed Schemes: Package One
Package one is located in Eastbourne and comprises of four schemes:
« King's Drive, Upperton
« Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout
« Eastbourne Station Area

« Sovereign Harbour

Package Benefits
T?e expected benefits of the proposed schemes in package one include:

S
8 Improved journey times and reduced o .. .
Improved provision for cyclists
delay for buses )
'
P Encourages an increase in the . ¢ Improved visibility and safety for all
d proportion of people travelling by bus ,©\ users

. Reaching the train station becomes
Increased safety for pedestrians . .
easier for pedestrians

FOAWN

[m East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 7



East Sussex
County Council

g2 Funded by \MM
s UK Government gM

King's Drive, Upperton

« Implementation of bus priority measures to enhance the reliability and
speed of bus services, through the introduction of a dedicated bus lane,

serving Eastbourne District General Hospital and East Sussex College
Eastbourne campus.

« A southbound bus lane is proposed between Decoy Drive and Rodmill
roundabout.

Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

I¢ eﬁeq

See Map 3

Hospital Road

Easthourne District

See Map 4

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 8



Map 3: Package one proposed scheme King's Drive, Upperton Section 1 of 2

Key:
B Carriageway

I Proposed bus lane
Footpath
[0 Grass verge
@ Existing bus stop location
@ Proposed bus stop location

PFoposed new southbound bus

izne on Kings Drive between
Decoy Drive and Rodmill
Roundabout

East Sussex

Proposals continue south rd College
towards Rodmill Selmeston Y
Roundabout. Please refer to |
Map 4 for details [
ol

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

s East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

East Sussex
County Council

. Funded by
¥ UK Government ¥aY

&

Map 4: Package one proposed scheme King's Drive, Upperton Section 2 of 2

East Sussex
College

¢

Proposals continue north all
along Kings Drive. Please Selmeston "c_g
refer to Map 3 for details )

Existing pedestrian

crossing outside

East Sussex College Eact Sussex
would be retained ‘ College

Proposed new southbound
bus lane on Kings Drive
between Decoy Drive and
Rodmill Roundabout

Proposed upgrades to the
Hospital Road junction to
provide bus priority. The
existing pedestrian crossing
north of the junction would

be retained Proposed new

location of bus
IESRYSINN stop and shelter

Eastbourne District
General Hospital

Existing pedestrian
crossing would be 1
retained Proposed new
= pedestrian route

AN
<y,

Key:
Il Carriageway

I Proposed bus lane
Footpath
[0 Grass verge
@ Existing bus stop location
@ Proposed bus stop location

Existing bus stop and shelter
opposite The Rodmill would be
relocated further north to
improve accessibility

Rodmill

Esso
petrol station

Proposals continue
south towards
Rodmill Roundabout

Page g



East Sussex
County Council

g2 Funded by \MM
s UK Government gM

Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout

« Provision of dedicated bus lanes from east of Gilbert Road to Langney Rise roundabout in both directions on
Seaside Road and St Anthony's Avenue to improve bus journey times.

« Shared use cycle path and cycle improvements along Seaside Road and St Anthony's Avenue to connect with
existing cycle routes.

« New and upgraded pedestrian crossings including a toucan crossing at the Seaside Roundabout linking the
two existing sections of shared footway/cycle-way along Lottbridge Drove.

d

« Traffic signal upgrades to at several junctions along A259 Seaside Road to provide bus priority.

pe

ge o

Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

See Map 5 See Map 6 See Map 7 f See Map 8

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 10



Map 5: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 1 of 4

Key:
I Carriageway

( 2z B Shared-use path
7 [ Proposed bus lane
\_’ ) Footpath

[0 Grass verge

@ Existing bus stop location

@ Proposed bus stop location

Proposed new zebra

crossing between Leslie
Steet and Hanover Road
with central island. This

would replace the existing
uncontrolled crossing
opposite Leslie Street

Y
QD
«Q
D
N
=
© S
=] = [=]
o X o
= T
@ The Kings @
‘gj Arms g
5  m
]
3 |
LA

—»

Redoubt Road

Hanover Road

Addingham Road [ERR

Proposed new
northbound bus

lane between Leslie
Street and Whitley
Road

Proposed junction

priority signals.

Seaside Road

Seaside Rec
& Playground

Barden Road [§ "-‘;

upgrade to provide bus

Proposed removal of the
left-turn movement into
Beamsley Road from

Proposed upgrade to the existing
crossing facility on the southbound
approach to the junction, to provide
a toucan crossing. The existing
crossings on the remaining arms
would be retained

The existing bus stop at
Carlton Road would be

relocated to opposite
the Recreation Ground

g

o
& 3
au; o
= B
T )
= s
: =
=

[

Carlton Road

o
o
=]

=

c
=]

=

=

w

L

Beamsley Road

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by
UK Government ¥a¥

&

Proposals continue north
along A259 Seaside. Please
refer to Map 6 for details

—

Proposed upgrade to the
existing pedestrian

crossing between Eshton
Road and Beach Road

:
-
i g
S Y
g =
w
= 2

Existing on-street parking would be retained. However the new crossing

may require a slight reduction in the number of parking spaces

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

= East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

,'|
| N |
o I
1 I
& o
E &
@ 2
=
=
The existing bus stop at Beach I
Road would be relocated further
north, opposite Woodgate Road
Page 11



Map 6: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 2 of 4

Key:
Il Carriageway
I Shared-use path

&

7} B Proposed bus lane
\_‘ Footpath

[ Grass verge

@ Existing bus stop location
@ Proposed bus stop location

Please refer to Map
5 for continuation
of proposals

“—

Gg abed

g
4
T
T
=
g
o
o

E
&
w
=
=
2
&

o
4]
&
©
T
£
]
w
uw

Hydney Street [EE

Proposed upgrade to the
existing pedestrian crossing

between Romney Street and
Channel View Road

—

=

@

A

z

()

d

@

E

@

-

Tesco = Ca-0
Express 3 -
R el g
'K |

T e
g 3
= [+'=
3 :
c =
£ T
2] c
o« c
I
L
J

Proposed removal of the
existing right turn lane at the
Churchdale Road junction to
allow for the new bus lane

Proposed new pedestrian
crossing to improve access
to the bus stop. This would
replace the existing zebra
crossing outside St Andrew's

Church

Proposed new
northbound bus lane
between Windermere
Crescent and Fort Road

Archery
Playground

Funded by
> UK Government ¥aY¥

East Sussex
County Council

&

Proposals continue north
along A259 Seaside. Please
refer to Map 7 for details

—

The existing bus
stop near
Winchelsea Road
would be
removed and
relocated to allow
for the new
pedestrian
crossing

QSt Andrew’s
Church

Proposed new
bus stop location

Proposed new southbound bus lane
between Seaford Road and Beamsley Road

s East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Page 12



Map 7: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 3 of 4

Potential for greenery
and landscaping
around the roundabout

Cyclists would be able
to travelin the bus lane

between Finmere Road
and Queens Crescent

The existing crossing

on the western arm of

the roundabout would

be upgraded to toucan

crossing | Proposed new

| pedestrian and cycle
crossings on 3 arms of
the roundabout

Wren
Kitchens

%

o
m
Q
oo Oak
P
8

Furnitureland
Proposed new shared-

. use pedestrian and
Carpetright |
Proposed removal of ) cycle path on all
the existing right turn | | approaches to the
pocket at the junction roundabout

Myrtle Road e

The Range

2. Funded by

Key:

Proposed junction upgrade at 0N - e U =,
i [ ( 1

Pée"se refer to Map the entrance to the retail park
for continuation . o T .

of proposals with traffic lights. This would

4 help reduce traffic build up at
Seaside Roundabout

I Shared-use path
\—’i} B Proposed bus lane

Footpath

[0 Grass verge

@ Existing bus stop location
@ Proposed bus stop location

s East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

East Sussex
County Council

&

UK Government ¥a¥

Proposals continue north
along A259 Seaside. Please
refer to Map 8 for details

—p

Tollgate Junior
chool

v

Existing parking
spaces would be
retained One Stop

St Anthony's
Post Office

Proposed new
southbound bus lane
between the Lottbridge
Drove Roundabout and
Langney Roundabout.
This would require
removal of some right
turn pockets and existing
pedestrian islands

Queen’s Crescent =

Page 13



East Sussex
County Council

. Funded by
» UK Government ¥aY

&

Map 8: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 4 of 4

Existing

uncontrolled - Proposed bus lane would

crossing would be Existing uncontrolled continue through the

upgraded with crossing at Queen's Langney Roundabout, with

traffic lights Crescent would be new bus stop and busi
removed to allow for the waiting area to be provided

new bus lane

Proposed shared-use
path would continue
through the Langney
Roundabout

Lidl
Proposed shared-use

path for pedestrians
and cyclists on both
sides of the
carriageway

Anthony’s
st Office

S | eeds Avenue

W Seaville Drive

— b
5 2
9 9 Existing uncontrolled
g < crossing would be
Please refer to Ma, o 2 . .
leos Con/;inuaﬁonp = = upgraded with traffic Proposed new southbound
of proposals @ g lights bus lane between the
‘— 3 Lottbridge Drove )
Roundabout and Langney o5 e thn Kamgy
Roundabout.
Existing pedestrian
ey crossings would be
N arriageway .
(7¢ 9 Shared-use path retained on all arms
I Proposed bus lane Ofthe roundabout
\,) Footpath
[0 Grass verge
@ Existing bus stop location
@ Proposed bus stop location

Page 14

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

= East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure



East Sussex
County Council

42 Funded by iy
54 UK Government QM

Eastbourne Station Area
« Dedicated bus lanes and shared use cycle path along Upperton Road and Station Parade.

« Complement the existing bus priority measures (dedicated bus lanes) in Eastbourne Town Centre on
Terminus Road and Gildredge Road.

« Junction improvement at the Upper Road/Station Parade/The Avenue junction with bus priority through the
traffic signals and pedestrian crossing facilities.

» Replace existing Station Parade/Southfields Road roundabout with a traffic signal controlled junction
including pedestrian crossing facilities.

g¢ abed

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 15



East Sussex
County Council

i

Funded by
- UK Government ¥a¥

Care For
The Carers

¢

Existing bus priority
measures in the form of

Map 9: Package one proposed scheme Eastbourne Station Area
dedicated bus lanes

Enterprise Shopping

Centre
New southbound Q
)
Eastbourne

>
€
bus lane between
Train station

()
@») Little Acorns
Day Nursery

Elim Family Church

AShfo,d ROad

Junction
St Mark's House .
improvements
for bus priority
Wharf Road and
Southfields Road

us Road

Hartiﬁe[d Roag

The
Upperton

Existing roundabout
Termin

to signalised junction

=
Terminus Road

UPPerton Road

Dedicated left turn
for all road users

A259
Churchill Retirement
Living

o
jab)
Q
@ Marlborough Court Q
8 Eastbourne Ltd
Q A
e
Station Parade
Key: ) ke
I Carriageway NeW nOI’th bound g
Eastbourne Delivery 3;
bus lane between Office F Handelsbanken
SOUthfieldS Road Q °;5 Eastbourne
) =2
and Hartfield Road 7
Existing pedestrian
crossing upgraded

I Existing bus lane
B Proposed bus lane
Footpath

[0 Grass verge
@ Existing bus stop location

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

= East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

'O

Page 16



East Sussex
County Council

g+ Funded by m ~
=7 UK Government QM

Sovereign Harbour

« New single lane dedicated bus corridor, which can be used in both directions through controlled traffic
signals.

« Realigned shared use pedestrian and cycle route to link into the existing route along Atlantic Drive and
Harbour Quay/Pacific Drive.

« Proposed landscaping improvements with planting, sheltered seating areas and cycle parking.

« Junction alteration providing bus priority at Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay.

ot abed

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 17



Map 10: Package one proposed scheme Sovereign Harbour

Key:
Il Carriageway

I Shared-use path
I Proposed bus lane
I Relandscaped areas

)

Footpath
[0 Grass verge
@ Existing bus stop

Proposed signalised
entry to single bi-
directional bus lane

O, -
Ytona Q\.\B\.‘

Junction alteration
providing bus priority

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

Bensons
for Beds

v

New shared use
pedestrian and
cycle route

A th »
-
2

Existing service road at Crumbles Retail
Park realigned and widened to allow for
provision of new dedicated bus lane and
shared-use pedestrian and cycle route.

The existing cycle route would be
replaced by the bus lane, and a new
shared-use pedestrian and cycle route
would be provided alongside. This would
require some additional land and
remains subject to discussions with the
landowner

= East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Wilko

v

Former
Cineworld

v

Proposed

landscaping

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by
UK Government ¥a¥

Sovereign Harbour
car park

improvements with

planting, sheltered
seating areas and
cycle parking

Proposed signalised entry to
single bi-directional bus lane

New single
lane dedicated
bus corridor,
which can be
used in both
directions
through
controlled
traffic signals

Boat Yard

Proposed new
crossing for
pedestrians and
cyclists with
traffic lights

Sovereign
Harbour
Yacht Club

v

Proposed
new bus stop
locations

Sovereign

Harbour
r.I: Junction
g alteration
> provid ing
8 bus priority
Page 18



East Sussex
County Council

gia Funded by

The Proposed Schemes: Package Two M D ey ment Y

Package two covers Newhaven and Peacehaven and
comprises of three schemes:

« Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus
Priority

e Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton
Roundabout

« Peacehaven A259 Corridor

2t abed

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Package Benefits
The expected benefits of the proposed schemes in

package two include:

Improved journey times and reduced
delay for buses

Increased safety for pedestrians
{4 \\

ﬁ) Improved provision for cyclists

N ¢ Improved visibility and safety for all
@ users

Page 19



East Sussex
County Council

~» Funded by “
=¥ UK Government QM

NeWh aven Town Centre Ring Map\:n Package two proposed scheme Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority
Road Virtual Bus Priority ;LD

« Bus priority measures

Riverside

Country Parl
through optimising and 9
coordinating traffic New and upgraded
. . . . pedestrian crossings at
Slgnal tlmlngs, ensurmg various locations along the
that buses are given Ring Road

it e\

Proposed virtual bus priority

measures along the A259 Ring Nelhaven T
ewhaven lown
a

Road to speed up bus journey ’ £ K in Station
times and reduce congestion g, N

priority when navigating
Newhaven Ring Road.

& abed

Enhanced pedestrian
user experience and

o Newhaven
Safety th rough traffl C Ferry Port .
signal upgrades and .
improvements. )
| Norton Road
River 1
Co Ouse I
1 [ )
Key:
/ Junction

: Pedestrian Crossing

: Island Crossing

Existing bus stop location

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 20



East Sussex
County Council

a4» Funded by M
5+ UK Government QM

Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout

» Replacement of the existing mini-roundabout at the A26/Drove Road junction with a traffic signal controlled
junction.

« Reallocate existing road space to introduce an eastbound bus lane between the A26/Drove Road junction
and the A259 Drove Roundabout. Westbound traffic would continue to use the westbound lane of Drove Road
but accesses into/out of existing retail areas along this section would become left in, left out only.

« Bus lane on the A259 westbound approach and extending around the Denton Roundabout and alongside The
Drove to the Drove roundabout.

Eastbound bus lane between the Drove and Denton roundabouts.
« Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.
« New shared use pedestrian and cycle paths, with new and upgraded pedestrian and cycle crossings.

« Widening of southern footpath along Drove Road between McKinley Way and New Road roundabout.

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 21



East Sussex
County Council

Funded by
UK Government ¥a¥

Map 12: Package two proposed scheme Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout
S ‘ Proposed new
&4 \ shared-use path
J for pedestrians

Proposed new : and cyclists
dedicated bus

lanes on both
sides of the road

Proposed
northbound bus lane
on the approach to
Denton Roundabout

Sainsbury’s
The existing Proposed
Proposed new crossing island new bus
shared-use would be relocated Vi \ shelters in
pedestrian and 1om to the west B N R various
cycle path o . : o ¢ locations

o Road

<) Drov
ngards I -
Newhaven y 3 y
‘&._ T ‘ eyl Proposed new
A259 ! S Nature Reserve q anana
] . Q crossing facilities
connecting with
shared-use path

Mount Road

McDonald's X Proposed bus gate to
q provide bus priority
when entering and

5
e
A
>
o
2
(2

>
] exiting the roundabout Proposed bus lane
S FIEpOEEE) RE g - running through
g bus shelt < gl
N Lidl us shelters £
a The Range, ] the roundabout
S Newhaven Q = Towards
5 Q Bishopstone
<

Existing junction would be upgraded
and converted to left in/left out

movement only. New crossing island
would be provided to improve safety

Proposed junction upgrade

with traffic signals and bus
priority measures to speed
up journey times

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

= East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 22


Loubser, Lottie (UKCXW053)
Rectangle


Peacehaven A259 Corridor

East Sussex
County Council

a=» Funded by M
% UK Government QM

 Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions of the A259 South Coast Road. This will complement the
existing bus lanes along the A259 between Peacehaven, Telscombe Cliffs and Brighton.

« Junction upgrades, including signalisation of the A259/Sutton Avenue junction with pedestrian crossing

facilities.

» Proposed new shared-use pedestrian/cycle path through The Dell Park.

« New and upgraded pedestrian crossings.

o
%- Signal upgrades with bus priority at the A259 South Coast Road/Telscombe Cliffs Way junction.
&

See Map 13 See Map 14 See Map 15

Decorating and

..........
ssssssss
.........
AAAAAAAAAAAA
........

Saitdean

Fairlight A

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘

.......

uuuuuuuu

Telecombe Clifs Way

Goodtayre
.....

yyyyyyyyy

eeeeeeeeee
.............

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 23



East Sussex
County Council

. Funded by
2% UK Government ¥a¥

&

Map 13: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 1 of 3

ﬂ\ Key:
( W Carriageway Proposed narrowing of
\_‘) BN Existing bus lane the Highview Junction to
B Bus lane improve safety and allow
Footpath for a new footway and
[ Grass verge q
5 _ greenery alongside Richards
® Existing bus stop location Decorating and
I Existing on-street parking Malgleses

Premiergas
Services
9 Prarswvidl Proposed dedicated bus Existing pedestrian
Practice lanes on both sides of crossing to be retained

the carriageway between
Highview Road and
Telscombe Cliffs Way

Towards
Saltdean

Fire House
Pizza and Grill

Highview Road

Broomfield Ave

The Smugglers
Rest

¢

Proposed widening of

the existing carriageway Proposals continue

along the A259 South

to provide a new bus Proposed removal of the existing Coast Road. Please
lane to the west of bus [ay-by Opposite Broomfield refer to qu 14 for
Highview Road Avenue to allow for the new bus deta'.ls
lane. A new bus stop would be
provided in the same location,
within the bus lane
Page 24

= East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure



East Sussex
County Council

Funded by
~ UK Government ¥aY

&

'

Map 14: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 2 of 3

( “-\ K;}L Carriageway

A) I Existing bus lane

\__ B Bus lane Proposed upgrades to

Footpath the A259/Telscombe Proposed 2-way bus
I Grass verge Cliffs Way junction to lanes to be provided
® Existing bus stop location provide bus priority, through the junction,
B Existing on-street parking Existing signal controlled giving buses priority.
pedestrian crossings This would require

removal of the existing
right-turn pockets Soodfayre.

Store

Proposals continue would be retained

along the A259 South
Coast Road. Please
refer to Map 13 for KamE=ans
details .- Pharmacy Q Proposals continue
‘— 5 along the A259 South
- Coast Road. Please
- = refer to Map 15 for
) L&J details
=] Existing bus stop £
I to be retained S 5
(o0] E Telscombe E
Town Council N
(w]

¢

Coastway
Vets

Fairlight Aye

Existing pedestrian
crossing would be
retained

Kappadokya
Restaurant

Central Ave

Existing on-street
parking would be
retained

The Tavern
Telscombe Cliffs

Fairlight Ave
Sussex Way

Proposed new footway on the
Fairlight Avenue approach to the roundabout. This
Carpark would require a small parcel of
Q private land, and remains subject
to discussion with landowners

Page 25

= East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure



East Sussex
County Council

Funded by
2% UK Government ¥a¥

&

Map 15: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 3 of 3

N Key:
( \ Il Carriageway

h N Bus lane
\_ Footpath

[ Grass verge
® Existing bus stop location

Proposals continue Rowe Avenue Proposed bus lanes to be
along the A259 South Branch S A
Coast Road. Please e oY PrOVISjEd ”.]r?ugh e Existing pedestrian
refer to Map 14 for Q junction, giving buses . o
details crossing outside

priority. Kamsons Pharmacy to

be upgraded

“—

Sutton Ave

Nationwide
Building Society

61 abed

Roderick Ave

Roderick Ave

Rowe Ave

@

s The Dell

k7 Public Park Proposed new shared-
§ Potential area for Q use pedestrian & cycle

path through The Dell
Park

re-landscaping

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

amvsm East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 26



Next Steps

o)
QD

Public
consultation
in-person
event one

Public

consultation in-
person event
four and five

East Sussex
County Council

=2 Funded by ”
Z& UK Government QM

Public consultation Preliminary and detailed
exercise on the design stage, taking
feasibility designs into consideration the
closes consultation feedback

Public consultation
exercise on the
feasibility designs
begins

Public
consultation
in-person event
two and three

(el East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Public
consultation
in-person
event six

Analysis of feedback,
production of
Consultation
Summary Report

Page 27



Have Your Say

We want your views on the proposed schemes as part
of the BSIP Bus Priority Measures. Your views are
important to us, and this public consultation is an
opportunity to provide feedback and comments on the
latest plans to help shape the detailed design stage.

The consultation is open from the 31st July 2023 to the
25th September 2023. You will have until 11:59pm on
25th September to respond to the survey.

Y

We have a number of ways that you can
provide your views on the proposed
schemes. You can complete our online
consultation survey and find out more
information by scanning the QR code or
visiting:
https://consultation.eastsussex.

gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/

East Sussex
County Council

=53 UK Government YAy varay

Paper copies of the brochure and survey will be
available at all public consultation events.

If you would like to request a paper copy of the survey
or have any questions and comments in relation to the
BSIP Bus Priority Measures, you can contact us via:

BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk

busprioritymeasures

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Q) 07514 721385

If you would prefer this document as
easy read copy or in another language
please email:
BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk

Page 28


mailto:BSIP@eastsussex.gov.uk

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by iy iy

aia
@i UK Government YAy vAAY

We are hosting a number of in-person drop-in consultation events during the consultation period. The project
team will be available to answer your questions and provide you with more information about the proposed

schemes:

Sy

000
000
000

(n]n’

25 abed

Court Room, Eastbourne Town Hall
Grove Road, Eastbourne BN21 4UG

Room 1, Telscombe Civic Centre
360 South Coast Road, Telscombe Cliffs, BN1o 7ES

The Main Hall, Community House, Peacehaven
Meridian Centre, Meridian Way, Peacehaven, BN1o 8BB

Newhaven Outdoor Market
High Street, BNg 9PA

The Art Room, Hillcrest Community Centre, Newhaven
Bay Vue Road, Newhaven, BN9 gLH

The Foundry (inside The Beacon shopping centre)
Eastbourne, BN21 3NW

(el East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

3o0th August from 2pm to 6pm

7th September from 10am to 1pm
7th September from 2pm to spm
14th September from 11am to 2pm
14th September from 3:30pm to 7pm

16th September from 9:30am to 1:30pm

Page 29



East Sussex
County Council

g42 Funded by W

Stay Informed £23 UK Government SAZSAAY

You can stay informed about the BSIP Bus Priority Measures by visiting https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-
transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan or keeping an eye on social media.

@ EastSussexCC @ @EastSussexCC

€G abed

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 30


https://www.facebook.com/EastSussexCC/
https://www.twitter.com/EastSussexCC

o
Q

Q
(0]
(6]
&

You can find more information about
the proposals and complete the
feedback survey by scanning the QR

code or visiting https://consultation.

eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-
transport-environment/
busprioritymeasures or in the Have
Your Say section of this brochure.

,ag S

Photo credit: Lou @Bus_Fan234

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

(9]

(9)

East Sussex
County Council



https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/busprioritymeasures

Appendix 2

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

1====

g2 Funded by EasttStclsse)‘(l
22 UK Government ounty Counci

s

Appendix 2

East Sussex Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP) - Bus
Priority Measures

Consultation Report

Vi

November 2023
WSP/ East Sussex County Council




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Contents
LIPS 1) o o T [Tt o o I OSSR 4
Purpose of the DOCUMENT...........ooi ittt st et sre et s reeaesreennens 4
BACKGIOUNG ...ttt sttt a e st e e ra e besreesaesbeean e tesseensestennnens 4
FUNING ...ttt b et b et b bbb bt e bt st e et et et bt ee 4
Consultation & Engagement t0 Date ... 5
Project Vision & ODJECLIVES .......ooi ittt st s a e s reennens 7
Overview Of the Proposals..........cce ittt st s 7
PACKAZE T ...t b bbbt bbbt ne e 7
PACKAGE 2.ttt ettt ettt et s ae et e b e et et e e be et e e teeaa e beere et e beeaaetenreents 9
2. CONSULLALION ...ttt ettt 12
Details Of the CONSULLATION ........co.eiiiiiiiiee et 12
Consultation Materials & Channels for Promotion ... 12
Core Scheme INfOrmMatioN..........ccoo i 12
Engagement with Key StaKehOLdEers ..o 13
RATSTNG AWAIENESS ...ttt sttt ettt a e bt bbb e e s et e eseeneebenaennes 17
CONSULEALION EVENES......c.iiiiiiiiicic ettt 19
Responding to the ConSULLAtION ........c.ocviiiiieecec e e e 21
Response Analysis & MethodOlOY ..........ccciviiueieieieiiicieee e 21
3. Effectiveness of the Consultation ... 23
RESPONSES .....c.veveeetieteeeeeteett et ettt ettt et et e e e s te et e s teete e tesaeesbebeeasestesbsestestsessanbeeasanteebeensesteesaantesanenes 23
SUNVEY RESPONAENTS.......ceiiitieecteeeeeee ettt ettt st e b e be et esbe s be e besbeesbesbeessetasssensesteesnans 23
CONSULLALION AWAIENESS .......vviiieieiiiietei ettt ettt senes 28
CUrrent Travel Patterns.......coo i 28
Feedback on the SChEMES ..o 29
4.  Feedback on the Proposals.........ccccciiiiiiiicicicieesesesese et 31
PaCKAgEe 1: KINGS DIV ....c.eiiieeecceeee ettt st aeeaeeaeeaas 31
Package 1: Seaside Corridor & Seaside Roundabout.............cccceveieiriininienireeeeee, 32
Package 1: Eastbourne STtation Ar€a..........cocveveieieiiiieceseeee et 34
Package 1: SOVEreign HarbOUT ...ttt 35
Package 2: Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority .........cccocevevevecnccnnnennnn. 37

Page 2 of 151

Page 56



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Package 2: Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area & Denton Roundabout...............cccceevenrnnenne. 38
Package 2: Peacehaven A259 COrTidor........ooiiiiiinieinieierie et 40
5.  Free Text SUrveY RESPONSES........cccoiiiiiieieteeirere ettt 43
6.  Active Travel FOCUS Group RESPONSES........ccccveiveeieiieeeeiecteeteste et ettt sve e re st aesaeere s 51
7.  Email, Written Responses & Documents Submitted.........c.cccooveeviiieceiiccccece 52
General Feedback/ COMMENTS........ccciiiiiiiriee et 52
PACKAZE T ...ttt bbb bbbttt b e 53
PACKAZE 2 ...ttt ettt et et st e st e et et e b et e e he et e beeaa e teebeenbesteeraenreereenes 54
BSIP Consultation MAilDOX .........ccoueiriiiriiiiiieieie e 57
8.  Key Themes & Design ConSiderations...........coccivueirieineninieninicseseeeeesee e 59
9. SUMMAIY & NEXE STEPS.....i ittt st e ra et e s be e e beereenes 70
Appendix A: Consultation WebPage...........cooviiiieiiiececee s 72
Appendix B: Consultation BroChUre..............coviiiiiiiinieeee s 76
Appendix C: FAQs and GlosSary Of TEIMS........cceiiiiecieiieeeieceeeete ettt sttt 109
ApPENdiX D: Press RELEASE ........cvioiicieiiceeeeeece ettt st st ra s 118
Appendix E: Social Media POSTS ........cccoiiiiiiiiieieeee e 120
Appendix F: Consultation POSECArd............cccoiviririiinieinee e 126
Appendix G: Postcard Distribution Areas...........cooocveeiicieiicececeeeee e 128
Appendix H: Consultation POSLEN ..........ccvciiiiieieeceeece ettt st 133
AppendiX |: EVENT BANNETS .....c..cvoieiieiieiietestecteete ettt ettt ne e eae b s 135
AppendixX J: FEedbaCK SUIMVEY ...ttt ettt st ettt e be e re e 139
Page 3 of 151

Page 57



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

1. Introduction

Purpose of the Document

East Sussex County Council (ESCC), with support from technical transport consultants WSP,
conducted a public and stakeholder consultation on a series of bus priority measures
focussed on the Eastbourne and Newhaven/Peacehaven areas, which form part of the East
Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP). Following the public and stakeholder
consultation period (31 July - 25 September 2023), this report documents the process,
presents the results of the feedback received, and outlines ESCC’s responses to the key
themes that emerged through the consultation.

The information presented in the report will be used to inform the next steps for the
proposed BSIP Bus Priority schemes, with the feedback received being used to inform
subsequent design decisions.

Background

Following the publication of the Government's Bus Back Better Strategy by the Department
for Transport (DfT) in March 2021, ESCC submitted its BSIP to Government in October 2021.

The East Sussex BSIP sets out the Council’s ambitious plans to improve the bus network
across East Sussex and provide a cleaner, reliable alternative to car travel. The BSIP
focusses on enhancing the bus network within East Sussex to complement and support
wider transport investment across the country, encouraging a sustainable mode shift
towards bus usage.

The BSIP actively addresses the Government’s Bus Back Better Strategy and sets the
Council’s plans to improve bus services, working in close cooperation with bus operators,
bus passengers, neighbouring Local Transport Authorities, community and business voices,
and the voluntary and health transport sector. Through the BSIP, ESCC will deliver bus
service improvements, bus stop improvements and bus priority measures.

The aims of the BSIP are to:

= Improve the reliability and punctuality of bus services and explore methods to
make bus services more accessible.

= Encourage an increase in the proportion of people travelling by bus.

= Enhance the bus network, reducing journey times and improving reliability and
punctuality of bus services.

= Increase bus usage across the county by building a bus network that meets
everyone's needs.

= Complement and support wider transport investment across the country.

Funding

In September 2022, ESCC was allocated £41.4 million of Government funding towards the
delivery of the capital (£22.1m) and revenue (£19.3m) elements of its BSIP. A key
component of the capital element is to focus on bus priority measures, which are

Page 4 of 151

Page 58


https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan/bus-service-improvement-plan-for-east-sussex-county-council
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan/bus-service-improvement-plan-for-east-sussex-county-council

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

expected to be delivered before March 2025. As a consequence of the £22.1m capital,
£18.5m was allocated to the delivery of a package of bus priority measures.

The potential bus priority measures were identified from an assessment of bus service
data provided by the bus operators to determine where the key punctuality and reliability
hotspots were on the network, as well as a review of previous/current multi-modal
corridor studies which had considered bus priority schemes within them. A subsequent
high level desktop assessment of these potential locations was then undertaken to
determine whether bus priority measures could reasonably and physically be introduced.

Following the outcomes of the feasibility study, and development of feasibility design
options, a prioritisation exercise was undertaken in June 2023 to ensure the packages of
schemes included in the consultation, presented the highest benefits in each area, were
affordable within the funding available and could be delivered in line with the
Government’s Department for Transport spend and delivery timescales of March 2025.

The purpose of this consultation piece was to seek stakeholder and public feedback on the
feasibility designs for the prioritised bus priority schemes. The feedback received from the
consultation is being used to decide which scheme(s) are taken forward to the next
(preliminary/detailed) design stage and delivery, and to help shape and refine the scope
of those proposed schemes. It should be noted that the package of measures presented at
the 2023 consultation exceeds the Council’s BSIP funding allocation. An overview of the
proposals is provided later in this Chapter.

Consultation & Engagement to Date

Some public and stakeholder engagement has previously been undertaken prior to and
during the development of the BSIP, to understand the current condition of the network
and its problems.

This previous engagement has led to the identification of the proposed BSIP schemes for
East Sussex. In particular, the early engagement, as detailed below, has identified that the
punctuality and reliability of bus services across the county is an issue. This has allowed
the aspirations of bus operators and priorities of stakeholders, in particular bus users, to
be taken on board through the development of the proposed BSIP schemes.

The previous consultation and engagement undertaken is summarised below.
Transport Focus: Bus Passenger Survey, 2018

In 2018, the bus services in East Sussex were included in the Transport Focus survey. The
main results highlighted that the BSIP needs to address the punctuality and journey time
of the bus services within East Sussex potentially through a programme of bus priorities, as
well as addressing the view that bus fares represent poor value for money amongst bus
passengers.

East Sussex County Council Bus Service Improvement Plan Survey, 2021

Between 17 August 2021 and 14 September 2021, a BSIP survey was carried out to
understand what improvements bus users would want to see introduced on the bus

Page 5 of 151

Page 59



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

network. Of the 2,016 responses that were received, 46% use the buses frequently and just
under 6.5% currently do not use the buses.

The main conclusions from the survey, for both those who hold a concessionary permit and
those who do not, included:

= The need for more frequent services including buses operating in the evenings as
well as Sundays;

= Better real time information;

= More reliable and faster services;

= Lower fares; and

= More direct services.

A259 MRN South Coast Corridor Study

The A259 corridor is a key part of the major road network serving East Sussex. The road is
vital in linking the various communities situated along its alignment including the towns of
Eastbourne, Seaford, Newhaven, Peacehaven and Telscombe Cliffs with the city of
Brighton to the west. These communities provide a significant employment, retail and
leisure attractor for the area.

The A259 corridor study, complementing the Transport for South East (TfSE) study which
examined orbital routes along the south coast which included the A259 to inform the
development of TfSE’s Strategic Investment Plan (SIP), focused on the corridor between
Eastbourne and Brighton. Emphasis was placed on potential measures to enhance access to
public transport and to enable people to cycle or walk for all or part of their journeys,
alongside localised road and junction capacity improvements and the potential use of
smart technology.

The A259 study aimed to provide a balanced package of measures by improving the
efficiency and effectiveness of this key corridor of movement, alongside integrating
greater sustainable mobility options. This will be fundamental for both existing and future
users as the A259 corridor forms part of the primary route network serving the county and
where ambitious growth plans, for both housing and commercial development are coming
forward.

Stakeholder engagement on the A259 study and public consultation on TfSE’s Strategic
Investment Plan has led to bus related infrastructure proposals for the A259 MRN South
Coast Corridor being integrated into the East Sussex BSIP. The outcomes from the A259
study and TfSE study were used to inform the development of a Major Road Network
Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC) that was submitted to Government in early October
2023.

Summary

In light of the above, the aim of the Summer 2023 consultation was to build on the work
already undertaken, gathering feedback on the feasibility designs, which have been
developed following the early engagement undertaken since 2018.

Page 6 of 151

Page 60



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Project Vision & Objectives

The overarching aim of the proposed schemes for the East Sussex BSIP is:

“To ensure that East Sussex residents and visitors enjoy the highest possible quality bus
services that provide a frequent and comprehensive choice, reduce congestion and make a
positive contribution to better air quality and decarbonisation.’

To support this overarching aim, the specific objectives of the bus priority measures are
set out below:

Figure 1: Objectives of the proposed bus priority measures

Reduce Congestion
and Improve Traffic
Flow

Improved Bus
Reliability

Encourage Complement Wider Create Safer
Greater Bus Use Initiatives Options

An overview of the proposals is provided below.

Overview of the Proposals

The proposals cover the following areas:

= Eastbourne
=  Newhaven
= Peacehaven

The proposals are presented in two packages of schemes, based on their geographical
location. There are seven schemes in total across the two packages. A detailed overview of
the proposals is provided below.

Package 1

Package 1 is located in Eastbourne and comprises of four schemes:

= Kings Drive

= Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout
= Eastbourne Station Area

= Sovereign Harbour

Figure 2 shows the geographical location of the schemes within Package 1, before a
detailed overview of the proposals is given.

Page 7 of 151

Page 61



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 2: Map showing overview locations of the Package 1 schemes.
\

L/

Sovereign
Harbour

King'’s Drive, Seaside Corridor
Upperton and Roundabout

Eastbourne
Station Area

KINGS DRIVE

= |mplementation of bus priority measures to enhance the reliability and speed of
bus services, through the introduction of a dedicated bus lane, serving Eastbourne
District General Hospital and East Sussex College Eastbourne campus.

= A southbound bus lane is proposed between Decoy Drive and Rodmill roundabout.

= Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure. This would
require removal of the on-road cycle lanes along Kings Drive in both directions.

SEASIDE CORRIDOR & SEASIDE ROUNDABOUT

= Provision of dedicated bus lanes from east of Gilbert Road to Langney Rise
roundabout in both directions on Seaside Road and St Anthony's Avenue to improve
bus journey times.

= Improvements for cyclists through a mix of shared-use footway/cycleway and on-
road provision along Seaside Road and St Anthonys Avenue, to connect to existing
cycle routes.

= Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

= New and upgraded pedestrian crossings in various locations, including a toucan
crossing at the Seaside Roundabout linking the two existing sections of shared
footway/cycleway along Lottbridge Drove. A new zebra crossing would be provided
on A259 between Leslie Street and Hanover Road, replacing the existing
uncontrolled crossing. A new pedestrian crossing would also be provided on A259
between Rye Street and Whinchelsea Road, replacing the existing zebra crossing

Page 8 of 151

Page 62



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

outside St Andrew’s Church. This would improve access to the relocated bus stop.
A reduction in the number of existing parking spaces along the route would be
required to provide the facilities.

Traffic signal upgrades at several junctions along A259 Seaside Road, including the
Seaside/ Beamsley Road/ Whitley Road junction, where bus priority will be
provided. The pedestrian crossing on the southbound approach to the junction
would be upgraded to toucan. The existing crossings on the remaining arms would
be retained. Upgrades are also proposed at the junction into the retail park on
Lottbridge Drove, where traffic signals would be installed.

EASTBOURNE STATION AREA

Dedicated bus lanes and shared use cycle path along Upperton Road and Station
Parade.

Complement the existing bus priority measures (dedicated bus lanes) in Eastbourne
Town Centre on Terminus Road and Gildredge Road.

Junction improvement at the Upperton Road/Station Parade/The Avenue junction
with bus priority through the traffic signals and improved pedestrian crossing
facilities.

Replace existing Station Parade/Southfields Road (Station) roundabout with a
traffic signal-controlled junction including pedestrian crossing facilities.

SOVEREIGN HARBOUR

New single lane dedicated bus corridor between South Harbour and North Harbour,
which can be used in both directions through controlled traffic signals.

Realigned shared use pedestrian and cycle route to link into the existing route
along Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay/ Pacific Drive.

Proposed landscaping improvements with planting, sheltered seating areas and
cycle parking.

Junction alteration providing bus priority at Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay.

Overall, the proposed schemes within Package 1 aim to deliver the following benefits:

Improved journey times and reduced delay for buses;

Encourage an increase in the proportion of people travelling by bus;
Increased safety for pedestrians;

Improved provision for cyclists;

Improved visibility and safety for all users; and

Reaching the train station becomes easier for pedestrians.

Package 2

Package 2 covers Newhaven and Peacehaven comprises of the following 3 schemes:

Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority
Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area & Denton Roundabout
Peacehaven A259 Corridor

The location of each of the schemes is illustrated on the figure below.

Page 9 of 151

Page 63



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 3: Map showing overview locations of the Package 2 schemes.

(A

Newhaven Town
Centre Ring Road
Virtual Bus Priority

Drove Road, Newhaven
Peacehaven Town Area and Denton
A259 Corridor Roundabout

A detailed overview of the proposals for each scheme within Package 2 is given below.

NEWHAVEN TOWN CENTRE RING ROAD VIRTUAL BUS PRIORITY

Bus priority measures through optimising and coordinating traffic signal timings,
ensuring that buses are given priority when navigating Newhaven Ring Road.
Enhanced pedestrian user experience and safety through traffic signal upgrades
and improvements.

DROVE ROAD, NEWHAVEN TOWN AREA AND DENTON ROUNDABOUT

Replacement of the existing mini-roundabout at the A26/Drove Road junction with
a traffic signal-controlled junction.

Reallocate existing road space to introduce an eastbound bus lane between the
A26/Drove Road junction and the A259 Drove Roundabout. Westbound traffic would
continue to use the westbound lane of Drove Road but accesses into/out of existing
retail areas along this section would become left in, left out only.

Bus lane on the A259 westbound approach and extending around the Denton
Roundabout and alongside The Drove to the Drove roundabout.

Eastbound bus lane between the Drove and Denton roundabouts.

Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

New shared use pedestrian and cycle paths, with new and upgraded pedestrian and
cycle crossings.

Widening of southern footpath along Drove Road between McKinley Way and New
Road roundabout.

Page 10 of 151

Page 64



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

PEACEHAVEN A259 CORRIDOR

= Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions of the A259 South Coast Road.
This will complement the existing bus lanes along the A259 between Peacehaven,
Telscombe Cliffs and Brighton.

= Junction upgrades, including signalisation of the A259/ Sutton Avenue junction with
pedestrian crossing facilities.

= Proposed new shared-use pedestrian/cycle path through The Dell Park (subject to
securing third party land).

= New and upgraded pedestrian signalised crossings.

= Signal upgrades with bus priority at the A259 / Telscombe Cliffs Way junction.

Overall, the proposed schemes within Package 2 aim to deliver the following benefits:

= Improved journey times and reduced delay for buses;
= |ncreased safety for pedestrians;

= |mproved provision for cyclists; and

= Improved visibility and safety for all users.

Page 11 of 151

Page 65



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

2. Consultation

Details of the Consultation

Technical transport consultants, WSP supported ESCC with the consultation exercise on the
proposed BSIP Bus Priority Measures. The consultation period ran for 8 weeks, between 31
July and 25 September 2023.

The aim of the consultation was to seek public and stakeholder feedback on the feasibility
designs for the package of BSIP Bus Priority Measures prior to a decision over which
scheme(s) are to be taken forward through to detailed design and construction.

Consultation Materials & Channels for Promotion

A range of materials were produced for the consultation to help respondents understand
the proposals and submit informed comments. These were subsequently promoted via
several communication channels to raise awareness and encourage participation.

These material and channels are detailed below.

Core Scheme Information

Online Webpage

The Citizen Space website is the online platform that hosted the ESCC BSIP Bus Priority
Measures consultation materials, including FAQs, the consultation survey, consultation
brochure, in-person event details and contact details for the project team.

The webpage also provided access to an easy read brochure and the Equality Impact
Assessment (EqlA). This helped ensure that the public consultation was fully inclusive and
accessible to all members of the community, in line with the Government’s Diversity and
Inclusion Strategy'.

The website URL was: https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-
environment/busprioritymeasures/

Screenshots of the website are shown in Appendix A.

Consultation Brochure

The consultation brochure provided a written overview of the scheme proposals, as well as
visual representations of the schemes in the form of public facing, simplified drawings
(referred to as the ‘Consultation Maps’).

The brochure was available on the consultation webpage in both a standard and easy-read
format.

Hard copies of the brochure were also available at the public drop-in events, and across
various venues across East Sussex, including:

= Eastbourne Town Hall; = Eastbourne Library;

1 Charity Commission for England and Wales. Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2019-2023.
Page 12 of 151

Page 66


https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/busprioritymeasures/
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/busprioritymeasures/

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

= Towner Gallery, Eastbourne; = Havens Community Hub,
= East Sussex College Eastbourne Newhaven;
Campus; = Denton Island Community Centre,
= Sovereign Harbour Community Newhaven;
Centre. Eastbourne; = Peacehaven Library;
= Eastbourne Age Concern; = Community House, Peacehaven;
= Newhaven Library; = The Yemeni Coffee Co,
= Hillcrest Community Centre, Peacehaven; and
Newhaven;

Telscombe Civic Centre.

It should be noted that following public feedback, an updated version of the consultation
brochure was published during the consultation period, on 17 August 2023. The updated
brochure addressed concerns regarding the colour purple used across the scheme maps to
represent both existing bus lanes and shared paths.

Therefore, the consultation brochure was updated and re-uploaded to the webpage,
replacing the original version. To maintain consistency, the revised version used purple
for all shared paths, and existing bus lanes were changed from purple to blue, to avoid
confusion. Proposed bus lanes were highlighted in red. The map legends were also
updated.

A copy of the original and the updated brochure can be viewed in Appendix B.

Frequently Asked Questions

A FAQ document was produced and included on the consultation webpage. The FAQ
document also contained a Glossary of Terms, with example photographs and definitions of
some of the measures proposed, including ‘dedicated bus lane’, ‘bus priority signals’ and
‘toucan crossing’.

A copy of the FAQs and Glossary of Terms can be found in Appendix C.
Engagement with Key Stakeholders

To aid with the stakeholder engagement exercise, an extensive stakeholder database was
developed by WSP for the project. This built on the insight ESCC gathered during previous
consultation exercises and/or ongoing schemes in similar areas.

Stakeholders in the database were identified through a comprehensive stakeholder
mapping exercise to determine those stakeholders who may have an interest or could be
affected by the proposed schemes This included, County, District, Borough and Town
Councillors, local Members of Parliament, local bus operators, transport bodies, Local
Enterprise Partnerships, education providers, emergency services, residents associations
and organisations representing the Voluntary and Community sector.

The database also included:

67 Local businesses

6 Organisations representing local businesses
9 Active travel groups

14 Accessibility action groups

Page 13 of 151

Page 67



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

14 Environmental interest groups

8 Transport user groups

Member Briefings

Prior to the consultation launch, several briefings were held with elected members as key
stakeholders. These briefings provided an opportunity for attendees to have advance sight
of the proposals and consultation materials before they were available to the public.

The sessions were held online via MS Teams and were led by ESCC. Table 1 below provides
a summary of the meetings held.

Table 1: Summary of pre-consultation briefings held

Pre-Consultation Briefing

Date & Time

Content

Councillor Dowling - ESCC
Lead Member

4 July 2023, 11:00-14:00

officers

Eastbourne - Lewes Council

12 July 2023, 13:30-14:00

ESCC Cllr Briefing

24 July 2023, 17:00-18:00

Brighton & Hove City
Council officers

25 July 2023, 10:15-10:45

Eastbourne Borough Cllr
Briefing

25 July 2023, 15:30-16:30

Briefing

Lewes District Council Cllr

26 July 2023, 12:30-13:30

Peacehaven Town Cllr
Briefing

27 July 2023, 09:00-10:00

ESCC Cllr Briefing

27 July 2023, 13:30-14:30

Newhaven Town Cllr
Briefing

27 July 2023, 15:00-16:00

Briefing

Lewes District Council Cllr

27 July 2023, 17:00-18:00

Presentation from
ESCC on BSIP,
Feasibility and
Design Review,
Objectives of the
Bus Priority
Measures,
Schemes,
Consultation
Details and Next
Steps plus Q&A
opportunity.

In addition to the above, further briefing sessions were held during the consultation
period, with affected landowners at Sovereign Harbour. These are detailed in the following

section of the report.

Engagement during the consultation period
During the consultation period (31 July - 25 September 2023), further engagement was
undertaken with a number of stakeholders on the project. This is detailed below.

Page 68

Page 14 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Disability Rights Reference Group (DDRG)

On 18 August 2023 ESCC attended the Disability Rights Reference Group (DDRG) to present
the proposed BSIP Bus Priority measures. A summary of the key discussion points in relation
to the BSIP proposals is provided below:

o Concern was raised regarding visually impaired groups and the use of shared
footways/cycleways stating that these are not preferable.

e Comments regarding the accessibility to easy-read materials with a suggestion that
images and further simplified language would be beneficial.

e It was raised that consultation with bus operators on pinch points would only
identify options currently available; if there is no service, there will not be a
problem.

e The consultation team were also made aware of a learning disability group that
could be consulted upon.

¢ Two events were suggested, one online and one in-person to further discuss the bus
priority proposals.

With reference to further consultation, an in-person accessibility focus group was planned
and advertised, however, due to a lack of confirmed attendees, the focus group did not go
ahead. This is detailed later in the report.

A series of comments were also made regarding the Flexibus and other bus queries which
were passed to the ESCC Transport Hub team for a response.

Landowner Briefings

In September 2023, briefing sessions were held with landowners at Sovereign Harbour. The
briefings provided an opportunity for ESCC to talk through the proposals in detail, focusing
largely on the proposals at Sovereign Harbour and the affected land. The landowners also
had opportunities to ask questions and discuss the next steps. The sessions are summarised
in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Meetings with landowners

Briefings held during Date & Time Content

the consultation

Meeting 1: Sovereign 11 September Presentation from ESCC on BSIP, Feasibility

Harbour Landowner 2023, and Design Review, Objectives of the Bus
14:00-15:00 Priority Measures, focus on Scheme

Meeting 2: Sovereign 13 September proposed at Sovereign Harbour,

Harbour Landowner 2023, Consultation Details and Next Steps plus
14:30-15:30 Q&A opportunity.

East Sussex Seniors Association

ESCC presented to the East Sussex Seniors Association on 15 September 2023. The
presentation provided an overview of the BSIP bus priority measures, and enabled
attendees to provide feedback on the schemes and raise questions.

Page 15 of 151

Page 69



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

The key discussion points are summarised below:

= There was a general safety concern over shared spaces and the nervousness of the
ageing population using these with cyclists.

= The reliability of buses in the Hastings area was raised, questioning what is being
done to address this as the proposals to don’t look to.

= Engagement with St Andrews School and Tollgate schools regarding the Seaside
proposals were discussed stating that this area is very busy with parents and
children using the road, pathways and busses twice a day.

= Similarly, to the DDRG there were also comments made about existing bus services
and Digital Demand Responsive Transport (DDRT). Such comments were passed to
the ESCC Transport Hub.

Stakeholder Email Notifications
Stakeholders were informed about the consultation throughout the live period. Table 3
below provides an overview of the emails, recipients and dates issued.

Table 3: Stakeholder Email Notifications

Recipient Date Issued | Email Content

Bus operators 28 July Details of the consultation launch. Consultation
brochure attached. Consultation poster for busses
attached. Consultation FAQs attached. Link to
online survey.

ESCC councillors, 28 July Email thanking councillors for their time at the

district, borough, briefing meetings. Presentation slides and

and town councillors Consultation brochure attached. Link to online
survey.

Caroline Ansell MP, 1 August Overview of BSIP background, Bus Priority

Maria Caulfield MP, Measures, in-person drop in events. Link to online

Lloyd Russell-Moyle consultation. Consultation brochure attached.

MP Consultation FAQs attached.

In addition to the targeted stakeholder emails, an email was issued to all identified
stakeholders in the database, informing them that the consultation was live. The email
was issued on 3 August 2023, and provided links to the online consultation page, details
regarding the in-person drop in events and included a copy of the consultation brochure
and FAQs.

Further emails were sent throughout the consultation period, to any additional
stakeholders identified.

Page 16 of 151

Page 70



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Raising Awareness

Press Release

ESCC issued a press release on 4 August 2023, which helped generate coverage during the
first week of the consultation. Online articles were also noted in a number of online
outlets, including but not limited to:

= Telscombe Town Council News;
= 3VA News;

= Metrobus; and

= SussexWorld.

A copy of the ESCC press release can be found in Appendix D.

Social Media

ESCC made use of its Facebook and X (formerly Twitter) channels to raise awareness of the
consultation. Multiple posts (tweets) and Facebook posts were made during the
consultation period; each post encouraged readers to follow the link to the online
consultation webpage, where they could find out more information and complete the
survey.

An example post (tweet) is shown below from 8 August 2023 which had 3,934 views;

Figure 4: Post on X from 8 August 2023

East Sussex County Council

g"‘z ZEastSussexCC
We have launched a public consultation for proposed #EastSussex bus
priority measures in #Easthourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven. We

would love to hear what you think, for more information and to complete
our survey, visit: ow.ly/Yalz50PujzZ

i==rs
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

Enst Sussux

443 Funded by gm

% UK Government
12:00 pm - 8 Aug 2023 - 3,934 Views

Scheduled Facebook and X (formerly Twitter) posts were also used to promote the drop-in
consultation events. The posts provided information on the timings and locations of the
events, to help encourage members of the public to attend.

A copy of the ESCC social media posts can be found in Appendix E.

Page 17 of 151

Page 71



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Consultation Postcard
Postcards were distributed to promote the consultation and generate awareness of the
proposals. The postcard can be viewed in Appendix F.

During the consultation, a total of 472 postcards were delivered to properties in close
proximity to the schemes. The distribution area in which the postcards were delivered is
shown in Appendix G.

Below provides a summary of how the postcards were distributed across the different
scheme areas:

= Kings Drive, Eastbourne - 75 postcards delivered

= Seaside Roundabout, Eastbourne - 46 postcards delivered

= Langney Roundabout, Eastbourne - 26 postcards delivered

= Sovereign Harbour, Eastbourne - 73 postcards delivered

= Denton Roundabout & Newhaven Town Area Ring Road - 123 postcards delivered
= A259 South Coast Road, Peacehaven - 129 postcards delivered

Batches of postcards were also made available at venues across East Sussex, including:

= Eastbourne Library;

= Eastbourne Town Hall;

= Towner Gallery, Eastbourne;

= The Sovereign Centre, Eastbourne;

= East Sussex College Eastbourne Campus;

= Di Lieto’s Coffee Lounge, Eastbourne;

= Sovereign Harbour Yacht Club, Eastbourne;

= Age Concern Eastbourne;

= Newhaven Library;

= Denton Island Community Centre, Newhaven;
= Peacehaven Library;

= Community House, Peacehaven;

= The Yemeni Coffee Co, Peacehaven;

= The Peacehaven public house and restaurant;
= Telscombe Civic Centre; and

= Peacehaven Leisure Centre.

The postcard provided recipients with information about the consultation including a link
to the consultation survey and ESCC consultation webpage, as well as listing the in-person
consultation events and contact information for the project team.

During the last week of the consultation (w/c 18 September 2023), additional postcards
were delivered to local bus operators (Stagecoach, Brighton & Hove Buses) who distributed
them to bus passengers before closure of the consultation at midnight on 25 September
2023.

Consultation Poster

A consultation poster was distributed across local venues and to local bus operators to
raise awareness of the proposals and to encourage participation in the consultation. The
poster provided information on the consultation exercise and provided a link/ QR code to

Page 18 of 151

Page 72



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

the consultation webpage and consultation survey. Information regarding the in-person
consultation events were also listed.

The poster is presented is Appendix H.

Online Webinar

A pre-recorded online webinar was made available online via the ESCC YouTube page. Links
to the webinar were also shared via ESCC’s social media channels (X and Facebook). The
webinar provided an overview of the BSIP programme and gave a detailed overview of the
scheme proposals. Information on how to get involved in the consultation was also
provided, as well as the next steps for the schemes. This provided an alternative option
for those unable to attend the in-person consultation events.

A screenshot of the online webinar is presented below;

Figure 4: Online Consultation Webinar.

wous w555 rums

EAST SUSSEX

Bus Priority Measures

Online Webinar

East Sussex BSIP Consultation Webinar

w Eas’l ?}fs?ex County Council | ?Bo o £ Share =+ Save

The webinar can be viewed online via the following link:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=r0Z-HgW3-w

Consultation Events

In Person Events
Six in person public drop-in events were held (see

Table 4 below). Events were advertised via email, press release, social media, the
consultation brochure, postcards distributed at key locations in the vicinity of the schemes
and posters, and were also highlighted on the consultation webpage. The events were well
attended by residents, interest groups, bus operator staff, locally elected councillors and
MPs.

The table below lists the event times, dates locations and attendance.

Table 4: List of Consultation Events

Page 19 of 151

Page 73


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lr0Z-HgW3-w

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Event Title Date and time | Location Attendance (approx.)
!—Iastbourne Prop- 30 August 2023 | Court Room, 60 people attended
in Consultation Eastbourne Town Hall,

(14:00-18:00)
Event Grove Road,

Eastbourne, BN21 4UG.

Telscombe Civic
Centre, 360 South
Coast Road, Telscombe
Cliffs, BN10 7ES

Telscombe Cliffs 7 September
Drop-in 2023
Consultation Event

20 people attended

(10:00-13:00)

Peacehaven Drop-
in Consultation
Event

7 September
2023

Community House (The
Main Hall), Meridian
Centre, Meridian Way,
Peacehaven, East
Sussex, BN10 8BB

40 people attended

(14:00-17:00)

Newhaven Outdoor
Market, High Street,
BN9 9PA

Newhaven Drop-in | 14 September
Consultation Event | 2023

50 people attended

(11:00-14:00)

Newhaven Drop-in | 14 September
Consultation Event | 2023

Hillcrest Community
Centre (The Art Room),
Bay Vue Road,
Newhaven, BN9 9LH

20 people attended

(15:30-19:00)

Eastbourne Drop- | 16 September
in Consultation 2023
Event

The Foundry (inside
The Beacon shopping
centre), Eastbourne,
BN21 3NW

20 people attended

(9:30-13:30)

During the in-person events, a series of exhibition boards were displayed with large
scheme proposal maps. Consultation brochures and postcards were available as well as
scheme technical drawings for reference. Attendees were directed to the online
consultation survey, but paper copies of the consultation survey were also available at the
events for those whom this is a preferred method. Members of the project team were able
to assist several residents with visual impairment to complete a paper survey during an
event.

The event boards are presented in Appendix .

The events were staffed by ESCC and WSP, with representatives from the core project
team that had been involved in the development of the BSIP, as well as technical
representatives to answer any specific design queries. Representatives from WSP’s
Consultation and Engagement team were also in attendance. Active Travel Focus Group

In addition to the public drop-in events, a focus group was held to gather feedback on the
active travel elements of the proposals. The session took place online via Microsoft Teams,
on 12 September 2023 (18:30 - 20:00). ESCC led the session with support from WSP.

Page 20 of 151

Page 74



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

The invitation was extended to nine active travel groups across East Sussex.
Representatives from two groups were in attendance. The session provided an opportunity
to discuss the proposals in more detail, gather feedback and answer any questions raised
by attendees.

A summary of the key discussion points and feedback received during the focus group is
presented in Section 6 of the report.

Accessible Travel Focus Group

A second focus group was planned and advertised for 18 September 2023; this was
proposed to be an Accessibility Focus Group, with the invitation extended to 14
accessibility groups across East Sussex. The session was planned to take place at the
Eastbourne Blind Society; however, this event did not go ahead as no invitees RSVP’d to
the event.

Responding to the Consultation

Feedback Survey

An online consultation survey was the main method of gathering feedback on the
proposals. It was available on the East Sussex Citizen Space webpage throughout the
duration of the consultation (31 July - 25 September 2023).

Alternative formats, including hard copies, were made available on request.

Printed copies of the survey were also available at the drop-in consultation events, for
respondents who would prefer to hand-write their responses rather than completing the
online survey. These could be handed back to the project team during the event or posted
for free direct to ESCC.

A total of 35 hard copies of the survey were received. The vast majority of these were
received during the consultation period. To allow sufficient time for postal copies to be
received, these were also accepted in the week following the consultation closure.

A copy of the survey is provided in Appendix J.

Consultation Mailbox and Phoneline

The East Sussex BSIP Consultation inbox (BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk) was
monitored for feedback and queries throughout the consultation period. A total of 41
items of feedback were received during the consultation period; these are summarised in
Chapter 7 of this report.

A phoneline was also set up for the project for respondents to speak to a member of the
project team. The mailbox was open 24/7 and was advertised via the consultation
webpage, postcard and poster.

Response Analysis & Methodology

DATA ANALYSIS & CODING METHODOLOGY

The consultation exercise generated a large amount of data, including surveys, emails,
and other documents/ written responses. A robust process was put in place to manage the

volume of responses received.
Page 21 of 151

Page 75


mailto:BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Online survey responses were processed directly through the Citizen Space portal, before
the data was downloaded into a spreadsheet. Paper copies of the survey were transcribed
and inputted into the same spreadsheet database, before the analysis was undertaken.
The results of the analysis are presented in a series of charts and tables, which follow in
subsequent sections of this report.

The survey was largely made up of closed questions, where respondents could select one
or more choices from the options provided. One open-ended question was asked, inviting
free-text responses. These responses required further analysis, which is presented in
Chapter 5.

Coding free-text responses

A process called ‘coding’ was undertaken to analyse the free-text comments provided in
response to the open-ended survey question. This involves the identification of common
high-level themes and issues, each of which is assigned a code. Comments were then read
through, with the codes being applied where the issues raised in the comment were
consistent with those in the codeframe. Codes can then be analysed quantitatively to
identify the most frequently recurring areas of comment.

The codeframe is a list of the codes which represent the broad range of comments raised
by respondents. This is created by reviewing a sample of the responses and identifying
common themes, each of which is given a unique code or number.

Both the codeframe and the coding underwent a quality assurance check to ensure
consistency and accuracy throughout the process.

A full summary of the coding methodology and codeframe development is presented in
Chapter 5.

Page 22 of 151

Page 76



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

3. Effectiveness of the Consultation

The effectiveness of the methods used to publicise the consultation are assessed in this
section, looking at the number of responses received, online reach and engagement with
the materials.

Responses

A total of 1,854 surveys were completed during the consultation period. 1,819 responses
were completed through the online survey, while 35 paper copies were received.

As well as the consultation survey, 41 emails were received in the BSIP Consultation
Mailbox (and/or to a member of the project team). In addition, 25 documents were
submitted during the consultation period, in various formats, including technical reports,
signed petition documents, photographs and drawings/ sketches. These are summarised in
Chapter 7 of the report.

Table 5 below shows a breakdown of the responses received.

Table 5: Breakdown of responses

Method Number
Online survey responses 1,819
Hard copy survey responses 35
Comments via the Consultation Mailbox 41
Additional responses (written reports, 25

sketches, signed petitions)

In addition to the above, feedback was also received during the public consultation events
and focus group, as well as during meetings with stakeholders.

Survey Respondents

A combined total of 1,854 respondents submitted feedback on the BSIP proposals,
comprising 1,819 online survey responses and 35 hard copy responses. It should be noted
that questions in the survey were not ‘forced response’, meaning that respondents could
choose whether they wanted to give an answer or not. Therefore, where percentages are
used, the number of respondents to that question is also specified in the figure title or
descriptive text.

While the questions were not mandatory, they were included in the survey to allow ESCC
to seek to understand whether the profile of respondents relates to the overall profile for
the wider county. This would help ensure that a representative set of views were captured
through the survey, in line with the wider East Sussex population demographic.

Respondent Classification

Respondents were asked in what capacity they were responding to the survey, with 1,853
respondents answering this question and one respondent not responding. Of these, 95%

Page 23 of 151

Page 77



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

identified as a resident from within East Sussex - the vast majority of those that replied
(1,767 respondents). Two percent (41 respondents) responded as a business owner or
representative, one percent as a resident from outside the county (12 respondents) and
nine respondents as a representative of a local community group or residents’ association,
with three on behalf of a charity, voluntary or community sector organisation (VCS).

Figure 6: Respondent classification

A resident from within East sussex [ 1o

A business owner or representative I 41
Other, please specify below: | 21

A resident from outside the county | 12

A representative of a local community group or
residents’ association

On behalf of a charity, voluntary or community sector
organisation (VCS)

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600 1800

Age of Respondents

In terms of demographics, respondents were asked to give their age. Of those that
provided useable age information (i.e. not vague descriptors such as ‘over 50’) the
following profile was evident. The age ranges covered demonstrate a relatively broad
sample, although there is a tendency towards older respondents, with those over 55
comprising 52% of the survey responses. This is generally considered representative of the
wider East Sussex population, which has a much older age profile than the UK as a whole
(more than a quarter of the East Sussex population is over the age of 65).2

Figure 7: Age profile of respondents to the survey (n=1,366)

2%  10% 16% 21% 8%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

16 to 24 25 to 34 35t044 m45to54 m55to064 mW65to74 m75to84 m85andover

2 East Sussex Joint Strategic Needs Assessment: Population Estimates (2021)
https://www.eastsussexjsna.org.uk/topics/our-population/population-figures/population-estimates-in-east-

sussex/

Page 24 of 151

Page 78


https://www.eastsussexjsna.org.uk/topics/our-population/population-figures/population-estimates-in-east-sussex/
https://www.eastsussexjsna.org.uk/topics/our-population/population-figures/population-estimates-in-east-sussex/

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Gender

Next, respondents were asked to specify their gender, with the proportion of female
respondents (48%) being larger than the proportion of male respondents (39%). Ten
respondents described their gender as non-binary (fewer than 1% of respondents) while
12% of respondents preferred not to give details of their gender in response to this
question. This is broadly in line with the gender structure across the wider East Sussex
population, where a greater number of people identify as female (52%) compared to male
(48%)?. If we discount the respondents who did not declare their gender, a greater
proportion of women responded to the survey than men.

Figure 8: Stated gender of respondents to the survey (n=1,811)

- 12%
T~ _ 39%

Male Female = Non-binary Prefer not to say

Respondents were also asked whether their gender is the same as the one they were
registered at birth. A total of 1,781 respondents answered this, with 87% stating that it
was the same, while 12% preferred not to say. Seven respondents said that their gender
was now different to the one they were registered with at birth (<1%).

Ethnicity

Respondents were asked to give details of their ethnicity, with a large number of
respondents giving this information in an open-text format. As such, the ethnicity profile
has been grouped into ethnic categories for ease of interpretation. As can be seen in the
following chart, the vast majority of respondents were White (97.5%). The remaining
ethnic groups comprised a relatively small proportion of the overall total of respondents,
with 18 respondents identifying as being of mixed ethnicity (1.2%), while 14 respondents
identified as Asian (0.9%). Three respondents identified as Black, and three gave another
ethnicity which included Arabic and Caribbean backgrounds. Although broadly
representative of the East Sussex population - where 93.9% of the population are White -
this does indicate that minority ethnic groups were slightly under-represented in the
survey, relative to their population size.?

3 Data from 'East Sussex in Figures', using 2021 Census data.
Page 25 of 151

Page 79



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 9: Ethnic grouping of respondents to the survey (n=1,548)

0.2% -

\

0.2%

97.5%

White = Asian Black = Mixed ethnicity = Other

Sexual Orientation

When asked about their sexual orientation, 1,393 respondents gave an answer to this
question, with 94% identifying themselves as Straight / Heterosexual, four percent as Gay
or Lesbian, two percent as Bisexual and one percent as self-described. Of those that self-
described these included asexual, queer, pansexual and queries over why the question was
being asked.

Religion

In terms of religion, the largest number of respondents stated that they had no religion
(702) followed by those identifying as Christian (688). Less represented religious groups
included Buddhist (8 respondents) and those of a Philosophical belief (7 respondents). Of
those that gave ‘other’ as a response, these included responses such as Jedi, Pagan,
Jehovah’s Witness and queries over why the question was being asked.

Physical and Mental Health

Respondents were asked whether they had any physical or mental health conditions or
illnesses that had lasted or were expected to last 12 months or more. A total of 61% of the
respondents said that they did not, while 20% said that they did, and 19% preferred not to
say.

Figure 10: Any physical or mental health conditions or illnesses lasting or expected to last 12 months or more
(n=1,793)

19% 20%

Yes =No = Prefer not to say

Page 26 of 151

Page 80



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Respondents were asked to give details of the conditions mentioned in the previous
question. It was possible for respondents to select more than one response to this
question. The results shown below demonstrate that this is a physical impairment in most
cases, followed by a long-standing illness and mental health condition. Of those that
stated ‘other’ conditions, these included arthritis, heart conditions, cancer, old age,
autoimmune conditions, back injuries and COPD. Some responses also queried why the
question was being asked.

Figure 11: Specified physical or mental health conditions or illnesses lasting or expected to last 12 months or
more

Physical Impairment . 167
Long-standing illness NN 119
Mental Health condition N 74
Other NN 53
Sensory Impairment [N 35
Neurodivergent condition I 19
Learning Disability/Difficulty Il 16
Other Developmental Condition W 4

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Breakdown of Respondents by Postcode

The final question respondents were asked in terms of their demographics, was to give
their postcode, which 1,358 provided in a useable format. The first half of the postcode
data was used to determine a postcode sector which is shown in the table below. A further
54 respondents gave postcodes other than those shown below, the most prevalent of which
was BN2 (9 respondents), TN39 (8 respondents) and BN1 (5 respondents).

Table 6: Respondents from each postcode area

Postcode Area description Number
BN22 Eastbourne: Roselands, Hampden Park 447

BN23 Eastbourne: Langney, Friday Street 303

BN10 Peacehaven, Telscombe Cliffs 166

BN21 Eastbourne: Central, Kings Drive, A2270 152

BN20 Meads, East Dean, Ratton, Birling Gap 101

BN9 Newhaven, South Heighton, Piddinghoe 50

BN24 Stone Cross, Westham, Pevensey Bay, Normans Bay, Hankham 38

Page 27 of 151

Page 81



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

BN25 Seaford, Exceat, Bishopstone 27

BN26 Polegate, Wilmington, Jevington, Alfriston 20

Consultation Awareness

Respondents were asked how they had heard about the consultation. Only one response
could be selected for this question, with 1,852 respondents giving an answer to this
question. The results are presented below.

Table 7: How did you find out about this consultation?

Method Number
Social Media 1,026
Word of mouth 391
Email 196
Other 142
East Sussex Council website 44

Press Release 34
Postcard 18

In person consultation event 2

As shown, social media was the most effective means of promoting the consultation, with
1,026 respondents (55.4%) stating that they had heard about the consultation through that
means. This was followed by word of mouth (391 respondents) and email (196
respondents).

Current Travel Patterns

Prior to giving feedback on the proposed bus priority schemes, respondents were asked
about their current travel patterns. A wide range of mode options were used, with the
most frequently used modes shown in the chart below.

Page 28 of 151

Page 82



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 12: Thinking about your usual travel habits, on average, how often do you use the following methods
of transport when travelling in your local area? Most used modes

100%
0,
14% 8%

90% 24% 27%
80% 33%
o 1 45%

70%
22% 69%
P
22%
- .
7 %
1

%
23 A . T 1%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Private car —as Walking Private car —as Bus (n=1659) Bicycle Train (n=1577) Taxi—asa
a driver (n=1421) a passenger (n=1526) passenger
(n=1748) (n=1494) (n=1501)

H Five or more times a week B Three to four times a week One to two times a week

M Less frequently Never use

The results demonstrate that private car - as driver and walking are the most frequently

used modes of transport among respondents to the survey. Around a third of respondents
said that they never use the bus, while a further third do so less than one to two times a

week. Among the remaining modes, in all cases over 85% of respondents said they never
use the mode in question and are thus difficult to include in the above chart.

Feedback on the Schemes

The main part of the consultation survey presented questions on each of the seven bus
priority scheme proposals in turn.

For each scheme, a series of closed questions were asked, to gauge levels of support and
opposition. Feedback was sought on each scheme as a whole, as well as on individual
elements of the schemes, such as the proposed bus lanes or changes to bus stops.

Respondents could select which scheme they wished to comment on; they could respond
to the questions for one or multiple schemes.

A copy of the survey is provided in Appendix J.

Towards the end of the survey, one open-ended question was asked, where respondents
could provide any further comments on the BSIP Bus Priority Measures, across all packages
and schemes. The question was optional. Respondents were able to provide a qualitative,
free-text comment in response to the question. All comments have been coded and
analysed; the results are presented in Chapter 5.

Page 29 of 151

Page 83



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Chapter 4 of the report provides a summary of the quantitative feedback received on each
individual scheme proposed. These are set out below:

= Package 1: Eastbourne
King's Drive
Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout
Eastbourne Station Area
- Sovereign Harbour
= Package 2: Newhaven & Peacehaven
- Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority
- Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout
- Peacehaven A259 Corridor

Chapter 5 of the report then provides a summary of the qualitative, free-text comments
provided in response to the open-ended question of the survey.

Page 30 of 151

Page 84



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

4. Feedback on the Proposals

The Package 1 schemes are located in Eastbourne, while the Package 2 schemes span
across Newhaven and Peacehaven. A summary of the feedback received for each scheme
within the two packages is presented below.

Package 1: Kings Drive

The first section of the survey gathered feedback on the proposed improvements along
Kings Drive, which included the following:

= Implementation of bus priority measures to enhance the reliability and speed of
bus services, through the introduction of a dedicated bus lane, serving Eastbourne
District General Hospital and East Sussex College Eastbourne campus.

= Asouthbound bus lane is proposed between Decoy Drive and Rodmill roundabout.

= Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure. This would
require removal of the existing on-road cycle lanes on Kings Drive, in both
directions.

Overall levels of support for the Kings Drive proposals

The chart below shows the level of support overall for the Kings Drive proposals. As can be
seen, over half of the responses are strongly opposed to the overall proposal for Kings
Drive (53%) while 14% are strongly supportive of the overall proposed scheme.

Figure 13: Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to improve journey
times, reduce delays for buses and encourage modal shift from private car to bus along Kings Drive? (n=1,179)

14% 8% 9% 11% 6%
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
OStrongly support OSupport @ Neither support nor oppose
O Oppose @ Strongly oppose ODon’t know

Support for individual elements of the Kings Drive scheme

Respondents were subsequently asked about their attitudes towards certain key features
of the proposal, which are integral to the design. As the results indicate, for all the
potential measures proposed for the Kings Drive scheme, the larger proportion of
respondents were opposed to these elements. There was an especially opposing attitude
towards the ‘implementation of bus priority measures’ with over half of the respondents
(51%) being strongly opposed to this element of the scheme for Kings Drive.

Page 31 of 151

Page 85



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 14: To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the proposal for
Kings Drive

Associated changes and improvements to bus stop infrastructure (n=1150) 15% 13% 18% 9% 5%

A southbound bus lane between Decoy Drive and Rodmill roundabout (n=881) 16% 10% 10% 14% 7

Bg

Implementation of bus priority measures (n=1152) 14% 8% 10% 12% 5%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

OStrongly support O Support @ Neither support nor oppose @ Oppose @ Strongly oppose O Don’t know

Package 1: Seaside Corridor & Seaside Roundabout

The next section of the survey sought feedback on the proposed improvements along
Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout, which included the following elements:

= Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions on Seaside Road to improve bus
journey times.

= |mprovements for cyclists through a mix of shared-use footway/cycleway and on-
road provision along Seaside Road and St Anthonys Avenue, to connect to existing
cycle routes.

= New and upgraded pedestrian crossings.

= Traffic signal upgrades at several junctions along A259 Seaside Road, including the
Seaside/ Beamsley Road/ Whitley Road junction, where bus priority will be
provided. The pedestrian crossing on the southbound approach to the junction
would be upgraded to toucan.

= Upgrading the junction at the entrance to Lottbridge Drove Retail Park with traffic
lights.

As a result of the proposals, it is anticipated that some existing parking arrangements
along Seaside Corridor may be affected:

= Along A259 Seaside between Hydney Street and Beamsley Road southbound, the
number of on-street parking spaces would be reduced to accommodate a
dedicated bus lane.

= Along A259 Seaside between Hydney Street and Seaford Road the southbound
existing parking spaces would be removed to accommodate a new southbound bus
lane between Seaford Road and Beamsley Road.

= Along A259 Seaside between Wartling Road and Winchelsea Road northbound the
number of on-street parking spaces would be reduced to accommodate a

Page 32 of 151

Page 86



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

dedicated bus lane. This means that on the northbound approach towards Vine
Square, the number of on-street parking spaces will also be reduced.

= Northbound along the A259 Seaside between Finmere Road and Fort Road the
existing parking spaces along the northbound approach would be removed to
accommodate a new northbound bus lane between Finmere Road and Fort Road.

= Along A259 Seaside between Princes Roundabout and Queens Crescent the existing
parking spaces would be reduced along the southbound approach to accommodate
a new southbound bus lane between Princes Roundabout and Queens Crescent.

This was detailed in the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ), which can be viewed in
Appendix C.

Overall levels of support for the Seaside Corridor & Seaside Roundabout proposals

Respondents were asked to give their view on the proposed Seaside Corridor & Seaside
Roundabout bus priority measures as part of the BSIP. From the responses received, 70% of
respondents strongly opposed to the overall proposal in this area. A smaller proportion of
respondents were in support to the overall proposal (11% strongly support and 6% support).
Figure 15: Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to improve journey

times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and improve access to Eastbourne Train
Station along Seaside Corridor? (n=1,505)

29

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
OStrongly support O Support @ Neither support nor oppose
O Oppose @ Strongly oppose ODon’t know

Support for individual elements of the Seaside Corridor & Seaside Roundabout
scheme

Next, respondents were asked to give their level of support for the specific elements of
the proposals for Seaside Corridor & Seaside Roundabout. There was a high level of
opposition to the provision of dedicated bus lanes on Seaside, with 75% of respondents
strongly opposed to this. Meanwhile, the new and upgraded pedestrian crossings were
positively received - with the combined level of support for this element being 56% and
exceeding the proportion of respondents opposed to the plans.

It should be noted that one of the options ‘relocation of bus stops and improvements to
bus stop infrastructure’ was only available in the hard copy of the survey. This was due to
a printing error, whereby an older iteration of the survey was printed and shared for
completion. Therefore, the response options for this question did not match those that
were presented in the online survey.

As such, the response count for that option was only 12, and any conclusions should note
this consideration.

Page 33 of 151

Page 87



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 16: To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the proposal for
Seaside Corridor?

Signal upgrades to prioritise buses (n=1495) 13% | 12% | | 12% _
New and upgraded pedestrian crossings (n=1495) 22% | 34% | 17% |3‘}_:
Shared use cycle path and cycle improvements to connect with existing routes
13% | 15% | 16% | 9%
(n=1491)
Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions on Seaside Road (n=130% z Pg6

0% 0%

Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure (n=12) 42% | 42% | 8% q

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%  100%

OStrongly support OSupport [ Neithersupport noropposedOppose M Strongly oppose ODon’t know

Package 1: Eastbourne Station Area

The next section of the survey gathered feedback on the proposed improvements within
the Eastbourne Station Area, which included the following:

= Dedicated bus lanes and shared use cycle path along Upperton Road and Station
Parade.

= Junction upgrades, including improvements to the Station Parade/The Avenue
junction and bus priority signals and pedestrian crossings.

= Signalisation of the Station Parade/Southfields Road junction (currently
roundabout) and improved crossing facilities.

Overall levels of support for the Eastbourne Station Area proposals

Respondents were asked to give their view on the proposed Eastbourne Station Area
improvements as part of the BSIP. The proportion of opposing responses exceeds the
proportion of supportive responses, although there are still around a third of respondents
(33%) that are either supportive or strongly supportive of the overall proposal. Meanwhile,
just over half of respondents are opposed the overall Eastbourne Station Area proposal.

Figure 17: Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to improve journey
times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and improve access to Eastbourne Train
Station within the Eastbourne Station Area? (n=1047)

Page 34 of 151

Page 88



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

19% 14% 11% 10% 3%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

OStrongly support O Support @ Neither support nor oppose
O Oppose mStrongly oppose ODon’t know

Support for individual elements of the Eastbourne Station Area scheme

Next, respondents were asked to give their level of support for the specific elements of
the proposals for Eastbourne Station. As can be seen in the chart below, the dedicated bus
lanes has comparatively less support than the junction upgrades and signalisation of the
Station Parade / Southfields Road junction (replacing the existing roundabout) with
improved crossing facilities. The level of support overall for the Station Parade /
Southfields Road junction element of the proposals surpasses the level of overall
opposition - although it should be noted that the opposing responses are stronger in nature
compared to the supportive ones (31% strongly oppose compared to 20% strongly support).

Figure 18: To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the proposal for
Eastbourne Station Area?

Signalisation of the Station Paljade/ S'o'ulthﬁel_ds Road junction and improved 20% 23% 13% 8% 194
crossing facilities (n=1047)
3%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%  100%

Junction upgrades, including improvements to the Station Parade/The Avenue
junction and bus priority signals and pedestrian crossings (n=1044)

Dedicated bus lanes and shared use cycle path along Upperton Road and Station
Parade (n=1056)

OStrongly support @ Support @ Neither support nor oppose @ Oppose @ Strongly oppose O Don’t know

Package 1: Sovereign Harbour

The final scheme in the Eastbourne section of the survey gathered feedback on the
proposed improvements within Sovereign Harbour, which included the following:

= New single lane dedicated bus corridor between North Harbour and South Harbour,
which can be used in both directions through controlled traffic signals.

= Realigned shared use pedestrian and cycle route to link into the existing route
along Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay/Pacific Drive.

= Proposed landscaping improvements with planting, sheltered seating areas and
cycle parking.

= Junction alteration providing bus priority at Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay.

Page 35 of 151

Page 89



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

It is anticipated that a number of trees which run adjacent to the current footpath/cycle
path may be impacted by the proposal; this was detailed in the Frequently Asked
Questions (FAQ), which can be viewed in Appendix C.

Overall levels of support for the Sovereign Harbour proposals

Respondents were asked to give their view on the proposed Sovereign Harbour
improvements as part of the BSIP. The largest proportion of respondents were those that
are strongly opposed to the proposal (43%), while around a third of respondents were
supportive overall of the proposal either strongly supportive or supportive.

Figure 19: Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to improve journey
times, reduce delays for buses and improve active travel provisions within Sovereign Harbour? (n=949)

20% 14% 11% 9% 3%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
OStrongly support O Support @ Neither support nor oppose
O Oppose mE Strongly oppose ODon’t know

Support for individual elements of the Sovereign Harbour scheme

Respondents were asked to give their level of support for the specific elements of the
proposals for Sovereign Harbour. The proposed landscaping improvements, sheltered
seating and cycle parking were particularly supported of by the respondents. Over half of
the respondents (52%) either supported or strongly supported these proposals. The
realigned shared use pedestrian and cycle route also had a not inconsiderable 40% of
respondents in overall support of this element - although the combined opposing viewpoint
is still greater. The single lane dedicated bus corridor on the alignment of the existing
footpath/cycle path running between the South and North Harbour’s had the most
opposing responses, with half of the respondents (50%) strongly opposed to this element
being implemented as part of the BSIP. The junction upgrades to provide bus priority had
an overall proportion opposed (combined) with 55% either opposed or strongly opposed to
this element of the proposed BSIP for Sovereign Harbour.

Page 36 of 151

Page 90



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 20: To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the proposal for

Sovereign Harbour?

Junction upgrades to provide bus priority (n=938)

Proposed landscaping improvements with planting, sheltered seating areas and
cycle parking (n=940)

Realigned shared use pedestrian and cycle route to link into the existing route
along Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay/Pacific Drive (n=945)

New single lane dedicated bus corridor, which can be used in both directions
through controlled traffic signals (n=944)

3%

19%

R T e e

3%

26%

| 26% | 14%

3%

21%

| 19% | 13%

3%

19%

| 11%

10%

20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%  100%

O Strongly support O Support @ Neither support nor oppose @ Oppose  BStrongly oppose O Don’t know

Package 2: Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus

Priority

The next section of the survey dealt with the proposals for Newhaven. The survey
gathered feedback on the proposed improvements along the Newhaven Town Centre Ring

Road, which included the following:

= Bus priority measures through optimising and coordinating traffic signal timings,
ensuring that buses are given priority when navigating Newhaven Ring Road.
= Enhanced pedestrian user experience and safety through traffic signal upgrades

and improvements.

Overall levels of support for the Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road proposals

Respondents were asked to give their view on the overall proposals for introducing virtual
bus priority at the various sets of signals around the Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road.
The level of support overall (37%) and the level of opposition overall (42%) are closer in

proportion than for many of the other schemes.

Figure 21: Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to improve journey
times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and improve safety for all users along

Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road? (n=527)

22% 15% 12% 9% 9%
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
OStrongly support O Support @ Neither support nor oppose
O Oppose m Strongly oppose O Don’t know

Page 91

Page 37 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Support for individual elements of the Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road scheme

In terms of the specific elements of the Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road scheme, the
level of support for the pedestrian prioritisation and safety improvements through
junction signalisation has an overall level of support in excess of the level of overall
opposition (40% compared to 33%). Meanwhile, the other key part of the proposal for
Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road - the virtual bus priority measures - has a greater
proportion of opposing views expressed. Just over a third of respondents are strongly
opposed to this element of the Ring Road scheme, while 19% are strongly supportive.

Figure 22: To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the proposal for
Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road?

Pedestrian prioritisation and safety improvements through
prioritisation and satety imp & 22% 18% 17% 6% 10%
junction signalisation (n=518)
Virtual bus priority measures (n=522) 19% 15% 12% | 10% _E

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

OStrongly support  OSupport @ Neither support nor oppose @O Oppose  MStrongly oppose O Don’t know

Package 2: Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area & Denton
Roundabout

The second proposal in the Newhaven section of the survey gathered feedback on the
proposed improvements along Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout.
This included the following:

= Replacement of the existing mini-roundabout at the A26/Drove Road junction with
a traffic signal controlled junction.

= Reallocate existing road space to introduce an eastbound bus lane between the
A26/Drove Road junction and the A259 Drove Roundabout. Westbound traffic would
continue to use the westbound lane of Drove Road but accesses into/out of existing
retail areas along this section would become left in, left out only.

= Bus lane on the A259 westbound approach and extending around the Denton
Roundabout and alongside The Drove to the Drove roundabout.

= Eastbound bus lane between the Drove and Denton roundabouts.

= Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

= New shared use pedestrian and cycle paths, with new and upgraded pedestrian and
cycle crossings.

= Widening of southern footpath along Drove Road between McKinley Way and New
Road roundabout.

Page 38 of 151

Page 92



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

It is anticipated that a number of trees may be impacted. This was detailed in the
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ), which can be viewed in Appendix C.

Overall levels of support for the Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton
Roundabout proposals

Respondents were asked to give their view on the proposals in Newhaven for the Drove
Road, Town and Denton Roundabout areas. Overall, the largest proportion of respondents
were opposed to the proposal, with a combined 47% opposing (combined), compared to
35% supportive (combined).

Figure 23: Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to improve journey

times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and improve safety for all users along Drove
Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout? (n=502)

21% 14% 10% 8% 9%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
OStrongly support O Support B Neither support nor oppose

O Oppose mE Strongly oppose ODon’t know

Support for individual elements of the Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and
Denton Roundabout scheme

Respondents were asked to give their views on the elements of the proposal, with this
particular scheme having a large number of different elements compared to the other BSIP
schemes. The proposed mobility hub at Denton Corner has a large proportion of support,
with 39% of respondents supporting or strongly supporting the proposal, larger than the
combined 35% of respondents that were opposed to this element of the scheme. Widening
of the southern footpath along Drove Road also has a larger proportion of combined
support among respondents (37%) compared against the proportion of combined opposition
(31%).

The element with the largest proportion of opposition is for the eastbound dedicated bus
lane between The Drove and Denton roundabouts, with 44% of respondents strongly
opposed to this and a smaller proportion of respondents in support (31% overall). The
reallocation of road space also appears to have resulted in a large proportion of
opposition, with a combined 51% opposed compared to 31% in support (overall).

Page 39 of 151

Page 93



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 24: To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the proposal for
Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout?

Widening of southern footpath along Drove Road between McKinley
Way and New Road roundabout (n=503) 2B | e | — |5% 11%

New shared use pedestrian and cycle paths, with new and upgraded

- o [ [ [ ]
pedestrian and cycle crossings (n=500)
Proposed new bus mobility hub at Denton Corner serving A259 and —:
Avis Way routed services (n=502) 22 | iLz5E | 178 | it 2

Eastbound dedicated bus lane between The Drove and Denton

o o] o R + |
roundabouts (n=497)

A dedicated buslane on the A259 westbound approach and extending

around the Denton Roundabout and alongside The Drove to the Drove 21% | 12% | 8% | 8% —E

roundabout (n=497)

Reallocate existing road space to introduce an eastbound bus lane
between the A26/Drove Road junction and the A259 Drove 20% | 11% | 9% | 9% _E
Roundabout (n=499)

Replacement of the existing mini-roundabout at the A26/Drove Road o | e | pren | o _E
junction with a traffic signal controlled junction (n=504) °

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

OStrongly support  OSupport  ENeither support nor oppose O Oppose  MStrongly oppose O Don’tknow

Package 2: Peacehaven A259 Corridor

The final scheme question gathered feedback on the proposal along the Peacehaven A259
Corridor. This included the following:

= Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions of the A259 South Coast Road.
This will complement the existing bus lanes along the A259 between Peacehaven,
Telscombe Cliffs and Brighton.

= Junction upgrades, including signalisation of the A259/ Sutton Avenue junction with
pedestrian crossing facilities.

= Proposed new shared-use pedestrian/cycle path through The Dell Park.

= New and upgraded pedestrian crossings.

= Signal upgrades with bus priority at the A259 / Telscombe Cliffs Way junction.

Overall levels of support for the Peacehaven A259 Corridor proposals

The Peacehaven A259 proposals had a larger proportion of opposing responses compared to
the proportion in support. A combined 46% of respondents oppose the overall A259
proposal, while 38% are in support of the proposal (combined).

Figure 25: Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to improve journey
times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and improve safety for all users along the
Peacehaven A259 Corridor? (n=573)

Page 40 of 151

Page 94



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

23% 15%
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
OStrongly support O Support = Neither support nor oppose
O Oppose EStrongly oppose ODon’t know

Support for individual elements of the Peacehaven A259 Corridor scheme

Respondents were asked to give their views on the elements for the A259 corridor in
Peacehaven, as part of the BSIP proposals. The results are shown in the chart below and
indicate that some elements of the proposals have a substantial amount of opposition -
42% strongly opposing the provision of further bus lanes on the A259 South Coast Road,
while 41% strongly opposing the provision of junction upgrades and the signalisation of the
A259 / Sutton Avenue junction with pedestrian crossing facilities. However, the proposal
for new and upgraded pedestrian crossing facilities had a large proportion of support, with
27% strongly supportive of this element of the scheme, and this being over half of
respondents (51%) when compared with the remaining supportive responses.

Figure 26: To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the proposal for
Peacehaven A259 Corridor?

Signal upgrades with bus priority at the A259 South Coast |
Road/Telscombe Cliffs Way junction (n=573) 25 e &5 o

New and upgraded pedestrian crossings (n=573) 27% | 24% a 7%
Proposed new shared-use pedestrian/cycle path through The Dell P | P T
Park (n=569)

Improvements to the A529/Sussex Way junction through traffic
. L 21% 14% 7% 8%
signalisation (n=568)

Junction upgrades, including signalisation of the A259/Sutton Avenue P | P -
junction with pedestrian crossing facilities (n=577) °
Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions of the A259 South
et e [ oo Jon] 7 [ -~
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

OStrongly support OSupport B Neither support noroppose O Oppose B Strongly oppose O Don’t know

Page 41 of 151

Page 95



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Summary of responses to BSIP schemes

Overall, the larger proportion of respondents opposed the individual BSIP interventions
proposed in Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven. Of these, the Eastbourne Seaside
Corridor had the largest proportion of opposing responses, with 70% strongly opposing this
scheme. Meanwhile, the introduction of virtual bus priority measures on Newhaven Town
Centre Ring Road had the largest proportion of supportive respondents 37% overall,
alongside the A259 Corridor proposed bus lanes in Peacehaven (38% support overall).

It should be noted that in some cases where the proportion of combined opposing /
supporting responses are similar overall, the proportion of strongly opposing responses
generally exceeds that of the strongly supportive responses to the schemes. It is possible
therefore that the strongest views are among those that oppose the proposals.

Overall there appears to be a largely negative reaction to the proposed bus lanes within
the proposals, while proposals to improve crossings for pedestrians often had more
supportive reactions from respondents. Among the specific interventions, some findings of
note were:

e Over half of respondents support the new and upgraded pedestrian crossings on Seaside

Corridor

e Three quarters of respondents strongly oppose the dedicated bus lanes on Seaside
Road

e 52% of respondents support the proposed landscaping improvements with planting,
sheltered seating areas and cycle parking proposed as part of the Sovereign
Harbour scheme

e The dedicated bus corridor in Sovereign Harbour had half of respondents in strong
opposition

e 51% of respondents support the new and upgraded pedestrian crossings on the
Peacehaven A259 corridor

It may be possible that some respondents who are satisfied with the proposals may have
been less inclined to leave a comment, although the level of opposition in the closed
questions is consistent with the larger number of opposing comments to the open-ended
question in the survey.

Page 42 of 151

Page 96



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

5. Free Text Survey Responses

Summary of free text survey responses

One open-ended question was included within the survey, giving respondents an
opportunity to give feedback in their own words, rather than selecting clearly defined
options as for the other questions. The question asked:

Do you have any further feedback on the East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority
Measures that are being proposed?

This being a sufficiently open question that respondents could mention anything about the
proposals for Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven.

However, having an open-ended question poses a challenge when coming to the analysis of
responses and these being taken into account by ESCC. A total of 1,152 comments were
received - and a coding approach was applied to convert the large amount of qualitative
data from the free text responses, into a useable quantitative format where the most
frequently occurring issues could be identified and presented.

Approach to coding

In order to convert the free text responses into a numeric (quantitative) format from
which it would be possible to make meaningful conclusions, a coding approach was
followed.

A codeframe was developed to capture the issues expressed in the free text responses to
the open-ended question. Each thematic issue raised was assigned to a structure within
the codeframe based on sentiment - support, oppose, suggest, and concern. The
sentiments expressed in each comment were assigned numeric codes. These numeric
codes were then assigned to the comment, reflecting the issues raised in the free text
response. As a code could only be assigned to a comment once, in combination, the
analysis gives a frequency count of the most prevalent issues raised by number of
respondents. Once the coding of the responses was completed, a frequency count was
undertaken on the data to determine what issues had been raised most frequently in the
free text responses.

Results of the coding

Upon completion of the coding process, which included quality checking on the responses -
such as whether the correct codes were being applied to the free text and checking for
any mistyped codes that would not register properly in the analysis, the attention turned
to building a frequency table. This table counts the number of times a specific code
appeared within the 1,152 comments - remembering that a code could only be applied
once to a comment. As such, the number of times a code appears is the number of
respondents that raised the specific issue captured in that code. The results presented in
the section which follows are separated by sentiment and the topic area of the codes.

Supportive comments - BSIP proposals overall

The most commonly mentioned theme was supportive comments relating to the whole
BSIP Bus Priority scheme proposals (34 respondents), followed by those that felt the
proposals do not go far enough and that other areas should be included (21 respondents).

Page 43 of 151
Page 97



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Other supportive comments related to the proposed schemes being consulted upon as part

of the BSIP.

Figure 27: Frequency count of supportive comments - BSIP proposals overall

Support all schemes / entire BSIP proposal | 34
Proposals don’t go far enough / Other area should be included | 21
Support all / part of the Eastbourne scheme: Sovereign Harbour | 13
Support all / part of the Eastbourne scheme: Seaside Corridor | 13
Support all / part of the Peacehaven scheme: A259 corridor | 7
Proposals will be better for the environment / air quality | 6
Support all / part of the Eastbourne scheme: Eastbourne Station | 6
Proposals will improve connectivity / reduce severance | 5
Support all / part of the Eastbourne scheme: Kings Drive | 5
Support all / part of the Newhaven scheme: Newhaven Town... | 4
Support all / part of the Newhaven scheme: Drove Road | 3
Proposals are excellent value for money / money well spent :| 1
0 10 20 30
Support elements of BSIP proposals
In terms of the specific elements included as part of the BSIP proposals, the most
frequently occurring comment raised was support for the provision of bus lanes (25
respondents), followed by support for the cycling elements of the proposals (19
respondents).
Figure 28: Frequency count of supportive comments - support elements of BSIP proposals
Support provision of bus lanes | 25
Support cyde proposals | 19
Support traffic signals / bus priority signals | 9
Support walking proposals | 6
Support improved pedestrian crossings / signalised... | 6
0 5 10 15 20 25 30
Opposing comments - BSIP proposals overall
Opposing comments were those that came from respondents that did not support the
proposals in their response and had a negative reaction to the BSIP bus priority proposals.
Among the comments, 233 respondents made reference to opposing the Seaside Corridor
scheme in Eastbourne. This was followed by comments that the proposals would be a
waste of money and they would make no difference (160 respondents). Comments
opposing the entire BSIP scheme (i.e. all proposals) appeared in the comments of 107
respondents, while 87 respondents considered that the proposals would be worse for the
environment (including air quality).
Page 44 of 151

Page 98

40



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 29: Frequency count of opposing comments - BSIP proposals overall

Oppose all / part of the Eastbourne scheme: Seaside Corridor | NN 33
Proposals are a waste of money / wont be an improvement / wont make a... [ NN 160
Oppose all schemes / entire BSIP proposal | 107
Proposals will be worse for the environment / air quality NN S6
Proposals discriminate against car users / war on the motorist | NN 65
Oppose all / part of the Peacehaven scheme: A259 corridor | 65
Oppose all / part of the Eastbourne scheme: Kings Drive | 52
Oppose all / part of the Newhaven scheme: Drove Road [ 34
Oppose all / part of the Eastbourne scheme: Eastbourne Station [ 31
Oppose all / part of the Easthourne scheme: Sovereign Harbour [ 29
Oppose all / part of the Newhaven scheme: Newhaven Town Centre Ring... [l 18
Proposals will worsen connectivity / increase severance J] 6

0 50 100 150 200 250

Oppose elements of BSIP proposals

Among those comments relating to elements of the BSIP proposals, 248 respondents
commented that they oppose the provision of bus lanes, while 40 respondents mentioned
that they oppose the bus priority signals that form part of the BSIP. Comments opposing
the cycle element of the proposals were made by 25 respondents.

Figure 30: Frequency count of opposing comments - oppose elements of BSIP proposals

Oppose provision of bus lanes [N 248
Oppose bus priority signals N 20
Oppose cycle proposals - 25
Oppose improved pedestrian crossings - 20
Oppose walking proposals | 3

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Concerned about elements of BSIP proposals

Respondents raised concerns about the BSIP proposals, while not necessarily opposing
them. It was possible that a respondent may not be opposed to the proposals, but feels
concerned about a potential impact that these may have. These responses are therefore
treated as concerns rather than as opposing comments.

The main issue was concerns around the impact of the proposals on local businesses (364
respondents mentioned this issue in their response to the open-ended question). Other
concerns which were frequently mentioned in comments, included concerns that proposals
will increase traffic congestion (328 respondents) and that the schemes would result in
loss of parking or changes to parking provision (315 respondents).

A total of 127 respondents had concerns about the physical characteristics of the roadway,
and whether there was sufficient space for a bus lane to be introduced as part of the
scheme.

Page 45 of 151

Page 99



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 31: Frequency count of concerned comments

Concerns impact on local businesses ] 364
Concerned proposals will increase traffic congestion | 328
Concerned about changes to parking provision / loss of parking ] 315

Concerned there is insufficient space forbuslane T ] 127
Concerned new road layout will cause conflicts / safetyissues [T ] 80
Concerned about impact on access to destinations T ] 78
Concerned about safety of shared use paths / shared space T ] 49
Concerned proposals will cause traffic to use alternative routes (rat running) T 48
Concerned about loss of green space / treesas a result of the BSIP ] 43
Concerned changes to layouts will be detrimental to disabled / wheelchair users TT] 42
Concerned buslanes will be rarely used / arent needed 7] 35
Concerns over removal / changing position of busstops ] 18
Concerned bus priority measures will be misused (e.g. driving in buslanes) I 17
Concerned regarding land acquisition / compulsory purchase

1s
Concerned about noise pollution /increased noise ] 4
0

100 200 300 400

Suggested changes to BSIP

As for the concerned comments, some respondents made suggestions related to BSIP
proposals, while not being specifically supportive or opposing in their view. The
suggestions covered in this section relate to making changes to the BSIP consultation
proposals, rather than suggesting an alternative to the BSIP proposals.

A total of 18 respondents commented that traffic signals should either be removed or re-
timed in order to reduce delays. Meanwhile, 16 respondents mentioned a new location for
a pedestrian crossing and 13 respondents suggested a bus lane location that was not
currently within the BSIP proposals. A total of 12 respondents also considered that the BSIP
should include the provision of improved route information for bus services, including the
provision of Real Time Information screens. A further seven respondents commented that
they felt the bus lanes should be enforced 24 hours a day and made this suggestion in their
comments - this included using means such as CCTV monitoring.

Figure 32: Frequency count suggested changes to BSIP

Removal of traffic signals / improved signal timing to reduce delays | 18

Suggest new pedestrian crossing location | 16

Suggest bus lane (not currently in BSIP) | 13

Improved route information needed / real time information | 12

Bus lanes should be enforced / enforced 24 hours a day | 7
4

|

Bus improvements should be planned to minimise disruption

J

Improvement at Railway Crossing in Newhaven (Drove Road)

]

Suggest changes to road layout (e.g. width, parking bays, traffic...

Bus lanes should operate at peak times only

[

Suggest footways and cycleways should be shared space

o
53]

10 15 20

Page 46 of 151

Page 100



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Alternative suggestions

While respondents may not have specifically opposed the BSIP proposals, some
respondents used their free text comments to make suggestions for how the funding for
the BSIP should be spent. These can be differentiated from the suggestions above, which
are for changes or amendments to the BSIP bus priority proposals, while the alternative
suggestions shown here are for spending funds and prioritising things other than the BSIP.

This included spending the funds on alternative schemes to those proposed in the BSIP. The
most mentioned was the provision of new cycle infrastructure, which was mentioned by 28
respondents in their comments. Suggestions relating to the road network were also
mentioned - with 26 respondents mentioning junction improvements as a priority over the
BSIP and 26 respondents also suggesting that a bypass road should be developed, as an
alternative to the A27/A259 roads. Further suggested alternative priorities included
making changes to traffic flow / routing (25 respondents), which could include road
closures or changing to a one-way street, and finally, making improvements to parking
provision in the area (23 respondents)

Figure 33: Frequency count alternative suggestions (alternatives to BSIP)

[
(0.5]

Provision of new cycle infrastructure
Suggest junction improvements
Bypass road is needed (third road as an alternative to A27/A259)

M“
CA ST ¥
o D

Changes to traffic flow / routing

(W]
o

Suggest improvements to parking provision
Provision of improved walking infrastructure

=
o0

Restrict development / less housebuilding 18
Suggest traffic calming measures | NN ©
Suggest opening all bus lanes as active travel routes / Suggest cyclists... _ 6
Suggest Park & Ride service asan alternative | 4
Provide improvements to the rail service [ 4
Provide improvements to taxi services [l 2
Suggest tram system as an alternative ] 1
Suggest dedicated 'busway' (i.e. a segregated route forbuses) J] 1
Provide more segregated walking routes (e.g. footbridges / underpasses) . 1
0 10 20 30

Whilst these alternative suggestions are noted, the capital funding secured through the
East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan was specifically for bus priority schemes.
Therefore it is not available to deliver these other suggested schemes.

Bus services / service routing

While bus services are outside the remit of the BSIP bus priority consultation, they are
related in that the services will make use of the improved bus priority infrastructure. As
such, these have been captured during the coding exercise. The most common comment
by respondents was that the existing bus services need to be improved - which was
captured at an aggregated level and was mentioned by 138 respondents. Improvements to
existing services (where a route was mentioned) was in the comments of 47 respondents in
answer to the open-ended question.

Page 47 of 151

Page 101



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Figure 34: Frequency count of comments relating to bus services / service routing

Criticism of existing bus service / existing bus services are poor | 138

Suggest improvement to existing service | AT

More reliable / punctual bus services needed 33
More frequent bus service needed / more buses needed | 28
More regular pattern of service / avoid long gaps in timetable | 15

Suggest new service :l 10
More evening services needed _] 7
Improved integration (with rail services) :| 6

Improved integration (between buses)

Decarbonise the bus fleet (electric buses, hydrogen buses)

ds

More weekend services needed ] 4

12

Bring buses under council control ] 2
0

20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

As part of the BSIP funding secured from Government, significant investment has been
made to improve the frequency of daytime and introduce new evening and weekend
services in the county. These service improvements came into effect at the end of July
2023 will run to March 2026. Further details are available on the County Council website -
Improvements to Bus Services | East Sussex County Council.

Bus costs / fares

As above, bus fares are outside of the BSIP bus priority proposals. However, due to the
related nature - these have been captured in the coding and are shown in the chart below.
A total of 26 respondents commented that fares need to be reduced, while a further two
respondents mentioned that the £2 flat bus fare which was in effect at the time of the
consultation should be retained. Further comments included the provision of more
concessionary fares for older people and also for younger people.

Figure 35: Frequency count of comments relating to bus costs / bus fares

Fares need to be reduced / cheaper tickets | 26
Retain £2 bus fare / concemed about loss fare ] 2
More concessionary fares (Older persons) ] 2
More concessionary fares (Children / students) ] 2
Ticketing needs to be simplified ] 1
0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Following the end of the consultation, the Government have confirmed that the £2 flat
bus fare will be extended through to the end of 2024. In addition, as part of the revenue
element of the Bus Service Improvement Plan, a range of lower bus fares have been
introduced which will be in place until March 2025. Further information is available on
the County Council website - Lower fares on East Sussex bus services | East Sussex County
Council.

Bus infrastructure

A total of 13 respondents mentioned the need for improved access to bus stops
(suggesting that they are currently isolated or hard to reach). Seven respondents also

Page 48 of 151

Page 102


https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan/improvements-to-bus-services
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan/lower-fares-on-east-sussex-bus-services
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan/lower-fares-on-east-sussex-bus-services

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

commented about the need for improvements to bus shelters, while five respondents
mentioned the need for bus laybys (i.e. to move buses out of traffic lanes rather than
stopping in the road and holding traffic behind them).

Figure 36: Frequency count of comments relating to bus infrastructure

Improved user access to bus stops | 13

Improvements to existing bus shelters | 7

More bus laybys needed ] 5
More space on buses for wheeled users ] 3

Suggest relocation of bus stop / better location ] 1

0 2 4 b g 10 12 14

Negative impact on protected characteristics

Monitoring and mitigating the potential negative impact on those with shared protected
characteristics is a priority for ESCC. As such the coding included a section where
comments referencing any negative impacts on these groups could be captured. As can be
seen, the main negative impact was perceived to be against young people (29
respondents), while 21 respondents commented that the BSIP bus priority proposals would
have a negative impact on those with a disability and 21 said the same of older people.
With the exception of a negative impact on carers or care-givers (5 respondents
mentioning this in their comment) no other protected characteristics was specifically
mentioned. proposals.

Figure 37: Frequency count of comments specifying a negative impact on protected characteristics

Negative impact on young people I 29
Negative impact on those with a disability T 21
Negative impact on older people _ 21

Negative impact on carers / care givers [ 5
Negative impact on LGBT+ community
Negative impact on religious people
Negative impact on ethnic minority groups

Negative impact on those that have undergone / are undergoing...

o o o o o

Negative impact on those with young babies / pregnant

Other codes

The final section of the codeframe was for those codes that related to wider issues being
pursued by ESCC as well as comments on matters such as the consultation itself. A total of
119 respondents made comments that were critical of ESCC (although these did not
necessarily relate to the BSIP). Other frequently raised issues in comments included
criticism of road maintenance (98 respondents) and criticism of the consultation (i.e. not
being listened to / a box ticking exercise / lack of advertising) which was raised in 83
respondent’s comments.

Other matters of interest for ESCC which emerged from these coded comments in the
‘other’ category included suggestions from six respondents to improve the A259 at

Page 49 of 151

Page 103



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Rottingdean and the suggestion to improve the C-class ‘C7’ road (9 respondents) between
Lewes and Newhaven. Both are currently outside the scope of the BSIP Bus Priority
Measures and therefore not a suggested change in that coding category.

Figure 38: Frequency count of other codes

Criticism of ESCC ] 119

Criticism of road management / maintenance ] 98

Criticism of consultation (e.g. wont be listened to / lack of advertising) | 83
48

|

Question about the proposals (need for further information)

[y
w

Concerns of cycling behaviour

Comment out of scope / not related to BSIP proposals

gl

=
-~

No comment / nothing to add

L

Criticism of guestionnaire or consultation materials (including website)

Suggest improvements to C7 road

L

(S I T N

Suggest improvements to A259 at Rottingdean
Criticism of UK Government

Criticism of green agenda / Net Zero target
Concerns of bus driving standards

Ensure information is accessible to those without computer / smartphone

=

B = S Y

Consider needs of visitors / tourists {e.g. bus service info, walking and...

o

50 100 150

Page 50 of 151

Page 104



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

6. Active Travel Focus Group Responses

Below are the summarised responses and key themes from the active travel focus group
that took place on 12 September 2023. Technical questions and points raised have been
passed back to the design team for consideration.

Package 1 - Eastbourne

King’s Drive, Upperton

= Recognise that this is a key bus corridor with full support for the proposed bus
lane.

= Stated that Kings Drive is also a key cycle corridor.

= Concerns raised over the reduction in carriageway width resulting in the removal of
the advisory cycle lanes in the northbound direction.

= Support for southbound cyclists accessing the bus lane.

= Additional provision for cyclists recommended. Would like to see dedicated cycle
infrastructure.

= Concern expressed over Park Avenue and Kings Drive junction as every arm is an
LCWIP route and it is currently difficult to cross. Concern over the difficulty
crossing increasing with the addition of a bus lane.

Eastbourne Station Area
= Support the proposals.

Seaside Corridor and Roundabout

= Do not support current proposals.

= Safety concerns raised with lack of bus lane continuity due to challenges for
cyclists integrating back into general traffic.

= Expressed that shared use paths are not workable as there is a lack of priority at
the side roads.

= Support the Toucan crossings at Lottbridge Drove/ Seaside Roundabout.

= |mportant that there is access across Langney Rise to the harbour.

Sovereign Harbour
= Both paths are required. Concerns that the current shared path would become a
bus lane, but a new shared path would not be reinstated if third party land cannot
be acquired.
= |mportant that a cycle route is accessible during construction.
= Suggest that an improved crossing point on Daytona Quay and Atlantic Drive would
be beneficial.

Package 2 - Newhaven and Peacehaven

Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority
= Pedestrian crossing timings need to be considered carefully.
= Cycling provision is adequate providing you can get across the road.

Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout
= Concern over the crossing/ island being wide enough for cyclists.

Page 51 of 151

Page 105



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

/. Email, Written Responses &
Documents Submitted

Throughout the consultation period, various additional responses and other documents
were submitted to ESCC in response to the proposals. This included letters, reports from
stakeholders,, as well as drawings and sketches with suggested alternative proposals. A
total of 25 documents were submitted during the consultation period, from various
organisations and individuals. This included responses from bus operators, businesses,
transport user groups, City/Borough/District Councils, Town/Parish Councils, individual
residents and resident associations.

The majority of these additional responses were received via the BSIP Consultation
Mailbox. However, several documents were also handed to the project team during the
public drop-in events.

A summary of the key themes, general sentiment and issues raised among the responses is
provided below. Technical questions and points raised have been passed back to the
design team for consideration.

General Feedback/ Comments

= General support for the overall aims of the BSIP proposals. Support ESCC’s ambition
to improve bus infrastructure and reliability.

= The introduction of bus lanes and bus priority measures are long overdue and could
help encourage fewer car trips.

= Suggestion that ‘traffic reduction’ should be included as one of the scheme
objectives.

= Several of the responses suggested that cyclists should be able to travel in the
proposed bus lanes.

= Concerns raised that the shared-use paths will create conflict between pedestrians
and cyclists.

= General support for bus priority signals, though some concerns about how these
measures can be difficult to introduce in practice.

= Support for the schemes being consulted on at an early stage, as this allows
scrutiny of the proposals. Despite this, one respondent commented that there
seems to be very limited awareness of the proposals.

= Support for the 24/7 operation of bus lanes.

= Suggestion for enforcement measures e.g. bus lane cameras. Other respondents
queried how enforcement would occur.

= Request measures are taken to minimise disruption and rat-running during
construction of the schemes.

= One group raised concern that there is no evidence to suggest that the proposals
will actually increase the volume of bus users.

= Suggestion that bus stop configuration should be considered to ensure buses are
able to exit lay-bys efficiently.

= Any trees that are lost must be replanted.

Page 52 of 151
Page 106



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Package 1

Kings Drive

General support for the proposed bus lanes in this area.

Suggestion that greater provision is needed in this area for cyclists, including a
shared-use path on Kings Drive.

One group suggested a ‘cyclops’ cycle route design should be introduced at Rodmill
Roundabout. The same group suggested that Park Avenue should have a toucan
crossing.

Suggestion that the southbound bus stop outside Eastbourne District General
Hospital is already well-placed and should not be relocated.

Some concerns that the removal of right turn waiting pockets to accommodate the
new bus lane (e.g. Regents Place) may lead to blocking and delays for general
traffic.

Suggestion that the bus stop on Decoy Drive is moved around the corner so it picks
up additional services coming in from the north on Kings Drive. This will also
reduce the large distance between stops on Kings Drive.

Some suggestions that the road north of Willingdon Roundabout should also be
considered for bus infrastructure measures, particularly between the A27 Polegate
junction and the Huggetts Lane signalised crossroads.

Seaside Corridor & Seaside Roundabout

General support for improved pedestrian crossing facilities in this area.

One respondent expressed support for the shared-use path on the northern side of
the carriageway (east of Lottbridge Drove), but suggested that the proposed
shared-use path on the southern side of the carriageway should be removed,
allowing for a pedestrian-only route.

Concerns raised over the impact that the new bus lane would have on businesses in
this area due to the loss of parking, which was perceived to create an issue for
loading and customer parking. Suggestion that there is insufficient space for
customers to park on side streets.

Concerns also raised over the impact on local businesses during construction.
Responses from several local businesses noted that the proposed bus lanes are
heading away from the town centre and are therefore unsupportive of local
retailers.

One business felt that the proposed bus lanes on either side of the road would
make the general traffic lanes feel very narrow, which would deter customers.
Suggestion that the provision for right-turners at the Seaside/ Whitley Road
junction is insufficient and would lead to delays. The separation of northbound and
southbound signal phases was not welcomed. One group suggested terminating the
bus lanes further from the give way line.

Consideration should be given to a right-turn lane at the Channel View Road/
Churchdale Road junction.

Suggestion that the route 99 bus should be able to stop at Langney Roundabout.
Some concerns raised about installing traffic signals at the Lottbridge Drive retail
park, as this could further complicate the queuing back over the access that

Page 53 of 151

Page 107



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

already happens from Seaside roundabout during busy periods. Consideration to be
given to having the retail park left in/left out to simplify current arrangement and
remove hazard of turning over multiple lanes of oncoming traffic.

Eastbourne Station Area

General support for the proposals in this area.

Suggestion for 20mph speed limit on Southfields Road to improve safety.

One bus operator raised concern over the proposal to replace the Southfields Road
junction with traffic lights. It was noted that this junction currently flows well, and
the introduction of signals may not benefit buses. This was echoed by another
respondent who noted that the roundabout currently operates sufficiently, and
there is no need to signalise.

Concerns raised over the length of the southbound bus lane. Suggestion that it is
too short and may cause buses to be stuck in traffic before they can actually enter
the bus lane. Suggestion it could be extended to Hartfield Road providing a longer
route to bypass traffic.

Proposals at Terminus Road and Grove Road/ Southfield Road junction were
perceived to be problematic, as the loss of right-turn lane onto Southfield Road
would lead to significant queueing.

Concerns that potential separate phasing to southeast-bound and northwest-bound
traffic signals would reduce junction capacity and negatively impact buses.
Suggestion that a new pedestrian crossing facility should be considered at the
Station Parade/ Southfields Road junction.

Suggestion that the existing southeast-bound bus stop serving the station is too
short, meaning buses block the carriageway. It may also be difficult for buses to
exit the stop at the end of the lane with adjacent traffic moving at the same time.
Suggestion that the northbound bus lane on Station Parade is unnecessary.

Sovereign Harbour

Concerns raised over the proposed rerouting of the current cycle path, which forms
part of the National Cycle Route 21. Suggestion that this rerouting should be
delivered in consultation with Sustrans. The new route should be LTN 1/20
compliant.

One group requested assurance that the realigned path will be completed and
operational before the existing path is closed.

Suggestion that all junctions along the shared-use path should operate with priority
for pedestrians and cyclists.

Package 2

Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority

Concern that the proposals in this area do not consider the impact of the
Newhaven swing-bridge operation on traffic flow.

One respondent requested that the section of the Ring Road between the swing
bridge and Bridge Street is returned to a filter lane system, as existed in previous

Page 54 of 151

Page 108



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

years. The traffic lights along this section noted to be the primary cause of
congestion on the ring road.

= Suggestion that the existing signalised pedestrian crossing near the A259 junction
with South Road should be removed, as there is another set of pedestrian signals
nearby as well as an underpass.

= Suggestion that a bus lane should be provided between Riverside North and the
South Way bus stop, and between South Road and Elim Church. This would improve
safety.

= One respondent noted that the Consultation Map on page 20 of brochure (Map 11)
is wrong, and that traffic signals at the junction of Brighton Road/ Ring Road (top
of High Street) are not junction signals, only pedestrian crossings.

= One group were sceptical of the proposed virtual bus priority measures, suggesting
that buses in one of the traffic streams at North Lane will be delayed as a result.

= Concern about delays experienced by pedestrians as a result of virtual bus priority
measures.

Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout

= General support for bus lanes in this area.

= Suggestion that the proposed bus lanes along the route should be extended. In
particular, several respondents raised that westbound bus lane on Drove Road
should start further back on Seaford Road. Other respondents reiterated this,
noting that the bus lane should be extended further south from Denton Roundabout
in order for it to be effective.

= Some concern that the proposals will exacerbate existing issues of traffic
congestion in Newhaven, which would have a direct impact on air quality and the
health of residents.

= Some respondents considered the proposed eastbound bus lane on A259 to be
unnecessary, as traffic in this direction is not perceived to be an issue.

= Several respondents (including a Bus Operator) suggested that new bus stops should
be provided on A259 and Drove Road to provide better access to the Newhaven
Sainsburys. Some concern that the relocated pedestrian crossings would be harder
to access from Sainsburys.

= Concern that the proposed new crossing facilities west of the Denton Roundabout
will force bus users to walk a further distance to access different bus stops/
services. Risk that bus users may cut across the busy & complicated traffic junction
as a quicker and more direct alternative.

= Query over whether the 'ambience’ of the new bus stops could be improved.

= Suggestion that the bus shelters at the retail park would need to be protected from
vandalism.

= |t was suggested that the key problem for buses in this area is the swing bridge and
railway crossing, which the proposals do not address. One respondent suggested
that a bus lane and gate should be considered on the westbound slip road
approaching the swing bridge. This will get buses to the front of the queue and
improve journey times. The same respondent noted that the proposed bus gate on
Drove Road will have limited benefit for buses when the swing bridge opens due to
the extent of queuing.

Page 55 of 151

Page 109



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

= The proposed layout of Denton Corner was generally welcomed, but some queries
raised over how bus services 12X and 13X could be incorporated.

= A number of comments were raised regarding the eastbound bus lane on Drove
Road. It was noted that this is typically free-flow so buses are not delayed. The
proposed measures could lead to those exiting Lidl car park and wishing to turn
right, now getting stuck when westbound traffic queues at the level crossing or
swing bridge.

= Comments have also been made regarding poor lane discipline on the westbound
approach to the McDonalds (Drove) roundabout with some motorists ignoring lane
marking and forcing unsafe merges after passing through roundabout and heading
towards the flyover. Suggestion that the markings be improved, or exit reduced to
a single lane.

Peacehaven A259 Corridor

= General support for further bus lanes along A259.

= |t was frequently suggested that the length of the bus lanes in this area should be
extended. In particular, a number of respondents commented that the proposed
bus lane on Telscombe Cliffs Way is too short and should be extended. Suggestion
that the current proposal will not be beneficial as buses are likely to be stuck in
traffic before they can enter the bus lane. Concerns also raised that the proposed
signal phasing at the junction could be counter-productive and actually worsen
delay.

= Concerns raised over the proposal to convert the Sutton Avenue Roundabout into a
signalised junction. Several respondents commented that the roundabout currently
operates adequately with no issues, and that the proposal would increase delays
for buses and general traffic. Suggestion that a better alternative would be to
retain the roundabout and introduce pedestrian crossings nearby.

= Asigned petition was issued in support of improved safe pedestrian crossings at the
A259/ Sutton Avenue roundabout. General support for the crossings despite
concerns raised that the proposal to convert the junction to a roundabout would
increase delays.

= One respondent noted that consultation maps 14 and 15 do not show a continuous
length of road on A259 and queried whether the section between Central Avenue
and Hoddern Avenue (noted to be approximately 500m) was omitted by mistake.

= Concerns that the new bus lane outside The Dell Park would not improve bus
reliability and would bring road fumes & emissions closer to the children’s play
area.

= Concerns raised over the loss of green space in The Dell Park to provide the shared-
use path. Potential covenant issues with land at The Dell Park were also noted.

= Suggestion that there should be a fence separating The Dell Park from the proposed
shared-use path, as the current proposal could create conflict between the
different user groups (e.g. cyclists, dog walkers in the park, children).

= A comment was made that westbound traffic queues and delay originate from the
Longridge Avenue junction and that should be further investigated for
improvements.

Page 56 of 151

Page 110



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

= One respondent requested that the bus stops and pedestrian crossing at the A259/
Roderick Avenue junction are reconfigured and upgraded, to provide a toucan
crossing in-between the eastbound and westbound bus stops.

= One respondent suggested that parking restrictions should be implemented at
specific junctions like Ambleside Avenue/St. Peter’s Avenue and St. Peter’s Avenue/
Telscombe Cliffs Way.

= A number of people noted that when the A259 becomes congested, many motorists
use side roads to the north to bypass queues and force their way back in further
downstream. This exacerbates current issues. Suggestions that some of the side
roads considered for one-way regulations to eliminate the problem.

= Suggestion that bus lay-by east of Roderick Avenue is moved to the west of the
signalled crossing as currently buses struggle to exit as either stopped by
continuous vehicle movements or the change of the crossing. By having the layby to
the west of the crossing, this would create gaps to enable buses to exit.

= Some comments were made that the bus priority facility at Telscombe Cliffs Way
was not fit for purpose as didn’t provide priority so buses on approach move into
the general traffic lane instead to pass through the signals. Any new/revised signals
need to address this problem.

BSIP Consultation Mailbox

Throughout the consultation period, the BSIP Consultation Mailbox was monitored for
incoming emails and queries on the proposals. As detailed earlier in the report, 41 emails
were received during the consultation period.

The emails varied in nature; the majority raised specific questions or queries on the
proposals, while others included requests for hard copies of the materials and/or
consultation survey.

ESCC ensured that a member of the project team provided a response to all emails
received. This could include, for example, responding to a particular technical query and
providing clarification on a specific element of the proposal, or, if requested, sending out
hard copies of the consultation brochure and survey for respondents to complete.

A high-level summary of the emails received is provided below.

= Queries over the rationale behind the proposals. For example:
- What data/ modelling has been undertaken to back up the proposals?
- What are the benefits of moving bus stops?
- What other options have been considered?
- Projected journey time savings for buses?
= Queries/ questions on specific proposals. For example:
- Will the bus lanes be accessible to cyclists?
- Will the bus lanes operate during peak hours only, or at all times?
- Where is the space for the new bus lanes coming from? Will the footways be
narrowed?
- What is meant by ‘dedicated bus lane’?
= Queries over the impact of the proposals. For example:
- Noise and air quality impacts
- Cost of the proposals

Page 57 of 151

Page 111



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

- Impact of construction
- Impact on green spaces/ grass verges
- Removal of right turn pockets

= A number of the emails expressed support for the proposed changes.

= Some opposition to the schemes, particularly the proposed bus lane along Seaside.
Concerns raised by a number of business owners along the route and a lack of
awareness about the public consultation.

= Several requests for hard copies/ printed versions of the consultation materials
(brochure, feedback survey, schematic drawings).

= A number of emails commented on the existing bus services (e.g. timetabling and
routing), despite falling outside the scope of the BSIP Bus Priority Measures
consultation.

The BSIP consultation mailbox (bsipconsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk) will remain available
after the close of the consultation for those who have further questions on scheme
proposals or the next steps and these will be answered by the County Council in
accordance with the East Sussex County Council Customer Service Standards.

Page 58 of 151

Page 112


mailto:bsipconsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

8. Key Themes & Design Considerations

ESCC has considered all comments received through the consultation. This section
summarises the key themes that emerged from the feedback received in relation to the
proposals, that has been summarised throughout this report. This includes feedback that
was received via the online consultation survey, during stakeholder meetings, the active
travel focus group, and via email/ other written responses.

Table 8 overleaf sets out responses to the key themes that were raised multiple times.
These themes have been generated based on the coding exercise summarised in Chapter
5, feedback received during the active travel focus group (summarised in Chapter 6), as
well as the key themes emerging from email and written responses received (Chapter 7).
We have also sought to address other matters that were raised by organisations and key
stakeholders, where appropriate, such as during the consultation briefing sessions and
stakeholder meetings.

The range of comments made under each theme are reflected in the table, alongside
ESCC’s response to each theme.

It is important to note that many of the issues raised require information that would only
be available once more detailed design work has been carried out. The scheme is still at
an early feasibility stage, and it is likely that further work will be undertaken to progress
the proposals to the detailed design stage, based on the feedback received during the
consultation.

Page 59 of 151
Page 113



vTT abed

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Table 8: Key Themes, Design Considerations and ESCC Response

Theme

General support for
the BSIP schemes

General opposition for
the BSIP Schemes

Nature of comments

Agreement with the
proposals

Proposals are needed

Support for making bus
journeys quicker and
more reliable

Proposals are a waste of
money.

Proposals will worsen
traffic congestion.

ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

We welcome these comments in support of the schemes. They have been noted as
part of the process to determine the next steps and future decisions on the various
schemes within the BSIP bus priority package.

The proposals form part of the East Sussex BSIP, which sets out our plans to improve
bus services across the county. We want to ensure that East Sussex residents and
visitors enjoy the highest possible quality bus services that provide a frequent and
comprehensive choice, reduce congestion and make a positive contribution to
better air quality and decarbonisation.

The BSIP focusses on enhancing the bus network within East Sussex to complement
and support wider transport investment across the country, encouraging a
sustainable mode shift towards bus usage.

In September 2022, ESCC was allocated £41.4 million of Government funding
towards the delivery of its BSIP. Of this, £22.1m was for capital with the majority
(E18.5m) specifically allocated towards the development and delivery of bus
priority measures in the county. In identifying the potential schemes that went to
public and stakeholder consultation, we prioritised those which would generate the
greater user benefits for bus passengers.

The introduction of the bus priority proposals alongside the service frequency
improvements and fare schemes funded through the Bus Service Improvement Plan
funding secured from Government, are collectively seeking to encourage greater
levels of bus use. In turn, this will help to reduce congestion and traffic flow, as
well as improve air quality & reduce transport generated carbon emissions which is

Page 60 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures
Theme Nature of comments ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

the highest contributor in the county. In developing and introducing any bus priority
measures, we recognise that we also need to balance the needs and potential
competing demands arising from other road users.

As we move through different stages of the project, including the design phases, we
will be conducting further traffic modelling to better understand any potential
congestion issues and ensure the proposals address them.

Proposals are not needed  In developing the BSIP, the County Council carried out a survey in summer 2021 to
understand what improvements bus users would want to see introduced on the bus
network. One of the highest priorities identified was improving the punctuality and
reliability of bus services across the county.

The potential bus priority measures were identified from an assessment of bus
service data provided by the bus operators to determine where the key punctuality
and reliability hotspots were on the network, as well as a review of
previous/current multi-modal corridor studies which had considered bus priority
schemes within them. A subsequent high level desktop assessment of these
potential locations was then undertaken to determine whether bus priority
measures could reasonably and physically be introduced.

GTT abed

Suggestion that the Further measures should The schemes will deliver a series of localised improvements, focusing on enhancing
proposals don’t go far  be introduced / other bus reliability in Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven, which have been
enough areas should be included  identified as priority areas for investment through the BSIP.

in the BSIP

The potential bus priority measures were identified from an assessment of bus
service data provided by the bus operators to determine where the key punctuality
and reliability hotspots were on the network, as well as a review of
previous/current multi-modal corridor studies which had considered bus priority
schemes within them. A subsequent high level desktop assessment of these

Page 61 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Theme

Package 1: Kings Drive,

91T abed

Nature of comments

Support for the proposed
bus lanes

Concerns there is not
enough space to provide
the bus lanes.

ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

potential locations was then undertaken to determine whether bus priority
measures could reasonably and physically be introduced.

Following the outcomes of the feasibility study, a prioritisation exercise was
undertaken in June 2023 to ensure the packages of schemes included in the
consultation, presented the highest benefits in each area, were affordable within
the funding available and could be delivered in line with the Government’s
Department for Transport spend and delivery timescales of March 2025.

The need for any additional measures to be introduced across other areas of the
county will form part of ongoing development of the East Sussex BSIP and under the
auspices of the draft Local Transport Plan 4 (currently out to public and stakeholder
consultation until end February 2024) and would be subject to future funding
becoming available.

We welcome these comments in support of the scheme. They have been noted as
part of the process to determine the outcome taken forward.

At present, there are advisory on-road cycle lanes running in both directions on the
section of Kings Drive between Decoy Drive roundabout and Rodmill roundabout. It
is proposed to re-design the existing road carriageway layout and remove the
existing on road cycle lanes to introduce the southbound bus lane, as well as
retaining two lanes for traffic.

The current proposals are designed to fit within the current highway boundary and
will not negatively impact residents in terms of restricted access to their properties
and public services requiring access.

Page 62 of 151



/1T abed

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Theme

Package 1: Seaside
Corridor & Seaside
Roundabout

Nature of comments

More is needed in this
area for cyclists

Oppose the dedicated bus
lanes on Seaside Road

Bus lanes will make it less
safe (particularly near the
schools)

Concerns over the impact
of the proposals on local
businesses and residents
due to the loss of parking

Concerns raised over the
construction impact of

ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

At present, there are advisory on road cycle lanes (delineated by the broken white
line) running in both directions on the section of Kings Drive between Decoy Drive
roundabout and Rodmill roundabout. It is proposed to re-design the existing road
carriageway layout and remove the existing on road cycle lanes to introduce the
southbound bus lane as well as retaining two lanes (north and southbound) for
traffic. In lieu of the current on road facilities for cyclists, we are continuing to
consider alternative off-road options for cycling alongside this section on Kings
Drive.

Following the consultation and analysis of the feedback, we are reviewing the
proposals along Seaside Corridor. Once more detailed designs have been developed,
a full Road Safety Audit (RSA) would be undertaken to ensure the safety of all road
users.

The updated designs may still affect on street parking levels in this area and we
will take into consideration the consultation responses noting the impact of
removing parking.

At this early design stage, it is anticipated that some existing on road parking
arrangements may be affected by some of the proposed schemes. This specifically
includes a potential net loss of 152 parking spaces to accommodate the currently as
proposed bus lanes along Seaside Corridor/Seaside Roundabout.

In response to consultation feedback, and as schemes progress to subsequent design
stages, opportunities would be explored on maximising the retention of existing on
street parking whilst introducing the bus priority measures, and/or provide include
alternative provision.

As the scheme designs are currently at a feasibility stage, Construction and Traffic
Management Plans have not yet been developed. These would be developed at the

Page 63 of 151



81T abed

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Theme

Package 1: Eastbourne
Station Area

Package 1: Sovereign
Harbour

Nature of comments

the schemes, particularly
for businesses on Seaside

General support for
proposals in this area

Bus lanes should be LTN
1/20 complaint

Concerns over the loss of
the existing cycle route
on the Waterfront to
accommodate the bus
lane between Atlantic
Drive/ Harbour Quay

ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

detailed design stage and prior to construction once a decision is made over which
scheme(s) to progress.

The extent of the likely disruption caused by construction will be assessed, and
priority will be given to minimising overall delays and disruption for all road users.
Access to businesses will sought to be maintained throughout the construction of
the schemes with further engagement on the traffic management, access
arrangements etc taking place prior and during the construction.

We welcome these comments in support of the scheme. They have been noted as
part of the process to determine the outcome taken forward.

In line with LTN 1/20 guidance, the minimum width of a bus lane that is safe to be
shared with cyclists, is 4 metres. Where possible, we have tried to accommodate
bus lanes of this width within the proposals, to enable cyclists to safely use them.
However, there may be certain locations where this has not been possible due to
local road width constraints. Where the bus lanes are proposed to be open for
cyclists to use, signage will be installed to make it clear that cyclists can travel in
them.

As the proposals are still at a feasibility stage they will be further refined at
subsequent design stages.

Within the current proposal, the introduction of the bus gate between South and
North Harbour would be provided along the alignment of the existing
footway/cycleway between the Boatyard and back of the Crumbles Retail Park. The
existing service road at the back of the units at Crumbles Retail Park would also be
realigned with a new dedicated footway/cycle route provided alongside. This
proposal would require some additional (third party) land take and remains subject
to discussion/negotiation with the landowner.

Page 64 of 151



6TT abed

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Theme

Package 2: Newhaven
Town Centre Ring Road
Virtual Bus Priority

Package 2: Drove Road,
Newhaven Town Area &
Denton Roundabout

Nature of comments

Support for pedestrian
priority and safety
improvements

Concerns the proposals
will increase congestion in
an area that already
experiences delays

Proposals will worsen
traffic congestion

Suggest new bus stops
should be installed near
Sainsburys

Eastbound bus lane will
make it unsafe for people
entering/ exiting
Sainsburys

ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

We will make every effort to ensure that the new shared-use path is introduced
before the existing cycle route is removed, to ensure that active travel
infrastructure in this locality is not compromised.

We welcome these comments in support of the scheme. They have been noted as
part of the process to determine the outcome taken forward.

The current proposal is designed to tackle the challenges faced by buses joining and
moving around the Ring Road. As we progress to the next design stages we will
conduct a comprehensive traffic modelling exercise comprising detailed modelling
and assessment of traffic flows to better understand the impacts on various modes
of transport, including buses and cars on the Ring Road.

By improving bus journey times and reliability, and improving facilities for
pedestrians and cyclists, it is anticipated that the scheme will result in greater
uptake these modes and reduce car travel, resulting in reduced congestion and
improved air quality.

Detailed traffic modelling will be undertaken at the next design stage to fully
understand the impacts that the proposals would have on traffic flows in the
vicinity of the scheme to help inform and refine the scheme design.

The comment is noted and the need for bus stops in this location would be
considered as part of the next design stage.

Any scheme designs undergo a full Road Safety Audit (RSA) at all design (preliminary
and detailed design) stages to ensure the facilities as designed are considered safe
for all road users.

Page 65 of 151



02T abed

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Theme

Package 2: Peacehaven
A259 corridor

Nature of comments

Support for new and
upgraded pedestrian
crossings

Concerns over the
proposal to replace the
Sutton Avenue
Roundabout with traffic
signals

Concerns over the shared-
use path through The Dell
Park

Queries over journey time
savings for buses

ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

The RSA would consider any potential visibility impacts of the bus lane for vehicles
entering or exiting the supermarket.

We welcome these comments in support of the scheme. They have been noted as
part of the process to determine the outcome taken forward.

The conversion of the existing roundabout into a signalised junction would make
cycling and walking a safer and easier option for travel, as well as improving bus
reliability and reducing delays for buses on the approaches and through the
junction. This would also implement safe crossing facilities for pedestrians and
cyclists wanting to cross the road.

The scheme remains subject to refinement at the next design stage and all
consultation feedback will be considered to help shape any future decisions for the
scheme and the resultant proposals.

To accommodate the proposed bus lane in this area, we are proposing a new
shared-use pedestrian and cycle route through The Dell Park which will be subject
securing third party land which is currently outside the highway. As we proceed
with the design, we will also explore how this new path can connect with wider
cycling networks, making it easier for cyclists to access other areas in the vicinity.

We have no current plans to impact the playground in The Dell. Preserving the
playground is a priority for us, and we understand its importance to the community.
If any potential impact arises in the future, we will work diligently to find ways to
minimise any effects.

The journey time savings assessment for the Peacehaven A259 corridor proposal has
identified a journey time saving of 124 seconds per vehicle for westbound buses in

Page 66 of 151



T2T abed

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures
Theme Nature of comments ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

the morning peak, 25 seconds in the pm peak and 21 seconds in the interpeak (the
period between the am and pm peak hours).

For eastbound buses, the journey time saving provided by the introduction of the
bus priority measures are 26 seconds in the am peak, 47 seconds in the pm peak
and 51 seconds in the interpeak.

Comments on the Shared-use paths will LTN 1/20, the government design guidance for cycle infrastructure states that
active travel elements  create conflict between shared-use provision for pedestrians and cyclists may be deemed acceptable in
of the BSIP pedestrians and cyclists certain situations, including where options to use the carriageway are unworkable.

Due to width constraints in certain locations, and to minimise private land take,
much of the pedestrian and cycle provision as part of these schemes are proposed
to be shared-use. New signage will be installed where shared-use paths are being
introduced, clearly indicating the space can be used by cyclists as well as
pedestrians. Where possible, white line segregation will be introduced on shared
paths, providing dedicated space on the route for pedestrians and cyclists.

Furthermore, at subsequent design stages, the schemes will be subject to a full
Road Safety Audit (RSA) to ensure the facilities are considered safe for all road

users.
Suggestion that cyclists The consultation proposals are at an early feasibility stage, and as such remain
should be able to travel in | indicative. In line with LTN 1/20 guidance, the minimum width for a shared bus and
the bus lanes cycle lane is 4 metres, to enable buses to pass cyclists with sufficient room.

It is currently proposed that some of the bus lanes will be open for cyclists to use,
where it is considered safe and where there is sufficient width to allow so.
However, this will be reviewed at the subsequent design stages. Where we are
proposing for cyclists to use the bus lanes, clear signage will be installed.

Page 67 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Theme

Comments on the
proposed bus lanes

2e1 abed

Concerns over
environmental impact
of the proposals

Nature of comments

Concerns there is
insufficient space for bus
lanes

Suggest the proposed bus
lanes should be extended
in length

Support for 24/7
operation of bus lanes

Concerns over the loss of
trees/ greenery

Proposals will be worse
for the environment/ air
quality

ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

At this early design stage, it is anticipated that the majority of the bus lanes can be
delivered within the existing highway boundary. To provide the bus lanes, the
existing road carriageway layout may need to be redesigned, for example, through
removing some of the existing right turn pockets, reducing the number/width of
general traffic lanes, and/or restricting parking in certain locations. The scheme
design will be refined as we move into the next design stages.

We have carefully designed the bus lanes, taking into account the existing road
constraints, such as ensuring continued access to properties and side streets, and
working within the available space within the highway boundary to ensure minimal
disruption and maximum functionality.

As we are at an early design stage, we will explore whether any of the proposed bus
lanes could be extended in length, subject to there being sufficient space and
benefit in doing so, in the subsequent design stages.

We welcome these comments in relation to the operation timings for the bus lanes.
At the current stage of design, we anticipate that the proposed bus lanes would
operate at all times, i.e. 24/7. This will help ensure quicker and more reliable bus
journeys at all times of the day.

Environmental considerations are a high priority in the development of the bus
priority schemes. All environmental impacts of the schemes will be fully assessed
and fed into their development to ensure impacts are mitigated, minimised, or
avoided where possible.

At this stage of design, it is anticipated that a number of trees may be impacted by
the proposed schemes. Where possible, we will work to minimise tree loss, and if
necessary, identify/delivery green infrastructure provision as part of the schemes.

Page 68 of 151



€21 abed

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Theme

Safety Concerns

Nature of comments

Suggestion that the new
road layouts will cause
conflict/ safety issues

ESCC Response & Potential Design Considerations

The proposals have been developed in line with latest policy guidance, including
the Government Bus Strategy ‘Bus Back Better’, Manual for Streets, and LTN 1/20:
Cycle Infrastructure Design.

By improving bus journey times and reliability, and improving facilities for
pedestrians and cyclists, it is anticipated that the scheme will result in greater
uptake these modes and reduce car travel, resulting in reduced congestion and
improved air quality.

Road Safety Audits (RSAs) will be completed at the end of the preliminary and
detailed design stages as well as following construction of the schemes, to assess
the safety of the measures for all highway users.

Page 69 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

9. Summary & Next Steps

In July 2022, the County Council received a capital allocation of £22.1m in the £41.4m
secured towards the delivery of the East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP). Of
the £22.1m capital, £18.5m was allocated towards the delivery of bus priority measures in
the county.

The potential bus priority measures were identified from an assessment of bus service
data provided by the bus operators to determine where the key punctuality and reliability
hotspots were on the network, as well as a review of previous/current multi-modal
corridor studies which had considered bus priority schemes within them. A subsequent
high level desktop assessment of these potential locations was then undertaken to
determine whether bus priority measures could reasonably and physically be introduced.

Following the outcomes of the feasibility study, a prioritisation exercise was undertaken in
June 2023 to ensure the packages of schemes included in the consultation, presented the
highest benefits in each area, were affordable within the funding available and could be
delivered in line with the Government’s Department for Transport spend and delivery
timescales of March 2025.

Consultation on a package of bus priority measures in East Sussex specifically focussed on
the Eastbourne and Newhaven/Peacehaven areas, was undertaken between 31 July and 25
September 2023.

A total of 1,854 consultation surveys were received, as well as various other items of
feedback including emails, written responses, and other documents submitted during the
consultation. Feedback was also received at the public drop-in events and during meetings
with stakeholders. Six public drop-in events were held in Eastbourne, Newhaven,
Peacehaven and Telscombe, as well as one focus group with active travel groups, which
gave attendees the opportunity to discuss the proposals and have their questions answered
by members of the project team.

Overall, it is considered that the consultation exercise enabled ESCC to effectively engage
with key stakeholders and members of the public and gather feedback on the BSIP Bus
Priority Measures proposals which are currently at the feasibility design stage. In terms of
outreach and awareness, the most effective means of communication was via social
media, followed by word of mouth.

Quantitative feedback was sought on each individual scheme within the wider package of
bus priority measures. Analysis of the responses shows that most of the proposals were not
supported by participants. The Seaside Corridor scheme specifically, had the largest
proportion of opposing responses, with 70% strongly opposing this scheme. Meanwhile, the
Newhaven Town Centre scheme focussed on the Ring Road had the largest proportion of
supportive respondents 37% overall, alongside the extension of bus lanes on the A259
Corridor in Peacehaven (38% support overall).

From the free text responses received, certain issues were raised in relation to the
introduction of the proposed bus lanes including the loss of /changes to on-street parking
provision, and any perceived negative impact on traffic flow, whereas proposals to
improve crossings for pedestrians often had more supportive reactions from respondents.
Among the specific interventions, some findings of note were:

Page 70 of 151
Page 124



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

e Over half of survey respondents supported the new and upgraded pedestrian crossings
on Seaside Corridor; and

o Three quarters of survey respondents strongly opposed the dedicated bus lanes on
Seaside Road.

All comments received during the consultation will be considered to help inform decision
making on the next steps for each of the proposed schemes. The package of schemes
presented in the public and stakeholder consultation exceeds the BSIP capital funding
allocation available to East Sussex County Council for the introduction of the bus priority
measures. Therefore, a decision will need to be made over which scheme(s) are to be
progressed to the subsequent design stages and delivery phase.

A summary of consultation outcomes and recommendations on which schemes are
progressed will be presented to the East Sussex County Council’s Lead Member for
Transport and Environment in January 2024.

Subject to the consultation outcomes and decisions on which scheme(s) are progressed,
the next design stages will commence in early 2024.

Page 71 of 151

Page 125



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix A:
Consultation Webpage




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
Cousty Cou:

] = ]
A

Home  Find Activities ~ We Asked, You Said, We Did  Mailing List Signup ~ About

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
County Council

Funded b ey
UK Gover¥|ment *“

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Overview Closes 25 Sep 2023

. Opened 31 Jul 2023
The bus priority measures being proposed in this consultation form part of the

East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP), which sets out our ambitious
plans to improve the bus network across East Sussex and provide a cleaner,
reliable alternative to car travel. The BSIP focusses on enhancing the bus
network within East Sussex to complement and support wider transport
investment across the country, encouraging a sustainable mode shift towards
bus usage.

Contact
07514721385

BSIPConsultation@eastsussex gov.uic

About the Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP)

The BSIP actively addresses the National Bus Strategy and sets out our plans to
improve bus services, working in close cooperation with neighbouring Local
Transport Authorities, bus operators, community and business voices, bus
passengers, and the voluntary and health transport sector. Through the BSIP we
will deliver bus service improvements, bus stop improvements and bus priority
measures.

The aims of the BSIP are to:

* Improve the reliability and punctuality of bus services and explore methods
to make bus services more accessible.

Encourage an increase in the proportion of people travelling by bus.

Enhance the bus network, reducing journey times and improving reliability
and punctuality of bus services.

Increase bus usage across the county by building a bus network that meets
everyone's needs.

Complement and support wider transport investment across the country.

The East Sussex BSIP will ensure that residents and visitors enjoy the highest
possible quality bus services that provide a frequent and comprehensive choice,
reduce congestion and make a positive contribution to the community, better
air quality and decarbonisation.
About the Bus Priority Measures
The aim of the proposed measures is to make bus journeys guicker, more
efficient and reliable. Through introducing dedicated spaces for walking and
cycling, we also want to improve the safety, convenience and atiractiveness of
these journeys, and help encourage more peaple to travel on foot, by bike, and
use the bus.
The proposals cover the following areas:

e Eastbourne

* Newhaven

* Peacehaven
The proposals have been split into two packages of schemes, based on their
geographical location. A detailed overview of the proposals is provided in the
consultation brochure. We have also produced an easy read version which can

be found here.

Paper copies of the brochure will be available at all public consultation events.

Page 73 of 151

Page 127



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

— 4+ AutomaticZoom

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE
IMPROVEMENT
PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY
MEASURES

Public Consultation Brochure
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
CoureyCounch

s o
UK Government

We want your views on the proposed bus priority measures. Your views are
important to us, and this public consultation is an opportunity to provide
feedback and comments on the current proposals to help shape the subsequent
development stages.

The proposed scheme designs are still under development, and the proposals
could change depending on the feedback recieved through the consultation
exercise.

Why are the improvements needed?

In East Sussex, the number of journeys made by bus has been in decline since
2014. The East Sussex BSIP is an ambitious plan that seeks to stimulate and

drive significant improvements to local bus services across the local authority
area. These improvements are intended to:

= Recover bus usage from the Covid-19 pandemic, taking account of
consequential changes in travel patterns, and to increase usage significantly
in future years;

# See astep change in local transport provision delivered to current and new
bus users;

* Seek to readdress the balance in modal share between private and public
transport; increase bus mode share; and

» Tackle vehicle emission and climate change concerns.

The BSIP actively addresses the National Bus Strategy's requirements to work
together at pace to increase bus patronage: both to build it back after the
pandemic and then to increase it further and increase the number of journeys
made by bus.

The results from a 2018 Bus Passenger Survey identified ‘bus punctuality’ and
‘journey times' as factors to be improved within East Sussex. The BSIP will help
tackle these challenges through a programme of bus priority measures, to speed
up journey times and ensure buses turn up on time.

At a broader level, the BSIP will help address the existing challenges and remove
barriers to bus use, unlock even better services and generate modal shift from
the private car to bus.

Why your views matter

Your views are important to us, and so we are actively seeing feedback and
comments on these proposals to help shape the next design phase.

Please take this opportunity to let us know what you think by completing our
survey, which can be accessed via the link at the bottom of this page.

We are also hosting a number on in person drop-in events during the
consultation period. During the events, members of the project team will be
available to answer your questions and provide you with more information
about the proposed schemes.

We have developed a Frequently Asked Questions document to answer
additional questions on the proposals.

You can also contact the project team via email, using the contact details at the
top of this page.

Complete the survey here

Online Survey, >

Page 74 of 151

Page 128



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Events
Eastt 1e Drop-in Ci ion Event
From 30 Aug 2023 at 14:00 to 30 Aug 2023 at 18:00 £ Add to my Calendar Lics)

» More information

Peacehaven Drop-in Consultation Event

From 7 Sep 2023 at 10:00 to 7 Sep 2023 at 13:00 %1 Add to my Calendar (ics)
» More information

Peacehaven Drop-in Consultation Event

From 7 Sep 2023 at 14:00 to 7 Sep 2023 at 17:00 ) Add to my Calendar (ics)

» More information

Newhaven Drop-in Consultation Event
From 14 Sep 2023 at 11:00 to 14 Sep 2023 at 14:00 £ Add to my Calendar Lics)
» More information

Newhaven Drop-in Consultation Event
From 14 Sep 2023 at 15:30 to 14 Sep 2023 at 19:00 £, Add to my Calendar Lics)

» More information

Eastbourne Drop-in Consultation Event

From 16 Sep 2023 at 09:30 to 16 Sep 2023 at 13:30 ) Add to my Calendar (

P More information

Related

[ East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures Cansultation Brochure
19.6 MB [POF document)

[ East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures Easy Read ion Brochure
415.8 KB (PDF document]

[3) East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures FAQs
648.9 KB PDF document]

[2) 2023 BSIP Bus Priority Measures Equality Impact Assessment
146.2 KB (Office Word 2007 XML document]

© Privacy Notice - Consultation Hub

© East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan

Page 75 of 151

Page 129



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix B:
Consultation Brochure




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Updated Consultation Brochure (Updated 17 August 2023)

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE
IMPROVEMENT
PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY
MEASURES

Public Consultation Brochure
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
County Council

< a Funded by iy
@ﬁs UK Government WM

Page 77 of 151

Page 131


https://eastsussex.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/BSIPEastSussex_T/Shared%20Documents/2.%20Consultation%20and%20Engagement/2.%20Project%20Tasks/4.%20Consultation%20Materials/1.%20Consultation%20Brochure/East%20Sussex%20-%20Public%20Consultation%20Brochure%20UPDATED%2020230817%20(1).pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=x1RbXT

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

.4~2. Funded by e
Contents &3 UK Government QM
What is the Bus Service Improvement Plan? 3 This brochure outtiies what we are
Objectives of the Proposed Bus Priority Measures 4 proposing as part of the BSIP Bus
The Proposed Scheme Locations 5 Priority Measures in .the county in more
detail as well as outlining the benefits
The Proposed Schemes: Package One 7 and impacts of the proposed schemes
The Proposed Schemes: Package Two 19 and how you can have your say.
Next Steps 27 We are asking for your input so that we
Have Your Say 28 can be sure of taking all opinions,
comments and opportunities into
Stay Informed 30 Sccolnt
You can find more information about
3 the proposals and complete the
% feedback survey by scanning the QR
i code or visiting
4 https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.
uk/economy-transport-environment/
busprioritymeasures or in the Have
Your Say section of this brochure.
ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 2

East Sussex
County Council

What is the Bus Service Improvement Plan? &3 (K& arment Sy

The East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) actively addresses the National Bus Strategy and sets out
our plans to improve bus services, working in close cooperation with neighbouring Local Transport Authorities,
bus operators, community and business voices, bus passengers, and the voluntary and health transport sector.
Through the BSIP we will deliver bus service improvements, bus stop improvements and bus priority measures.

We want your views on the proposed schemes in this brochure as part of the BSIP bus priority measures. Your
views are important to us, and this public consultation is an opportunity to provide feedback and comments on
the latest plans to help shape the detailed design stage.

Our BSIP aims are to:
+ Improve the reliability and punctuality of bus services
and explore methods to make bus services more

The East Sussex Bus Service
Improvement Plan will...

accessible. ... ensure that residents and visitors enjoy
» Encourages an increase in the proportion of people the highest possible quality bus services
travelling by bus. that provide a frequent and comprehensive
« Enhance the bus network, reducing journey times and choice, reduce congestion and make a
improving reliability and punctuality of bus services. positive contribution to the community,
« Increase bus usage across the county by building a bus better air quality and decarbonisation.

network that meets everyone's needs.
Complement and support wider transport investment
across the country.

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page3

Page 78 of 151

Page 132



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Objectives of the
Proposed Bus Priority Measures

Improved Bus
Reliability

The introduction of bus
priority  measures  and
signals to reduce delays,
speed up journey times
and ensure buses arrive on
time,

Reduce Congestion
and Improve Traffic
Flow

=

This means you will spend
less time stuck in traffic
and more time where you
need to be! Not only will
this make journeys quicker
and more reliable, it will
reduce vehicle emissions
and improve local air
quality.

Encourage
Greater Bus Use

This  will help reduce
congestion on the county’s
busy road network, This
will in turn improve air
quality and create safer,
more pleasant places in
which to live, work and do
business.

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Complement Wider
Initiatives

Collectively, the measures
will transfarm the existing
transport system to
provide a safe, reliable and
accessible network for all
users. The improvements
will provide a realistic and
reliable alternative to the
car and support the county
focus of achieving net zero
emissions by 2050 at the
latest,

~2. Funded by

UK Government FAgEavay

East Sussex
County Council

Create Safer
Options

A number of proposed
dedicated spaces for active
travel will help reduce
conflict  between  the
different  road users,
supporting safer, more
attractive journeys. In turn
encouraging more people

to  walk and cycle,
therefore fostering
happier, healthier and

more active communities.

Page 4

The Proposed Scheme Locations

The proposed packages of schemes are in Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven.

Package one covers Eastbourne and the schemes are shown below.

Map 1: Map showing overview locations of the proposed schemes in Package One.

k’ King's Drive,
\ Upperton

HAMPOEN PARK

Seaside Corridor
and Roundabout

Eastbourne
Station Area

pd

£ASTBOURNE

ST ANTHONY'S
HILL

East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

|
Sovereign
Harbour

=2, Funded by
UK Government ¥AYSAAY

East Sussex
County Council

Pages

Page 133

Page 79 of 151




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Councit

The Proposed Scheme Locations A Kot men SN

Package two spans across Newhaven and Peacehaven, the schemes are shown below.

Map 2: Map showing overview locations of the proposed schemes in Package Two.

«”"\‘\
ALY/
TELSCOMBE
PIDDINGHOE SOuTH
HEIGHTON
V § Newhaven Town
Centre Ring Road
Tetcombe Virtual Bus Priority
MOUNT
Q e PLEASANT
9
TELSCOMBE
CLIFFS
\Cnmvzu
9 9
~ St [ Drove Road, Newhaven |
Peacehaven NEWHAVEN | Town Area and Denton |
A259 Corridor st Roundabout
ct -
"V Newhaven
9
[dairds East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 6

East Sussex
County Council

The Proposed Schemes: Package One A3 G Eamen: DYLLY
Package one is located in Eastbourne and comprises of four schemes:

» King's Drive, Upperton

» Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout

» Eastbourne Station Area

» Sovereign Harbour

Package Benefits
The expected benefits of the proposed schemes in package one include:

Improved journey times and reduced ® L. .
Improved provision for cyclists
delay for buses :)
1
ﬁ Encourages an increase in the N ¢ Improved visibility and safety for all
d proportion of people travelling by bus @\ users

. Reaching the train station becomes
Increased safety for pedestrians . .
easier for pedestrians

FFABN

m‘....m.. East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure e

Page 80 of 151

Page 134



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

King's Drive, Upperton

Eastbourne campus.

roundabout.

mﬁmﬂ. East Sussex Bus Priority - Public Consultation Brochure

« Implementation of bus priority measures to enhance the reliability and
speed of bus services, through the introduction of a dedicated bus lane,
serving Eastbourne District General Hospital and East Sussex College

» A southbound bus lane is proposed between Decoy Drive and Rodmill

« Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

East Sussex
County Council

=2 Funded by gty
&}% UK Government QM

See Map 3 9

See Map 4

Page 8

Map 3: Package one proposed scheme King's Drive, Upperton Section 10f 2

Key.

- Cariageway

s Proposed bus ne
Footpath

o Grass verge

® Existing bus stop location

@ Proposed bus stop location

Proposed new southbound bus
lane on Kings Drive between
Decoy Drive and Rodmill
Roundabout

East Sussex
Proposals continue south S College
towards Rodmill Semeston
Roundabout. Please refer to
Map 4 for details

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

East Sussex
County Council

422, Funded b ey
m UK Gover¥1ment QM

Map 4: Package one proposed scheme King's Drive, Upperton Section 2 of 2

%

East Sussex
College

along Kings Drive. Please

? Proposals continue north
refer to Map 3 for details

Existing pedestrian
crossing outside

East Sussex College
would be retained

East Sussox
College

Proposed new southbound
bus lane on Kings Drive

Proposed upgrades to the
Hospital Road junction to
provide bus priority. The
existing pedestrian crossing
north of the junction would
be retained

between Decoy Drive and
Rodmill Roundabout

Proposed new
location of bus
stop and shelter

Eastbourne District
General Hospital

Proposed new
pedestrian route

N i Existing bus stop and shelter
(A\ opposite The Rodmill would be

/ relocated further north to
improve accessibility

Existing pedestrian
crossing would be
retained

Key.

- Carriageway

- Proposed bus lane.
Footpath

- Grass verge

® Existing bus stop location

® Proposed bus stop location

Page g

Page 81 of 151

Page 135




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

L2, Funded by M
&i UK Government QW

Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout

Provision of dedicated bus lanes from east of Gilbert Road to Langney Rise roundabout in both directions on
Seaside Road and St Anthony's Avenue to improve bus journey times.

« Shared use cycle path and cycle improvements along Seaside Road and St Anthony's Avenue to connect with
existing cycle routes.

« New and upgraded pedestrian crossings including a toucan crossing at the Seaside Roundabout linking the
two existing sections of shared footway/cycle-way along Lottbridge Drove.

« Traffic signal upgrades to at several junctions along A259 Seaside Road to provide bus priority.

+ Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

1 7
1 1 1 I ! H H
I — i ] i | / !
1 ivga 2 { R 1} ¥ Vg 1
- | i i
1 1 ! T H 1 I i H A3 T T i'} 4
1 [ A i ] i I =
R IN T
P i
See Map s See Map 6 See Map7 See Map 8

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brachure

Page 10

- ras verge
® Existing bnas stop ecation
® Froposed bus sop lecaton

Proposed new zebra
crossing between Leslie
Steet and Hanover Road
with central island. This
would replace the existing
uncontrolled crossing
opposite Leslie Street

The Kings
‘Ams

Springfield Roaq

Map 5: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 1 of 4

Proposed new
northbound bus
lane between Leslie
Street and Whitley
Road

Proposed junction

upgrade to provide bus

priority signals.

Proposed removal of the
left-turn movement into
Beamsley Road from

Seaside Road

Seaside Rec
& Playground

Barden Road [l

crossing facility on the southbound
approach to the junction, to provide
a toucan crossing. The ng
crossings on the remaining arms
would be retained

the R

Whitley Road

The existing bus stop at
Carlton Road would be
relocated to opposite
ation Ground

. Funded by

—

Propesed upgrade to the
existing pedestrian
crossing between Eshton
Road and Beach Road

‘Woodgate Road

East Sussex
County Council

UK Government QM

[
. Camagewsy
G | . shaesse pan Proposals continue north
7 ) - roporad b line along Az5g Seaside. Please
an oy M ils
N\ i Proposed upgrade to the existing refer to Map 6 for details

Belle Vue Road

Page 136

b 'E ° -1 |
3 ks £ 3 3 o
o ] £ & z = H
s < E = § 5 ]
ot 3 =) E £ E A
g 3 £ bl © & F
z 5 (%) i &
B T @ 5
5 -3 E >
T The existing bus stop at Beach T
Existing on-street parking would be retained. However the new crossing Road would be relocated further
may require a slight reduction in the number of parking spaces north, opposite Woodgate Road
-
[Joladdes East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 11
Page 82 of 151




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

=2, Funded by m
AR UK Government Qm

Map 6: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 2 of 4

2
o B
| - St path .
Proposals continue north
7) - mh&hnz along A259 Seaside. Please
N - ‘M:"‘ refer to Map 7 for details

B Exidag b sopfocicion. Proposed removal of the
@ Froposed bus stop location Tedl :
existing right turn lane at the Proposed new pedestrian
Churchdale Road junction to crossing to improve access
allow for the new bus lane to the bus stop. This would
replace the existing zebra The existing bus
crossing outside St Andrew's | stop near
Church Winchelsea Road
would be
removed and
relocated to allow
Proposed new L e
northbound bus lane pede§trxan
between Windermere £195518
Crescent and Fort Road

Please refer to Map
5 for continuation
of proposals

Proposed upgrade to the
existing pedestrian crossing
between Romney Street and
Channel View Road

Archery

Tesco
Playground

Express

Windermere Crescent

g
$
<
$
<
F
£

Belle Vue Road

| °
°
% 8 g S
g ° |
4 5 'St Andrew’s
2 % § o Church
c & T 8 g
g g = 5
I 5 @ =
= 3 “
Proposed new southbound bus lane [v] Proposed new E ¢
bus stop location £ s

between Seaford Road and Beamsley Road

Page 12

il East Sussex Bus Priority - Public Consultation Brochure

East Sussex
County Council

. Funded b AR
UK Gover’r,\ment gm

Map 7: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corrider and Seaside Roundabout Section 3 of 4

Cyclists would be able Potential for greenery nrg’:p;ias" g‘:z's’f:;‘: ’fm";i“:’
and landscaping relor 10 Map 8 for details

to travel in the bus r
between Finmere Road I around the roundabout .

and Queens Crescent
The existing crossing

on the western arm of .
the roundabout would L Toligate aunior
be upgraded to toucan 9
crossing
= f Proposed new
pedestrian and cycle
crossings on 3 arms of Existing parking
the roundabout would be
aine One Stop

St Anthony's

Wren
Kitchens

Oak
Furnitureland

Allfrey Road

-3
é
T
& Proposed new shared-
Campiight | use pedestrian and
Propesed removal of path on all

the existing right turn approaches to the
pocket at the junction

Proposed new
southbound bus lane
between the Lottbridge
Drove Roundabout and
Langney Roundabout.
This would require
removal of some right

Queen's Crescent

roundabout

The Range

Proposed junction upgrade at

Please refer to Ma, ANC —

menﬁnmﬁmf the entrance to the retail park

of proposais with traffic lights. This would
help reduce traffic build up at

Seaside Roundabout ® Exiing bas sap kecation

o @ Froposed bus stop location

o
Page 13

[kl East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

Page 83 of 151

Page 137



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex

County Council

Funded b NAAY
UK Gover)r’\ment gw

Map 8: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 4 of 4

Existing

uncontrolled

crossing would be Existing uncontrolled

upgraded with d

traffic lights Crescent would be
removed to allow for the
new bus lane

Proposed bus lane would

continue through the Proposed shared-use
Langney Roundabout, with path would continue

new bus stop and bus through the Langney

waiting area to be provided Roundabout

Proposed shared-use
path for pedestrians
and cyclists on both
sid f the
carriageway

Rnthany's
a5t Office.

Leeds Avenue

=
i
- o
g 2 —
2 < Existing uncontrolled
@ z N
e crossing would be
] 2 " "
Pi;rifiuﬂ;"fﬂzm? b = upgraded with traffic Proposed new southbound
of proposals g E lights bus lane between the
— 3 = Lotthridge Drove

Catholic Church of

Roundabout and Langney Chist the King

Roundabout.

edestrian

o
- Corringeway

— e

(7,1- - arduse path retained on all arms.
= proposed b o of the roundabout

N e

- g

@ Exiting bus top ocations

@ Proposed bus stop location.

[t East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 14

East Sussex
County Council

442, Funded by M
é'm UK Government am

Eastbourne Station Area
« Dedicated bus lanes and shared use cycle path along Upperton Road and Station Parade.

» Complement the existing bus priority measures (dedicated bus lanes) in Eastbourne Town Centre on
Terminus Road and Gildredge Road.

« Junction improvement at the Upper Road/Station Parade/The Avenue junction with bus priority through the
traffic signals and pedestrian crossing facilities.

« Replace existing Station Parade/Southfields Road roundabout with a traffic signal controlled junction
including pedestrian crossing facilities.

[ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 15

Page 84 of 151

Page 138



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

2. Funded by kg
" UK Government QM

Map 9: Package one proposed scheme Eastbourne Station Area

»

Care for
The Carers

Day Nursery
Etim Fasmily Chisrch

The
Upparton

H
5

L

Junction
improvements
for bus priority

Existing bus priority
measures in the form of
dedicated bus lanes

St Mark's House

i Shopping
g New southbound
,p"\ bus lane between
Wharf Road and °

- e ‘ Southfields Road Tl taion
UPperton Roag -

Existing roundabout
Churchill Retirement > 3 to signalised junction
tving &

Mariboroagh Court

Eaatbouma Lid erminis Foad

Station Par -
i Dedicated left turn

for all road users

- — New northbound
= :""”"::"": bus lane between
Pl Southfields Road
- Gross verge and Hartfield Road
®  Existing bus stop location

Eastbourne Dullvery
Office.

Existing pedestrian
crossing upgraded

sty
[t East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 16
East Sussex
County Council

.2~2. Funded by i)
UK Government QM

Sovereign Harbour

« New single lane dedicated bus corridor, which can be used in both directions through controlled traffic
signals.

« Realigned shared use pedestrian and cycle route to link into the existing route along Atlantic Drive and
Harbour Quay/Pacific Drive.

« Proposed landscaping improvements with planting, sheltered seating areas and cycle parking.

« Junction alteration providing bus priority at Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay.

eiisbians
[t East Sussex Bus Priority M - Public Consultation Brochure Page 17

Page 85 of 151

Page 139



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Map 10: Package one proposed scheme Sovereign Harbour

Key:
. Carriageway

B Shared-use path
= Proposed bus lane @ Existing bus stop |
W Relandscaped areas ‘

Footpath
B Grass verge

Proposed signalised
entry to single bi-
directional bus lane

Junction alteration
providing bus priority

Bensons
for Beds

New shared use
pedestrian and
cycle route

Existing service road at Crumbles Retail
Park realigned and widened to allow for
provision of new dedicated bus lane and

Wilko Cineworld

Proposed signalised entry to
single bi-directional bus lane

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by ”
UK Government gw

Sovereign Harbour

A3

Proposed
landscaping
improvements with
planting, sheltered
seating areas and rbour
cycle parking

new bus stop
locations

Junction
alterati
providing
bus priority

Boat Yard

Proposed new
crossing for
pedestrians and
cyclists with
traffic lights

New single
lane dedicated
bus corridor,
which can be

shared-use pedestrian and cycle route.

The existing cycle route would be
replaced by the bus lane, and a new
shared-use pedestrian and cycle route
would be provided alongside. This would
require some additional land and
remains subject to discussions with the
landowner

m East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

used in both
directions
through
controlled
traffic signals

Page 18

Package two covers Newhaven and Peacehaven and
comprises of three schemes:

» Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus
Priority

« Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton
Roundabout

» Peacehaven A259 Corridor

fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C Itation Brochure

The Proposed Schemes: Package Two

East Sussex
Cnunlv Council

2. Funded by

" UK Government WM

Package Benefits
The expected benefits of the proposed schemes in
package two include:

Improved journey times and reduced
delay for buses

Increased safety for pedestrians

réalv
@
% Improved provision for cyclists
]
N ¢ Improved visibility and safety for all
,©‘ users

Page 19

Page

Page 86 of 151

140



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

* 2. Funded by ey

UK Government WY

Newhaven TOWI'I Centre Ring !Aa\p\x.er?'c_lfgge two proposed scheme Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority N
Road Virtual Bus Priority

« Bus priority measures
through optimising and

coordinating traffic y/ New arid upgraded

o ax . 7 % \ pedestrian crossings at
Slgnal tlmmgs, ensuring various locations along the
that buses are given A 2 ; Ringoad
prlorlty When naVIgatI ng Proposed virtual bus priority
Newhaven ng Road. measures along the A25g Ring

Road to speed up bus journey
times and reduce congestion

« Enhanced pedestrian
user experience and

safety through traffic
signal upgrades and
improvements.
\ I;Ilunl
Community Centre
)
®  Pedestrian Crossing
@ Island Crossing
/e ®  Existing bus stop location
fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 20

East Sussex
County Council

2. Funded b AN
1&; UK Gover%ment gm

Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout

« Replacement of the existing mini-roundabout at the A26/Drove Road junction with a traffic signal controlled
junction.

+ Reallocate existing road space to introduce an eastbound bus lane between the A26/Drove Road junction
and the A259 Drove Roundabout. Westbound traffic would continue to use the westbound lane of Drove Road
but accesses into/out of existing retail areas along this section would become left in, left out only.

« Bus lane on the A259 westbound approach and extending around the Denton Roundabout and alongside The
Drove to the Drove roundabout.

« Eastbound bus lane between the Drove and Denton roundabouts.
+ Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.
» New shared use pedestrian and cycle paths, with new and upgraded pedestrian and cycle crossings.

» Widening of southern footpath along Drove Road between McKinley Way and New Road roundabout.

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 21

Page 87 of 151

Page 141



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex

County Council

. Funded b NAAY
UK Gover)r’\ment gm

Proposed new

Map 12: Package two proposed scheme Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout

@)

Proposed new
dedicated bus
lanes on both
sides of the road

Proposed
northbound bus lane
on the approach to
Denton Roundabout

Sainsbury's
L)

Proposed new

shared-use e » 3

pedestrian and . = = - various

cycle path - : B o locations

Roath

Towards ygunt e

Newhaven

[ayewel Proposed new
A258 Naturs Reserve

P Froposed bus shared-use path

provide bus p

when entering and

exiting the roundabout Proposed bus |
running throug -
the roundabout \

Towards
Sishapsto

Existing junction would be upgraded
and converted to left in/left out
movement only. New g island

Proposed junction upgrade would be provided to improve safety

with traffic signals and bus
priority m res to speed
up journey times

—
[laledl East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 22
East Sussex
County Council

=2 Funded by ]
&:’% UK Government &M

Peacehaven A259 Corridor

« Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions of the A259 South Coast Road. This will complement the
existing bus lanes along the A259 between Peacehaven, Telscombe Cliffs and Brighton.

Junction upgrades, including signalisation of the A259/Sutton Avenue junction with pedestrian crossing
facilities.

« Proposed new shared-use pedestrian/cycle path through The Dell Park.
« New and upgraded pedestrian crossings.

« Signal upgrades with bus priority at the A259 South Coast Road/Telscombe Cliffs Way junction.

See Map 13 See Map 14 See Map 15

[ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C Brochure Page 23

Page 88 of 151

Page 142



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

~ 2. Funded by el
A3 UK Government gm

Map 13: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 10f 3

W
( \ arriageway Proposed narrowing of
\‘) W Existing bus lane the Highview Junction to
- Bus lane improve safety and allow
2’”""‘ for a new footway and
- Grass verge i
reenery alongside ichards
® Existing bus stop location g ! £ Decoraingand

- Existing on-street parking

Premiergas
Services

Existing pedestrian
crossing to be retained

Proposed dedicated bus
lanes on both sides of
the carriageway between
Highview Road and
Telscombe Cliffs Way

Architectural
Practice _

Towards
Saltdean

Pizza and Grill

Highview Road

Proposed widening of
the existing carriageway

to provide a new bus Proposed removal of the existing "'é’;i,",'{.’,ﬁjf%,ﬁ',?;’i"
lane to the west of bus lay-by opposite Broomfield refer to Map 14 for
Highview Road Avenue to allow for the new bus desals

Proposals continue

lane. A new bus stop would be
provided in the same location,
within the bus lane

m East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 24
East Sussex
County Council

2. Funded by ]
@2}% UK Government gm

Map 14: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 2 of 3

N Key:
( N - Carriageway
\}) - Existing bus lane

= Bus lane Proposed upgrades to
+ Footpath the A259/Telscombe Proposed 2-way bus
- Grass verge Cliffs Way junction to lanes to be provided

® bxisting bus stop location provide bus priority. through the junction,
. Existing on-street parking Existing signal controlled giving buses priority.
pedestrian crossings This would require
fmpo's’al,s‘cong'_nueh would be retained removal of the existing
along the A259 Sout! 1oht.| _ Goodfayre
Coast Road. Please ) right-turn pockets (nn;:nitn(r
refer to Map 13 for tore.
/| Kamsons
detafls Pharmacy Proposals continue

along the A259 South
Coast Road. Please
refer to Map 15 for
details

+—

Existing bus stop
to be retained

Central Ave

Telscombe.
Town Councll

Coastway
Vets

Fairlight Ave

Existing pedestrian
Kappadokya crossing would be
Restaurant retained

The Tavern

Telscombe Cliffs Existing on-street
parking would be
retained

Proposed new footway on the
Fairlight Avenue approach to the roundabout. This
Cuf ek would require a small parcel of
9 private land, and remains subject

to discussion with landowners

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C Itation Brochure Page 25

Page 89 of 151

Page 143



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

[key:
( “_\ W Carriageway
M - us lane
\_ Footpath

- Grass verge
@ Existing bus stop.

Proposals conltinue
along the A259 South
Coast Road. Please
refer to Map 14 for
details

location

Map 15: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 3 of 3

Rowe Avenue

Branch Surgery

Neville
Lodge

Potential area for Q use pedestrian & cycle
re-landscaping path through The Dell

East Sussex

County Council

. Funded by AR
UK Government QM

Proposed bus lanes to be
provided through the
junction, giving buses
priority.

Existing pedestrian
crossing outside
Kamsons Pharmacy to
be upgraded

Nationwide
Building Society

Roderick Ave

The Dell
Public Park

Proposed new shared-

Park

Next Steps

—
[kl East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 26
East Sussex
County Councl

422, Funded

&27 UK Gove%ment am

30 14 25 Dec
Aug Sept Sept 2023
Public Public Public consultation Preliminary and detailed
consultation consultation in- exercise on the design stage, taking
in-person person event feasibility designs into consideration the
event one four and five closes consultation feedback
Public consultation Public Public Analysis of feedback,
exercise on the consultation consultation production of
feasibility designs in-person event in-person Consultation
begins two and three event six Summary Report
31 7 16 Oct
July Sept Sept 2023
[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 27

Page 90 of 151

Page 144



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) —

Bus Priority Measures

Have Your Say

We want your views on the proposed schemes as part
of the BSIP Bus Priority Measures. Your views are
important to us, and this public consultation is an
opportunity to provide feedback and comments on the
latest plans to help shape the detailed design stage.

The consultation is open from the 31st July 2023 to the
25th September 2023. You will have until 11:59pm on
25th September to respond to the survey.

We have a number of ways that you can
provide your views on the proposed
schemes. You can complete our online
consultation survey and find out more
information by scanning the QR code or
visiting:
https://consultation.eastsussex.

gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/

busprioritymeasures

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

East Sussex
County Council

2. Funded by ”
é%;m UK Government gm

Paper copies of the brochure and survey will be
available at all public consultation events.

If you would like to request a paper copy of the survey
or have any questions and comments in relation to the
BSIP Bus Priority Measures, you can contact us via:

[~<] BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk

Q) 07514721385

If you would prefer this document as
easy read copy or in another language
please email:
BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk

Page 28

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by el
&%” UK Government gw

We are hosting a number of in-person drop-in consultation events during the consultation period. The project
team will be available to answer your questions and provide you with more information about the proposed

schemes:

Court Room, Eastbourne Town Hall
Grove Road, Eastbourne BN21 4UG

Room 1, Telscombe Civic Centre

55

000

L

Newhaven Outdoor Market
High Street, BN9 9PA

The Art Room, Hillcrest Community Centre, Newhaven

Bay Vue Road, Newhaven, BN9g 9LH

The Foundry (inside The Beacon shopping centre)

Eastbourne, BN21 3NW

m East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

360 South Coast Road, Telscombe Cliffs, BN1o 7ES

The Main Hall, Community House, Peacehaven
Meridian Centre, Meridian Way, Peacehaven, BN1o 8BB

3oth August from 2pm to 6pm

7th September from 10am to 1pm
7th September from 2pm to 5pm
14th September from 112am to 2pm
14th September from 3:30pm to 7pm

16th September from 9:30am to 1:30pm

Page 29

Page 91 of 151

Page 145




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

a2 Funded by A
Stay Informed &% UK Goverhment am
You can stay informed about the BSIP Bus Priority Measures by visiting https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-
transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan or keeping an eye on social media.

@ EastSussexCC @ @EastSussexCC

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 30

Page 92 of 151

Page 146



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Original Consultation Brochure:

MORE BUS LESS FUSS

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE
IMPROVEMENT
PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY
MEASURES

Public Consultation Brochure
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
County Council

Funded b Ry it
@335 UK Gover)rlrment WM

Page 93 of 151

Page 147



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

A2 Funded by Gl
Contents A UK Government N
What is the Bus Service Improvement Plan? 3 This brochure outlines what we are
Objectives of the Proposed Bus Priority Measures 4 proposing as part of the BSIP Bus
The Proposed Scheme Locations 5 Pr|o|:|ty Measures in .th.e county in more
detail as well as outlining the benefits
The Proposed Schemes: Package One 7 and impacts of the proposed schemes
The Proposed Schemes: Package Two 19 and how you can have your say.
Next Steps 27 We are asking for your input so that we
Have Your Say 28 can be sure of taking all opinions,
comments and opportunities into
Stay Informed 30 account
You can find more information about
the proposals and complete the
feedback survey by scanning the QR
1 code orvisiting
2 https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.
uk/economy-transport-environment/
busprioritymeasures or in the Have
Your Say section of this brochure.
ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 2

What is the Bus Service Improvement Plan? &3 (K&stmen Sy

The East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) actively addresses the National Bus Strategy and sets out
our plans to improve bus services, working in close cooperation with neighbouring Local Transport Authorities,
bus operators, community and business voices, bus passengers, and the voluntary and health transport sector.
Through the BSIP we will deliver bus service improvements, bus stop improvements and bus priority measures.

We want your views on the proposed schemes in this brochure as part of the BSIP bus priority measures. Your
views are important to us, and this public consultation is an opportunity to provide feedback and comments on
the latest plans to help shape the detailed design stage.

Our BSIP aims are to:
« Improve the reliability and punctuality of bus services
and explore methods to make bus services more

The East Sussex Bus Service
Improvement Plan will...

accessible. ... ensure that residents and visitors enjoy
« Encourages an increase in the proportion of people the highest possible quality bus services
travelling by bus. that provide a frequent and comprehensive
« Enhance the bus network, reducing journey times and choice, reduce congestion and make a
improving reliability and punctuality of bus services. positive contribution to the community,
« Increase bus usage across the county by building a bus better air quality and decarbonisation.

network that meets everyone's needs.
« Complement and support wider transport investment
across the country.

m East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 3

Page 94 of 151

Page 148



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Objectives of the
Proposed Bus Priority Measures

Improved Bus
Reliability

| s

The introduction of bus
priority measures and
signals to reduce delays,
speed up journey times
and ensure buses arrive on
time.

Reduce Congestion
and Improve Traffic
Flow

22

This means you will spend
less time stuck in traffic
and more time where you
need to be! Not only will
this make journeys quicker
and more reliable, it will
reduce vehicle emissions
and improve local air
quality.

Encourage
Greater Bus Use

This  will help reduce
congestion on the county’s
busy road network. This
will in turn improve air
quality and create safer,
more pleasant places in
which to live, work and do
business.

fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

&

Complement Wider
Initiatives

Collectively, the measures
will transform the existing
transport system to
provide a safe, reliable and
accessible network for all
users. The improvements
will provide a realistic and
reliable alternative to the
car and support the county
focus of achieving net zero
emissions by 2050 at the
latest.

Funded by
UK Government $AYNAAY

East Sussex
County Council

Create Safer
Options

&

A number of proposed
dedicated spaces for active
travel will help reduce
conflict  between  the
different  road  users,
supporting safer, more
attractive journeys. In turn
encouraging more people

to walk and cycle,
therefore fostering
happier, healthier and

more active communities.

Page 4

The Proposed Scheme Locations

The proposed packages of schemes are in Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven.

Package one covers Eastbourne and the schemes are shown below.

Map 1: Map showing overview locations of the proposed schemes in Package One.

King's Drive,
Upperton

RK

Seaside Corridor
and Roundabout |

ROSELANDS

Eastbourne
Station Area

i

£ASTBOURNE

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

L/

Sovereign
Harbour |

East Sussex
County Council

. Funded by i
" UK Government @M

Pages

Page 149

Page 95 of 151




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council
e <2 Funded by Sy iy
The Proposed Scheme Locations A8 UK Government AYNARY
Package two spans across Newhaven and Peacehaven, the schemes are shown below.
Map 2: Map showing overview locations of the proposed schemes in Package Two.
(A
g { Newhaven Town
Centre Ring Road
comb Virtual Bus Priority IS
q PLEASANT
e | Drove Road, Newhaven
Peacehaven NEWHAVEN | Town Area and Denton
A259 Corridor Peacehavs | Roundabout
&
ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 6
(Ea;l(S:tssg)m‘
<2 Funded by Sy iy
The Proposed Schemes: Package One A3 UK Government AYNARY
Package one is located in Eastbourne and comprises of four schemes:
« King's Drive, Upperton
» Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout
» Eastbourne Station Area
« Sovereign Harbour
Package Benefits
The expected benefits of the proposed schemes in package one include:
Improved journey times and reduced o s X
Improved provision for cyclists
delay for buses )
]
’ Encourages an increase in the > ¢ Improved visibility and safety for all
a proportion of people travelling by bus ,©\ users
]
5 Reaching the train station becomes
Increased safety for pedestrians - ;
easier for pedestrians
r&alv
fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 7

Page 96 of 151

Page 150



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by M
%} UK Government QM

King's Drive, Upperton

» Implementation of bus priority measures to enhance the reliability and
speed of bus services, through the introduction of a dedicated bus lane,

serving Eastbourne District General Hospital and East Sussex College
Eastbourne campus.

» A southbound bus lane is proposed between Decoy Drive and Rodmill
roundabout.

» Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

See Map 3 °f

See Map 4

Page 8

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by “
@3 UK Government QM

Map 3: Package one proposed scheme King's Drive, Upperton Section 1 of 2 Map 4: Package one proposed scheme King's Drive, Upperton Section 2 of 2

East Sussex

= f Clone Knge brtve. Procsa
e refer to Map 3 for details
Footpath
Grass verge Existing pedestrian
@ Existing bus stop location crossing outside
@ Sropomed bus sioplociion East Sussex College

: East Sussex
would be retained College

Proposed new southbound

Proposed new southbound bus
lane on Kings Drive between
Decoy Drive and Rodmill
Roundabout

Proposals continue south
towards Rodmill
Roundabout. Please refer to
Map 4 for details

m East Sussex Bus Priority

East Sussex
College

- Public C

ion Brochure

bus lane on Kings Drive
between Decoy Drive and
Rodmill Roundabout

Proposed upgrades to the
Hospital Road junction to
provide bus priority. The
existing pedestrian crossing
north of the junction would
be retained

Proposed new
location of bus
stop and shelter

Eastbourne District
General Hospital

i Proposed new
pedestrian route

N Existing bus stop and shelter
/A\ opposite The Rodmill would be
\J relocated further north to
improve accessibility

Existing pedestrian
crossing would be
retained

Key:
- Cariageway
WS Propased bus lane
Footpath
o Grass verge.
@ Existing bus stop location
@ Proposed bus stop location

Page 9

Page 97 of 151

Page 151




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by ey
&3 UK Government QM

Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout

Provision of dedicated bus lanes from east of Gilbert Road to Langney Rise roundabout in both directions on
Seaside Road and St Anthony's Avenue to improve bus journey times.

» Shared use cycle path and cycle improvements along Seaside Road and St Anthony's Avenue to connect with
existing cycle routes.

« New and upgraded pedestrian crossings including a toucan crossing at the Seaside Roundabout linking the
two existing sections of shared footway/cycle-way along Lottbhridge Drove.

Traffic signal upgrades to at several junctions along A259 Seaside Road to provide bus priority.

« Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

Ll H | R i 7
! i 1 ! F 4 ! ' 1
7 : I L v 7 | /
i i i 1 b | 15 S A ‘\ T T k. vl i J /
P I i ! v 1 ]
i | i i i [ 1 K i ! ! " 1' ! b
AT 5
i i
i
See Map 5 See Map 6 See Map 7 See Map 8
[Bdalgs East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 10
East Sussex
County Council
"
Aip Fundedby WAV
3
%2 UK Government $AYVAAY
Map s5: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 1 of 4
-
N—
i Tl [=sesr 8 Proposals continue north
7} Footpath along A259 Seaside. Please
A PropBSEdInETada o theAIsting refer to Map 6 for details

® Existing bus stop location
® Proposed busstop location

crossing facility on the southbound _.
approach to the junction, to provide
a toucan crossing. The existing
Proposed new zebra Street and Whitley crossings on t.he remaining arms
crossing between Leslie Road would be retained
S‘fﬁ' an:i Hlalml:)ve{; R_F’héd Proposed upgrade to the
aloul;ilprlaaclz lahne lexis‘lsing Proposed junction The existi exlstI.ng Pecestdl]

4 upgrade to provide bus e existing bus stop at crossing between Eshton
uncontrolled crossing Carlton Road would be Road and Beach Road

opposite Leslie Street priority signals. d
= Proposed removal of the relocated to opposite
the Recreation Ground

left-turn movement into
Beamsley Road from
Seaside Road

Proposed new
northbound bus
lane between Leslie

Seaside Rec
& Playground

Whitley Road

The Kings
Arms.

Gilbert Roaq
Woodgate Road
Belle Vue Road

Springfield Roaq
i Ringwood Road

| '
o I
® °
o & 3 y-t b F]
® c < <] 3 <] -
° <] S > < 3 < T
. < ° 3 < & 5 g
S = 2 % S 5 S &
-2 3 3 £ £ £ 3 2
g 3 s o & @ >
> 2 V] o 2
@ c
g g :
] « — >
T The existing bus stop at Beach T
Existing on-street parking would be retained. However the new crossing Road would be relocated further
may require a slight reduction in the number of parking spaces north, opposite Woodgate Road
m East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C Itation Brochure Page 11

Page 98 of 151

Page 152



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex

—~
( 1
7 |2

® Eisting b sop location
@ Proposed bus stop loation

-

Belle Vue Road
Rose,
lang,
s Ave,,ue

Seaford Road

Hydney Street

Proposed new southbound bus lane
between Seaford Road and Beamsley Road

Tesco
Express

Romney Street

Windermere Crescent

Map 6: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 2 of 4

Proposed removal of the
existing right turn lane at the
Churchdale Road junction to
allow for the new bus lane

Please refer to Map
5 for continuation Proposed upgrade to the
of proposals existing pedestrian crossing

between Romney Street and
Channel View Road

Channel View Road B

- Public C ion Brochure

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority

Proposed new

northbound bus lane T
between Windermere £E05515
Crescent and Fort Road

Archery
Playground

% %
% @
.

% &
09 =

% e

%> 3

<

5

3

Proposed new pedestrian
crossing to improve access
to the bus stop. This would
replace the existing zebra
crossing outside St Andrew's
Church

County Council

42, Funded by M
&@3 UK Government gm

Proposals continue north
along A259 Seaside. Please
refer to Map 7 for details

—

The existing bus
stop near
Winchelsea Road
would be
removed and
relocated to allow
for the new
pedestrian

; Church

Proposed new
bus stop location

Vinchelsey Road
Vine Square

Page 12

Cyclists would be able
to travel in the bus lane
between Finmere Road
and Queens Crescent

Allfrey Roaq

Myrtle Road

Proposed removal of
the existing right turn
pocket at the junction

of proposals

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority

Map 7: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 3 of 4

The existin

g Crossing

on the western arm of
the roundabout would

be upgrad:
crossing

Fort Road

undabout

ed to toucan

0Oak
Furnitureland
Carpetright

The Range

Proposed junction upgrade at
Please refer to Map H
S for ontinuction th_e entra_nce_ to the rgtall park
with traffic lights. This would

‘_ help reduce traffic build up at
Seaside Ro

- Public C ion Brochure

Potential for greenery
and landscaping
around the roundabout

Proposed new
pedestrian and cycle
crossings on 3 arms of
the roundabout

Proposed new shared-
use pedestrian and
cycle path on all
approaches to the
roundabout

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by M
&@3 UK Government am

Proposals continue north
along A259 Seaside. Please
refer to Map 8 for details

Toligate Junior
Lhool

Existing parking
spaces would be

retained One Stop

St Anthony's

Proposed new
southbound bus lane
between the Lottbridge
Drove Roundabout and
Langney Roundabout.
This would require
removal of some right

Queen's Crescent

K-nnuamy turn pockets and existing

RN phopcared Gk s pedestrian islands
footutn

= Gass verge

® Exising bus sop location

@ Proposed bussop ocation

Page13

Page 153

Page 99 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by M
@;} UK Government QM

Map 8: Package one proposed scheme Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout Section 4 of 4

Existing
uncontrolled
crossing would be Existing uncontrolled

Proposed bus lane would

continue through the Proposed shared-use
Langney Roundabout, with path would continue
new bus stop and bus through the Langney
waiting area to be provided Roundabout

upgraded with crossing at Queen's

traffic lights Crescent would be
removed to allow for the
new bus lane

Proposed shared-use

path for pedestrians

and cyclists on both >

sides of the 7 vz ¢ &
carriageway

Anthony’s
¥t Office

B | ceds Avenue

Al
1
- o
£ 2
g g Existing uncontrolled
Please refer to Ma S 5‘ crossing would be
e plbafedi b 2 = upgraded with traffic Proposed new southbound
of proposals g = lights bus lane between the
3 Lottbridge Drove
Roundabout and Langney “c'n":il':.‘n".".i.‘.\"g‘"
Roundabout.
Existing pedestrian
e e i crossings would be
( 2 | mproposedbusiane retained on all arms
; ) fecken, of the roundabout
Geass v
N Y-
® Proposed bus sop location

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 14

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by “
@3 UK Government QM

Eastbourne Station Area
» Dedicated bus lanes and shared use cycle path along Upperton Road and Station Parade.

» Complement the existing bus priority measures (dedicated bus lanes) in Eastbourne Town Centre on
Terminus Road and Gildredge Road.

« Junction improvement at the Upper Road/Station Parade/The Avenue junction with bus priority through the
traffic signals and pedestrian crossing facilities.

« Replace existing Station Parade/Southfields Road roundabout with a traffic signal controlled junction
including pedestrian crossing facilities.

m East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 15

Page 100 of 151

Page 154



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by P
&‘3’? UK Government QM

Map 9: Package one proposed scheme Eastbourne Station Area
Care For
The Carers

4
» ..
9 Q

Existing bus priority
measures in the form of

The Avene

Junction
improvements Enterprise Shopping
Centre dedicated bus lanes

for bus priority
@‘“"b

New southbound

bus lane between

Wharf Road and 4
Southfields Road T

A259 2
S Existing roundabout
2 M to signalised junction

Churchill Retirement

Martborough Court
EastbourneLtd
Dedicated left turn

for all road users

Station Parade

= Cantagewsy New northbound —
o covig e bus lane between gl
sed busane
,::_m Southfields Road 9
Grassverge and Hartfield Road
@ Existing bus stop location
Existing pedestrian
crossing upgraded

Page 16

ion Brochure

- Public C

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by i
@Q‘?? UK Government QM

Sovereign Harbour
» New single lane dedicated bus corridor, which can be used in both directions through controlled traffic

signals.
» Realigned shared use pedestrian and cycle route to link into the existing route along Atlantic Drive and

Harbour Quay/Pacific Drive.
» Proposed landscaping improvements with planting, sheltered seating areas and cycle parking.

« Junction alteration providing bus priority at Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay.

Page 17

- Public C ion Brochure

m East Sussex Bus Priority

Page 101 of 151

Page 155



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by M
@.@3 UK Government gm

Sovereign Harbour
car parl

Map 10: Package one proposed scheme Sovereign Harbour

Proposed

Key: 2
~—w_| R Carriageway Footpath Bensons ) Former landscaping
(4 )| Proposed shared-use psth ¥ Grass verge forBeds.  Wiko LG improvements with
= planting, sheltered Sovereigh

. Proposed bus lane @ Existing bus stop

= Relandscaped areas seating areas and Harbour

cycle parking Yacht Club

Proposed signalised
entry to single bi-

directional bus lane New shared use Proposed

pedestrian and Proposed signalised entry to /4 new bus stop
cycle route single bi-directional bus lane locations

Sovereign
Harbour

Junction
alteration
providing
bus priority

Boat Yard

Proposed new
crossing for
pedestrians and
cyclists with
traffic lights

New single
Junction alteration Existing service road at Crumbles Retail lane dedicated
providing bus priority Park realigned and widened to allow for bus corridor,
provision of new dedicated bus lane and which can be
shared-use pedestrian and cycle route. used in both

The existing cycle route would be directions
replaced by the bus lane, and a new through
shared-use pedestrian and cycle route controlled
would be provided alongside, This would traffic signals
require some additional land and

remains subject to discussions with the

landowner

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C Itation Brochure Page 18

East Sussex
County Council

The Proposed Schemes: Package Two A G et N

Package two covers Newhaven and Peacehaven and Package Benefits

comprises of three schemes: The expected benefits of the proposed schemes in

« Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus el vy elodes

PRty Improved journey times and reduced
« Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton delay for buses
Roundabout
» Peacehaven A259 Corridor Increased safety for pedestrians
(L\)]
(J
)% Improved provision for cyclists
l e g spe
‘©' Improved visibility and safety for all
S users
ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C ion Brochure Page 19

Page 102 of 151

Page 156



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Newhaven Town Centre Ring

Road Virtual Bus Priority
» Bus priority measures
through optimising and
coordinating traffic New and upgraded
. oo . pedestrian crossings at
Slgnal tlmlngs, ensuring various locations along the

that buses are given
priority When naVigating Prapoed virtual bus priority
Newhaven Ring Road.

Enhanced pedestrian
user experience and

safety through traffic
signal upgrades and

improvements.

m East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure

East Sussex
County Council

&% Funded by eyl

UK Government $AYNATAY

Map 11: Package two proposed scheme Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority

Ring Road

measures along the A259 Ring
Road to speed up bus journey
times and reduce congestion

/ Newhaven
m2ey | FerryPort

Newhaven A 3 River
Community Ward R 3 One

Hillcrest.
‘Community Centre
® Junction
@ Pedestrian Crossing
@ Island Crossing
°

Existing bus stop location

Page 20

Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout

» Replacement of the existing mini-roundabout at the A26/Drove Road junction with a traffic signal controlled

m East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C Itation Brochure

East Sussex
County Council

&‘fy Funded by [Sglvi]

UK Government $AYNATAY

junction.

Reallocate existing road space to introduce an eastbound bus lane between the A26/Drove Road junction
and the A259 Drove Roundabout. Westbound traffic would continue to use the westbound lane of Drove Road
but accesses into/out of existing retail areas along this section would become left in, left out only.

Bus lane on the A259 westbound approach and extending around the Denton Roundabout and alongside The
Drove to the Drove roundabout.

Eastbound bus lane between the Drove and Denton roundabouts.
Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.
New shared use pedestrian and cycle paths, with new and upgraded pedestrian and cycle crossings.

Widening of southern footpath along Drove Road between McKinley Way and New Road roundabout.

Page 21

Page 103 of 151

Page 157



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by M
@3 UK Government @m

Proposed new
shared-use path
for pedestrians
Proposed new and cyclists
dedicated bus
lanes on both
sides of the road

Map 12: Package two proposed scheme Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout

@

Key:

. Carriageway

= Proposed bus lane
Footpath

W Grass verge Proposed

northbound bus lane

on the approach to

Denton Roundabout

@ Existing bus stop location
@ Proposed bus stop location

Sainsbury's
The existing 9 o y/ Proposed
Proposed new crossing island 7= new bus
shared-use would be relocated shelters in
pedestrian and 10m to the west . < various
cycle path ‘ K locations

—— Drove Road
‘ 4 - Mount Road

Towards

e Proposed new

. - jature Reserve
= ’m .‘ ’ B - QR crossing facilities
= % connecting with
= McDonaits N Proposed bus gate to shared-use path
provide bus priority
when entering and

3
e
iti "i
Proposed new exiting the roundabout Proposed bus lane

Mckinlay Way [

.,5 » Buis shalters running through
A TheRange, the roundabout
& ewhaven Towards
3 Bishopstone

Existing junction would be upgraded
and converted to left in/left out
movement only. New crossing island

Proposed junction upgrade would be provided to improve safety

with traffic signals and bus
priority measures to speed
up journey times

ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 22

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by “
@% UK Government am

Peacehaven A259 Corridor

« Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions of the A259 South Coast Road. This will complement the
existing bus lanes along the A259 between Peacehaven, Telscombe Cliffs and Brighton.

« Junction upgrades, including signalisation of the A259/Sutton Avenue junction with pedestrian crossing
facilities.

« Proposed new shared-use pedestrian/cycle path through The Dell Park.
» New and upgraded pedestrian crossings.

« Signal upgrades with bus priority at the A259 South Coast Road/Telscombe Cliffs Way junction.

See Map 13 See Map 14 See Map 15

m East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C ion Brochure Page 23

Page 104 of 151

Page 158



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by “
@ UK Government gm

Map 13: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 1 of 3

Proposed narrowing of
the Highview Junction to
improve safety and allow
for a new footway and

greenery alongside

Key:

N
[ \ Il Carriageway
M N Bus lane
\_ Footpath

W Grass verge
@ Existing bus stop location
W Existing on-street parking

Richards
Decorating and
Maintenance

Premiergas
Services

Existing pedestrian

Proposed dedicated bus
crossing to be retained

lanes on both sides of
the carriageway between
Highview Road and
Telscombe Cliffs Way

Matthews
Architectural

Fire House
Pizza and Grill

[ Broomfield Ave

The Smugglers
Rest

9

Proposed widening of
Proposals continue

the existing carriageway
to provide a new bus Proposed removal of the existing "’é-i,’:?sf'}zf,ﬁéffnﬁ,?;‘é"
lane to the west of bus lay-by opposite Broomfield refer to Map 14 for
Highview Road Avenue to allow for the new bus detglis
lane. A new bus stop would be
provided in the same location,
within the bus lane
[t East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C ion Brochure Page 24
East Sussex

County Council

42, Funded by M
&@3 UK Government am

Map 14: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 2 of 3

N Key:
/ \ B Carmageway Proposed upgrades to
) . Bus lane the A259/Telscombe Proposed 2-way bus
\_ Footpath Cliffs Way junction to lanes to be provided
1 Grass verge provide bus priority. through the junction,

® Existing bus stop location Existingnsignal cqmrolled giving buses pvqprny.
pedestrian crossings This would require

Proposals continue Existing on-street parking would be retained removal of the existing "
along the A259 South right-turn pockets Goodfayre
Ca;;s( Road. Ple:;se g P :on;;::rl:me
refer to Map 13 for =
details Siatcy

Existing bus stop
to be retained
| Telscombe Q |

Central Ave

Town Council

Existing pedestrian
crossing would be
retained

Central Ave

Kappadokya

Sussex Way

The Tavern 2 Restaurant
Tel SIS CUiffs z Existing on-street
2 parking would be )
g retained e T
Proposed new footway on the Coast Road. Please
Fairlight Avenue approach to the roundabout. This ”’e":e‘ﬂ,‘,'.ﬂ’”"’
would require a small parcel of
private land, and remains subject
to discussion with landowners
[t East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C ion Brochure Page 25

Page 105 of 151

Page 159



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by i
%} UK Government QM

Map 15: Package two proposed scheme Peacehaven A259 Corridor Section 3 of 3

Key:
W Carriageway

@ ) =

Footpath
Grass verge
@ Existing bus stop location Proposed bus lanes to be
provided through the
) junction, giving buses
a‘[’;zg‘;;:ﬁ z(:;’s";:?h Blt:::hﬂ;:'r;ze’y priority. This wou‘ld require
Coast Road. Please removal of the existing right- Existing pedestrian
relertgemrsm for turn pockets crossing outside

Kamsons Pharmacy to
be upgraded

Nationwide

Neville Building Society

Lodge

Roderick Ave

Roderick Ave

The Dell
Public Park Proposed new shared-

Potential area for Q use pedestrian & cycle
re-landscaping path through The Dell

Hoddern Ave

Park

# East Sussex Bus Priority - Public C Itation Brochure Page 26

East Sussex
County Council

42+, Funded b M
Next Steps A Godn et PO

31 14 25 Dec
July Sept Sept 2023
Public consultation Public Public consultation Preliminary and detailed
exercise on the consultation in- exercise on the design stage, taking into
feasibility designs person event feasibility designs consideration the
begins two and three closes consultation feedback
Public Public Analysis of feedback,
consultation consultation production of
in-person in-person Consultation Summary
event one event four Report
30 16 Oct
Aug Sept 2023
ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 27

Page 106 of 151

Page 160



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Have Your Say

We want your views on the proposed schemes as part
of the BSIP Bus Priority Measures. Your views are
important to us, and this public consultation is an
opportunity to provide feedback and comments on the
latest plans to help shape the detailed design stage.

The consultation is open from the 31st July 2023 to the
25th September 2023. You will have until 12:59pm on
25th September to respond to the survey.

We have a number of ways that you can
provide your views on the proposed
schemes. You can complete our online
consultation survey and find out more
information by scanning the QR code or
visiting:
https://consultation.eastsussex.

gov.uk/economy-transport-environment/

busprioritymeasures

East Sussex
County Council

42, Funded by M

&‘% UK Government QM
Paper copies of the brochure and survey will be
available at all public consultation events.

If you would like to request a paper copy of the survey
or have any questions and comments in relation to the
BSIP Bus Priority Measures, you can contact us via:

<] BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk

@ 07514 721385

A

If you would prefer this document as
easy read copy or in another language
please email:
BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk

Page 28

East Sussex
County Council

&:‘}i Funded by Sy iy

3 UK Government $AYVAAY

We are hosting four in-person drop-in consultation events during the consultation period. The project team will
be available to answer your questions and provide you with more information about the proposed schemes:

Court Room, Eastbourne Town Hall
Grove Road, Eastbourne BN21 4UG

Newhaven Outdoor Market
High Street, BNg 9PA

0oo

L

Bay Vue Road, Newhaven, BNg 9LH

The Foundry (inside The Beacon shopping centre)

Eastbourne, BN21 3NW

The Art Room, Hillcrest Community Centre, Newhaven

3oth August from 2pm to 6pm
14th September from 11am to 2pm
14th September from 3:30pm to 7pm

16th September from 9:30am to 1:30pm

Page 29

Page 107 of 151

Page 161




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

Stay Informed A Ty et Y

You can stay informed about the BSIP Bus Priority Measures by visiting https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-
transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan or keeping an eye on social media.

@ EastSussexCC @ @EastSussexCC

[l East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation Brochure Page 30

You can find more information about
the proposals and complete the
feedback survey by scanning the QR

4 code or visiting https://consultation.
"™ eastsussex.gov.uk/economy-
transport-environment/
busprioritymeasures or in the Have
Your Say section of this brochure.

Photo credit: Lou @Bus_fan234

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by ~
UK Government fj==== &M

Page 108 of 151

Page 162




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix C:
FAQs and Glossary of Terms




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

58
it

A Funded by

* UK Government

East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP) - Bus Priority Measures

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

This document aims to provide clarity and guidance on various questions on the proposals
and public consultation, to allow you to assist you in providing feedback and comment on
the proposals to help shape the next design phase.

If you don't find the answers you're looking for in this document, you can contact the team
via BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk.

We are also hosting a number of in person drop-in events during the consultation period.
During the events, members of the project team will be available to answer your questions
and provide you with more information about the proposed schemes.

For more information about these bus priority measures and other measures we are
delivering under the East Sussex BSIP, please visit https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/roads-
transport/public/bus-service-improvement-plan.

What is a Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP)?

The Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) actively addresses the National Bus Strategy
aiming to enhance bus services by collaborating with Local Transport Authorities, bus
operators, community and business voices, bus passengers, and the voluntary and health
transport sector.

Through the East Sussex BSIP we will deliver bus service improvements, bus stop
improvements and bus priority measures to ensure that residents and visitors enjoy the
highest possible quality bus services that provide a frequent and comprehensive choice,
reduce congestion and make a positive contribution to the community, better air quality
and decarbonisation.

Our BSIP aims are to:

e Improve the reliability and punctuality of bus services and explore methods to make
bus services more accessible.

e Encourages an increase in the proportion of people travelling by bus.

e Enhance the bus network, reducing journey times and improving reliability and
punctuality of bus services.

e Increase bus usage across the county by building a bus network that meets everyone's
needs.

How much do the schemes cost and how are they being funded?

We are proposing seven separate yet complementary schemes across the county. These have
been grouped into two packages, based on the geographical location of each proposal. At
this early stage of design, a high-level costing exercise has been undertaken with a more
detailed one expected as the design stages progress.

fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 1

Page 110 of 151

Page 164



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by
" UK Government

58
it

The improvements will be funded through capital funding from the UK Government. In 2022
we were awarded £41.4 million towards the delivery of our BSIP. A proportion of this funding
was allocated specifically to deliver bus priority measures by the end of March 2025. This
will be used to fund the schemes we are consulting on, subject to the feedback received.

What is being proposed?

The schemes will deliver a series of bus priority measures to make bus journeys quicker,
more efficient and reliable. Alongside the bus improvements we are also seeking to improve
facilities for cyclists and pedestrians through dedicated spaces and improved crossing
facilities to make it safer and easier to travel.

The schemes have been split into two packages, based on their geographical location.
Specifically, the packages and schemes are made up of the following interventions:

e Dedicated bus lanes to give buses priority over general traffic. This will speed up
journey times as buses will no longer be held up in queues of traffic.

e Bus priority signals at junctions, to reduce the time spent waiting at traffic lights
and reduce delay.

e Junction alterations to provide bus priority.

e Virtual bus priority measures, including optimising traffic light timings to reduce
waiting times for buses.

e Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure, with new bus
shelters to be provided in some locations.

e Introduction of shared-use facilities for pedestrians and cyclists, including dedicated
routes for cycling and walking, away from general traffic.

e Footway widening in certain locations to make it safer for people travelling on foot.

e Proposed landscaping improvements with planting, sheltered seating areas and cycle
parking.

e Junction improvements, including the conversion of some mini-roundabouts into
signalised junctions with traffic lights. This will allow us to provide safer crossing
facilities for pedestrians and cyclists.

For further information on the specific proposals for each location, please refer to the
consultation brochure.

Please note that the final designs are still under development, and the proposals could
change depending on the feedback received throughout the consultation exercise and
further detailed design stages.

Which areas will be affected?
The proposed schemes cover the following three areas:

e Eastbourne;
e Newhaven; and
e Peacehaven.

For further detail on the specific roads and localities to be affected, please refer to the
consultation brochure.

fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 2

Page 111 of 151

Page 165



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by
" UK Government

58
it

Why are the improvements needed?

In East Sussex, the number of journeys made by bus has been in decline since 2014. The East
Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) is an ambitious plan that seeks to stimulate and
drive significant improvements to local bus services across the local authority area. These
improvements are intended to:

e Recover bus usage from the Covid-19 pandemic, taking account of consequential
changes in travel patterns, and to increase usage significantly in future years;

e See astep change in local transport provision delivered to current and new bus users;

e Seek to readdress the balance in modal share between private and public transport;
increase bus mode share; and

¢ Tackle vehicle emission and climate change concerns.

The BSIP actively addresses the National Bus Strategy's requirements to work together at
pace to grow bus patronage: both to build it back after the pandemic and then to increase
it and raise buses' mode share.

The results from a 2018 Bus Passenger Survey identified ‘bus punctuality’ and ‘journey
times’ as factors to be improved within East Sussex. The BSIP will help tackle these
challenges through a programme of bus priority measures, to speed up journey times and
ensure buses turn up on time.

At a broader level, the BSIP will help address the existing challenges and remove barriers to
bus use, unlock even better services and generate modal shift from the private car to bus.

What standards are the proposals being designed to?

Where possible, the project will seek to meet the guidance detailed for local authorities in
the Government Local Transport Note 1/20: Cycle Infrastructure Design. Beyond that, the
Manual for Streets will also be considered. The impact of the scheme on all road users has
been considered, to ensure that the needs of everyone are met, whilst facilitating quicker
and more reliable bus journeys, as well as safer journeys for cyclists and pedestrians.

Due to width constraints in certain locations, and to minimise private land take, much of
the pedestrian and cycle provision will be shared-use. We are also proposing some sections
of shared bus and cycle lanes. This is due to pinch points in the network where the available
road widths do not allow for the provision of segregated facilities for all road users. However,
at a later stage of design, the schemes will undergo a full Road Safety Audit (RSA) to ensure
the facilities are considered safe for all road users.

When will the schemes be built?

The feedback received during this consultation exercise will be taken into consideration and
used to inform the detailed design stage, which is planned to commence in December 2023.
Following this a construction programme will be developed.

How will people travelling in cars be impacted?

As part of the scheme, there will be some changes to the roads for car users in certain
locations. This includes:

fﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 3

Page 112 of 151

Page 166



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by lishied gl
" UK Government NN

e King's Drive, Upperton:

o Along King's Drive between Decoy Drive and Rodmill Roundabout we will
reduce the northbound and southbound dedicated right turning lanes to
accommodate a dedicated bus lane.

o The northbound dedicated right turning lane towards Regent Place and the
southbound right pocket lane at Selmeston Road will also be removed.

e Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout:

o Along A259 Seaside between Gilbert Road and A2021 we will remove the
northbound existing left turn lane.

o Southbound along the A259 Seaside between the Lottbridge Drove
Roundabout and Langney Roundabout, we will remove the dedicated right
turning lanes to accommodate a dedicated southbound bus lane.

o The southbound approach towards Lottbridge Drove, traffic lanes will be
reduced from two lanes to one lane to accommodate a dedicated bus lane.

e Eastbourne Station Area:

o Along Station Parade between Wharf Road and Southfields Road we will
reduce the number of traffic lanes to accommodate a dedicated bus lane.
This means that on the southbound approach towards Southfields Road, the
number of general traffic lanes will be reduced from two to one.

e Drove Road, Newhaven Town and Denton Roundabout:

o Along Drove Road between Railway Road and New Road we will remove the
southbound existing right turn lane.

o Along Drove Road northbound between New Road and Mckinlay Way we will
reduce the number of traffic lanes to accommodate a dedicated bus lane.
This means that on the northbound approach towards Mckinlay Way, the
number of general traffic lanes will be reduced from two to one.

Before the schemes are constructed, a further detailed modelling exercise will be
undertaken to understand any impact on journey times.

Does the scheme require any land take / is my property at risk?

At this stage it is anticipated that the majority of the construction works can take place
within the existing highway boundary maintained by East Sussex County Council as the Local
Highway Authority. However, for a number of the proposals to be delivered, some minor land
acquisition may be required. Any affected landowners would be contacted directly by the
project team.

Will any trees be impacted?

The proposed designs have been developed to try and avoid any tree loss. However, at this
stage of design, it is anticipated that a number of trees may be impacted. This includes:

e Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout: A single tree on the corner of Seaside
Road/Whitley Road;

e Sovereign Harbour: Four to five trees between Atlantic Drive and Crumbles Retail
Park;

e Drove Road, Newhaven Town and Denton Roundabout: Roughly 20 trees on the
eastbound approach to Denton Roundabout;

East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 4

Page 113 of 151

Page 167



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

Funded by
" UK Government

58
it

e Drove Road, Newhaven Town and Denton Roundabout: Some trees and shrubbery
at Mount Road; and,

e Drove Road, Newhaven Town and Denton Roundabout: Tree and vegetation
removal expected south of A259/B2109 roundabout to permit carriageway widening.

Where possible we will work with landscape designers to find alternative planting solutions.
Will parking be impacted?

At this stage of design, it is anticipated that some existing parking arrangements may be
affected by some of the proposed schemes. This specifically includes the proposals at
Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout, which will see the following changes to parking:

e Along A259 Seaside between Hydney Street and Beamsley Road southbound we will
reduce the number of on-street parking spaces to accommodate a dedicated bus
lane.

e Along A259 Seaside between Hydney Street and Seafoard Road we will remove the
southbound existing parking spaces to accommodate a new southbound bus lane
between Seaford Road and Beamsley Road.

e Along A259 Seaside between Wartling Road and Vinchelsea Road northbound we will
reduce the number of on-street parking spaces to accommodate a dedicated bus
lane. This means that on the northbound approach towards Vine Square, the
number of on-street parking spaces will be reduced.

¢ Northbound along the A259 Seaside between Finmere Road and Fort Road we will
remove the existing parking spaces along the northbound approach to
accommodate a new northbound bus lane between Finmere Road and Fort Road.

e Along A259 Seaside between Princes Roundabout and Queens Crescent we will
remove the existing parking spaces along the southbound approach to
accommodate a new southbound bus lane between Princes Roundabout and Queens
Crescent.

In some locations, additional on-street parking is being considered. This will be confirmed
at the detailed design phase. For further detail please refer to the consultation brochure.

How will you minimise disruption while the scheme is being constructed?

A scheme construction plan will be developed once the outcome of the consultation is
known. Prior to any construction works taking place, the impact of the works on local
people, businesses, road users and the environment will be assessed, and mitigation
measures designed.

What are the next steps?

We will carefully consider all comments received during the consultation. Your views are
important to us, and this public consultation is an opportunity to provide feedback and
comments on the current proposed schemes to help shape the detailed design stage.

We will document the process and publish the results in a consultation report.

m,..,..., 3 East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs .

Page 114 of 151

Page 168



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

58
it

@ Funded by
UK Government
Glossary of Terms

Bus Priority Signals

Bus priority signals are a way of reducing journey
times and improving the reliability of bus services
when passing through traffic lights. Priority can be
given to buses through extending the green traffic
light phase and/ or by reducing the green time for
other traffic, meaning buses have more time to
pass through the traffic lights and are less likely to
be delayed.

Bus priority signals are a cost-effective method of
enhancing the speed and reliability of bus travel,
making it a more attractive option over cars.

Dedicated Bus Lane

A dedicated bus lane is a traffic lane that is
restricted to buses, often on certain days and
times, and is generally to speed up journey times
that would otherwise be held up by traffic
congestion.

Bus lanes are shown by road markings and signs that
indicate the periods of operation and if any other
vehicles are permitted to use the bus lane. Most
bus lanes operate at peak times only (typically
7.30am to 9.30am or 3.30pm to 6.00pm on Monday
to Friday). Outside the hours of operation the lanes
can generally be used by all traffic.

Single Lane Dedicated Bus Corridor

A variation of the dedicated bus lane, single lane
dedicated bus corridor function as bus-only lanes
but allow buses travelling in both directions to
share a single lane.

Signal technology is used to indicate lane
availability to buses by signalling when it is safe to
continue and stopping them when the lane is in use.

[ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs 6

Page 115 of 151

Page 169



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

58
it

@ Funded by
UK Government
Virtual Bus Priority Measures

We are proposing to introduce virtual bus priority
measures along the Newhaven town centre Ring
Road. These measures involve optimising the traffic
light timings and coordinating the signals along the
full route, to ensure buses are not held up at the
traffic lights. This would allow buses to travel
seamlessly, by reducing the number of times they
need to stop, ultimately reducing overall journey
times and improving reliability.

The virtual bus priority measures require no
physical construction, so you may not notice any
physical on-the ground changes.

Shared-Use Pedestrian and Cycle Path

A path or area which is shared by more than one
type of transport. In the context of this proposal,
this refers to people walking and cycling.

Zebra Crossing

A Zebra Crossing is a type of pedestrians crossing
that has flashing amber lights on the pavement,
black and white stripes on the road.

It indicates that pedestrians have priority over
vehicular traffic and traffic is expected to stop
once a pedestrian has started crossing.

As there are no traffic lights, a zebra crossing is
considered an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing.

Toucan Crossing

A Toucan Crossing is a type of crossing that helps
both pedestrians and cyclists cross the road safely.
It's named "Toucan” because "two can" use it
together - pedestrians and cyclists.

At these crossings, there are traffic lights that stop
the vehicular traffic so that pedestrians and

[ﬁ East Sussex Bus Priority Measures - Public Consultation FAQs Z

Page 116 of 151

Page 170



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Council

Funded b ]
& UK Gover¥1ment QM

cyclists can cross the road at the same time. This
crossing is made to encourage walking and cycling
and to keep people who are not driving safe while
crossing the road.

Pedestrian Crossing Island

A pedestrian crossing island is a small, safe area in
the middle of the road. It's made for pedestrians
walking to cross the road in two steps. It helps
make crossing the road easier and safer.

s s

Page 117 of 151

Page 171



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix D:
Press Release




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

PRESS OFFICE

Views sought on bus service boosting plans

PROPOSALS to help make bus services more reliable, improve jour-

ney times and g In Eastbourne, Newh: d

Peacehaven have been unveiled. Tweets from
@EastSussexCC

Now East Sussex County Council s asking the public to give their P

views on the i bus lanes, bus stops and shel- i D= o, Xn
@..-Nov2, 2022

ters. upgrades to junctions and signals to give priority to buses, and

new and upgraded pedestrian routes and crossings. #DYK: More than 3 third of

people who menstruate have

had to use makeshift pads

when struggling to afford

idents and visitors can enjoy ighest p y 3 quality period products?

and helping the county to reduce its carbon footprint.

‘The Improvements are part of the counci's Bus Service Improvement plan aimed at ensuring

Help us #EndPeriodPoverty
The proposals are just one part of the plan which is being progressed after the council recelved and drop off any new packs

you can spare at your local
£41.4 million from Government. orary,or donate onfine
owly/EquhS0Lr1oM
Clir Claire Dowling, lead member for transport and environment, said: “We believe that by mak-

Ing these Eastb and Newhaven, we can help to provide #END ERIODOVERTY

amore reliable service for residents and visitors, encourage greater use of public transport, and
tackle congestion In these areas.

“It's important that we work with local to ensure that any putin
I

most positive ble. To achieve
this, we need to hear from residents and businesses and their feedback will help shape our final
designs.”

Q687 Q208 (6]

- East Sussex Co...
B .. May9, 2019 A
A range of measures are planned in four areas in Eastbourne - King's Drive, Upperton, Seaside

Corridor and Seaside Roundabout. Eastbourne Station Area, and Sovereign Harbour, and three

in Newhaven and - Newhaven Town Ct ng |, Drove Road, Newhaven

Town Area and Denton Roundabout, and Peacehaven A259 Corridor. Teweets from

covvivaus

The public consultation, which started on July 31, runs until Monday. September 25. Residents =
can have their say by visiting i EastSussex Hi.. X 1
@..-Feb 26,2018
environment/busprioritymeasures
Gritters are go! They're
take place for the public to view ‘Curtently gritting al rites
(primary & secondary) and
will be out again at 1am on
primary routes.
‘Wednesday. August 30 - 2pm to 6pm - Court Room, Eastbourne Town Hall #GritterTwitter
Thursday, September 7 - 10am to Tpm - Room 1, Telscombe Civic Centre, South Coast
Road, Telscombe Cliffs,
Thursday September 7 - 2pm to Spm - Community House, Meridian Centre. Meridian
Way, Peacehaven
Thursday. September 14 - 11am to 2pm - Newhaven Outdoor Market. High Street
Thursday, September 14 - 3.30pm to 7pm - The Art Room, Hillcrest Community Centre,
Newhaven 07104 o)
Saturday, September 16 - 9.30am to 1.30pm - The Foundry, Beacon Shopping Centre.
Eastbourne ‘ East Sussex Hi... J(
@..-0ct 18,2014
Allfeedback from Once again the imaginative
are drawn up towards the end of the year. primary school children have
come up with fantastic
names!

plans and ask questions:

st 4, 2023 by karenb.

https://news.eastsussex.gov.uk/2023/08/04/views-sought-on-bus-service-boosting-
plans/

Page 119 of 151

Page 173


https://news.eastsussex.gov.uk/2023/08/04/views-sought-on-bus-service-boosting-plans/
https://news.eastsussex.gov.uk/2023/08/04/views-sought-on-bus-service-boosting-plans/

Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix E:
Social Media Posts




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Twitter Posts:

East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Sep 25
Today is the last day to have your say on the proposed #EastSussex bus
priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven.

Please complete the survey by 11.59pm tonight: ow.ly/XI7k50PvOCq.

EAST SUSSEX
BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

o]

Funded by el S|

ﬁ UK Government WA
®) 0 s Qe i 2,063 &

- East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Sep 20
There is not long left to complete our survey on the proposed bus priority
measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven.
The consultation closes on the 25 September - find out more or complete
the survey online: ow.ly/GPTF50PvOqx

i==mn

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
County Counch

- East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Aug 26
Join us on 7 September in #Peacehaven to hear more about proposed bus
priority measures in the area.
We will be at Telscombe Civic Centre 10am-1pm, and Community House in
the Meridian Centre 2-5pm.

For more information, please visit: ow.ly/IIgf50PuRrP

#HAVE YOUR SAY

Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP)
Bus Priority Measures

7th

September 2023

Room 1, Telscombe Civic The Main Hall, Community

Centre House, Peacehaven
10am - 1pm 2pm - 5pm
360 South Coast Road, Telscombe Meridian Centre, Meridian Way,
Cliffs, BN1o 7ES Peacehaven, BN1o 8BB

The project team will be available to
discuss the proposals and answer any

questions you may have. e
a”
o 0 v} iht 466 &

East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Aug 8
We have launched a public consultation for proposed #EastSussex bus
priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven. We
would love to hear what you think, for more information and to complete
our survey, visit: ow.ly/Yalz50PulzZ

Dl

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

Funded by ] ngi
ﬁ UK Government A
Q 1 0 s Q6 ih 3.876 &

- East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Sep 3
Want to know more about the proposed bus priority measures in
#Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven?
Join us on the 14 September at Newhaven Outdoor Market 11-2, or Hillcrest
Community Centre 3.30-7 to put your questions to the team.

Find out more: ow.ly/1Z6J50PuWng

Uil

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

52 Funded s
e - W
e b ox O 9 i 814 2

- East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Aug 22

Please provide us with your feedback on proposals for #EastSussex bus
priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven.
Take part in the online consultation: ow.ly/yiwG50PuQPo

EAST SUSSEX
BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

.2 Funded YR
ﬁ UKnGov:r)r:ament g“

(@liy 4 () h 3,421 A
Page 121 of 151

Page 175



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Sep 13
Want to learn more about proposed bus service priority measures in
#Eastbourne #Newhaven and #Peacehaven?

Watch the webinar on YouTube and have your say on the proposals before
25 September via the link in the video description:

youtube.com

East Sussex BSIP Consultation Webinar

East Sussex County Council submitted its Bus
Service Improvement Plan (otherwise known as ...

CE IMPROVEMENT

)
¥ Measures o
binar

o 01 Q il 360

(53

East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Aug 30

Join us today at Eastbourne Town Hall, 2-6pm, for our drop-in event about
proposed bus priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and
#Peacehaven.

Can’t make it? We're holding another at The Foundry on 16 September,
9:30-1:30

For more info, please visit ow.ly/vt2v50PuUZi

East Sussex

JOIN US TODAY! ey

Between 2pm and 6pm

#HAVE YOUR SAY

ON THE

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

EASTBOURNE TOWN HALL

COURT ROOM, EASTBOURNE TOWN HALL, GROVE ROAD, EASTBOURNE, BN21 4UG.

East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Sep 9

Haven’t been able to attend any of our in-person consultation events
about the proposed bus priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven
and #Peacehaven?

Lots of information and the opportunity to have your say can be found on
our website: ow.ly/janV50PuYYo.

el

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
County Counil

Funded ke oy
N8 Gk Sovernment AN

o 3 2 (VAR it 789 &

Page 176

East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Sep 7

Put your questions to the team! Join us today at Telscombe Civic Centre,
10-1, or Community House in the Meridian Centre, 2-5, for our drop-in
events about proposed bus priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven
and #Peacehaven.

Find out more: ow.ly/wysM50PuXNe

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

. Funded elesy]
48 UK Severmment WA
®) 0 Q i 429 &

East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Sep 16

Join us 9.30-1.3- today for our final drop-in event in #Eastbourne at The
Foundry, to learn more about our proposed bus priority measures.

The project team will be available to discuss the proposals and answer any
questions.

Find out more: ow.ly/Nkng50PuZBK

Ol
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
Cosnty Coumell

o8 G e

@] 0 Q il 485

>

East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Sep 14

Your questions, answered!

Join us today at #Newhaven Outdoor Market, 11- 2, or Hillcrest Community
Centre, 3.30-7, for drop-in events about your area's proposed bus priority
measures.

Find out more: ow.ly/VFGq50PuzZwzZ

i===8

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

Funded e
UK Goveb%mem awv
O 1758 Q 374 &

Page 122 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

- East Sussex County Council @EastSussexCC - Aug 16

On 30 August we are holding a drop-in event about proposed bus priority

measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven & #Peacehaven.

Join the project team at Eastbourne Town Hall between 2-6 pm to learn

more about the proposals.
Find out more: ow.ly/MPO0O50PuPsz

JOIN US AT

#HAVE YOUR SAY

ONTH

o O o
Rall 1)

O 1 n 7 Q a i 887

Facebook Posts

East Sussex County Council
3d-Q

Join us 9.30-1.3- today for our final drop-in event in #Eastbourne at The Foundry, to learn more
about our proposed bus priority measures.

The project team will be available to discuss the proposals and answer any questions.
Find out more: https://ow.ly/5Atb50PuZBL

"
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation

day 31 July to Monday 25 S b

p 2023
S
Funded by st siety
@ UK Government SO
O
oY Like () Comment /> Share

EASTBOURNE TOWN HAL:

2

- East Sussex County Council
54-Q

Your questions, answered!

Join us today at #Newhaven Outdoor Market, 11- 2, or Hillcrest Community Centre, 3.30-7, for
drop-in events about your area's proposed bus priority measures.

Find out more: https://ow.ly/xqt750PuZx0

1===2
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation

day 31 July to Monday 25 Sep b

2023

East Sussex

%3, Funded by iR
@ UK Gover)r,\ment WW

1 comment 2 shares

Page 123 of 151

Page 177



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

-— East Sussex County Council
6d-Q

Want to learn more about proposed bus service priority measures in #Eastbourne #Newhaven
and #Peacehaven?

Watch the webinar on YouTube and have your say on the proposals before 25 September via the

link in the video description: https://ow.ly/Ayn150PL4IM

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT
PLAN (BSIP) -
Bus Priority Measures

Online Webinar

& o,

UK Government

YOUTUBE.COM

East Sussex BSIP Consultation Webinar
East Sussex County Council submitted its Bus Service Improvement Plan (otherwise known as ...

- East Sussex County Council
22 August at 18:00 - @

Please provide us with your feedback on proposals for #EastSussex bus priority measures in
#Eastboumne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven.

Take part in the online consultation: https://ow.ly/HI8F50PuQPn

Dl
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation

day 31 July to Monday 25 S ber 2023

East Sussex
County Council

3. Funded b el
% UK Gover)r/\ment AR

2 comments 1 share

o Like (J Comment /> Share

---- - East Sussex County Council
3 September at 18:00 - @

Want to know more about the proposed bus priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and
#Peacehaven?

Join us on the 14 September at Newhaven Outdoor Market 11-2, or Hillcrest Community Centre
3.30-7 and put your questions to the project team.
Find out more:

O
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
Ceunty Counct

Aig Funded by W”
3 UK Government A a

|
CONSULTATION.EASTSUSSEX.GOV.UK

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures - East Sussex - Citizen Space
This site contains consultations that are run by East Sussex.

vvvvvv - East Sussex County Council
9 September at 18:30 - @

Haven't been able to attend any of our in-person consultation events about the proposed bus
priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven?

Lots of information and the opportunity to have your say can be found on our website:
https://ow.ly/1mZ550PuYYn.

EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation

day 31 July to Monday 25 ber 2023

p

East Sussex
County Counci

Funded by WM
M D anment S
O1

11 shares

East Sussex County Council
7 September at 07:00 - @

e
Join us today at Telscombe Civic Centre, 10-1, or Community House in the Meridian Centre, 2-5,

for our drop-in events about proposed bus priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and
#Peacehaven.

The project team will be available to discuss the proposals and answer any questions.
Find out more: https://ow.ly/e6yq50PuXNi

Ol
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation

day 31 July to Monday 25 St ber 2023

East Sussex
County Coundil

Funded by Sl
&5 UK Government A

- East Sussex County Council
10 August - @

The proposed #EastSussex bus priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven
will:

@'mprove bus reliability

BEncourage greater bus use

B Complement wider initiatives

@Reduce congestion

BCreate safer opportunities for walking and cycling

Read more and provide your thoughts: https://ow.ly/SwvS50PuOaX

Dl
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation

Monday 31 July to Monday 25 ber 2023

East Sussex
County Councit

Funded by o]
UK Government A
[+ ]

1 comment 2 shares

Page 124 of 151

Page 178



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

~— East Sussex County Council
WO 2 gust ot 0700 - @

Join us today at Eastbourne Town Hall, 2-6pm, for our drop-in event about the proposed bus
priority measures in #Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven and put your questions to the
project team

Can't make it? We're holding a second event at The Foundry on 16 September, 9:30-1:30.
For more info, please visit https://ow.ly/HHVx50PuWgp

JOIN US TODAY!

ey
Between 2pm and 6pm WS

#HAVE YOUR SAY

ON THE

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN
BUS PRIORITY MEASURE

EASTBOURNE TOWN HALL

COURT ROOM, EASTBOURNE TOWN HALL, GROVE ROAD, EASTBOURNE, BN2: 4UG.

-— East Sussex County Council
16 August - @

On 30 August we are holding a drop-in event about proposed bus priority measures in
#Eastbourne, #Newhaven & #Peacehaven.

Join the project team at Eastbourne Town Hall between 2-6 pm to learn more about the
proposals.

Find out more: https://ow.ly/kxXn50PuPsA

/1 0INuUS AT

EASTBOURNE TOWN HALL
BETWEEN 2PM AND 6PM

#HAVE YOUR SAY

ON THE
BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

o O o

Al

¥
H

8
 §

3 shares

East Sussex County Council
26 August at 1200 @

Join us on 7 September in #Peacehaven to hear more about proposed bus priority measures in
the area.

We will be at Telscombe Civic Centre 10am-1pm, and Community House in the Meridian Centre 2-
Spm.

For more information, please visit: https://ow.ly/Rx3B50PuRrQ

#HAVE YOUR SAY

Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP)
Bus Priority Measures

7th

September 2023

Room 1, Telscombe Civic The Main Hall, Community

entre House, Peacehaven
10am - 1pm 2pm - 5pm
360 South Coast Road, Telscombe Meridian Centre, Meridian Way,
Cliffs, BN1o 7ES Peacehaven, BN1o 888

The project team will be available to
discuss the proposals and answer any
questions you may have.

1 comment 1 share

-~ East Sussex County Council e
8 August * @

We have launched a public consultation for proposed #EastSussex bus priority measures in
#Eastbourne, #Newhaven and #Peacehaven. We would love to hear what you think, for more
information and to complete our survey, visit: https://ow.ly/IVOV50PuJA1

1===2}
EAST SUSSEX

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) -
BUS PRIORITY MEASURES

Public Consultation
Monday 31 July to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex
County Council

W

1 comment 4 shares

Funded by
2 UK Government

Page 125 of 151

Page 179



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix F:
Consultation Postcard




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex
County Councl

HAVE YOUR SAY w

East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures ot ous s russ
Survey is open from Monday 31 July 2023 to Monday 25 September 2023

fi

East Sussex County Council is proposing Bus Priority Improvement
Measures as part of their Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) in
Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven.

Help shape bus priority schemes in East Sussex by providing
feedback on the proposals.
The improvements we are proposing as part of the bus priority schemes aim to:
{Z} Improve Bus Reliability M Encourage Greater Bus Use

! Reduce Congestion and Improve Traffic Flow

= Compliment Wider Initiatives 74> Create Safer Options

You can find more information about the
proposals and complete the feedback
survey by scanning the QR code or
visiting
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk

Funded by [economy-transport-
" UK Government environment/busprioritymeasures/

East Sussex
County Councll

HAVE YOUR SAY %

East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures s s 55 Fuss
Survey is open from Monday 31 July 2023 to Monday 25 September 2023

n In-person consultation events are being held at:
a = Eastbourne Town Hall on 30th August from 2pm to 6pm
= Newhaven Outdoor Market on 14th September from 11am to 2pm

= Hillcrest Community Centre, Newhaven on 14th September from 3:30pm to 7pm
= The Foundry, Eastbourne on 16th September from 9:30am to 1:30pm

&

ooo
ooo
(=)=}

ooo

If you are unable to access the survey online, or if you need the
information in an alternative format, please contact us via:

[>-<] BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk
@ 07514721385

@ Funded by
UK Government

Page 127 of 151

Page 181



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix G:
Postcard Distribution Areas




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Sovereign Harbour, Eastbourne
Houses around Atlantic Drive Roundabout - 73 postcards delivered

ASDASTORE
RASDAS

AN e J
ORISR ek o MR

Kings Drive, Eastbourne
Houses between Decoy Drive and Rodmill Roundabout - 75 postcards delivered

Halom Sperts

& !
// Haj:wr Ers

e

Page 129 of 151

Page 183



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Seaside Roundabout, Eastbourne
46 postcards delivered

y 7

JY . Y =
oAy AANDERIDA COLURT '

e

Langley Roundabout, Eastbourne
26 postcards delivered

Page 130 of 151

Page 184



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

A259 South Coast Road, Peacehaven
(A259 Cross Road/ Sussex Way/ Telscombe Cliffs Way and top of The Dell Park)
129 postcards delivered

.

2DANJ
b

STEWART MOULAND MOTOR CARAVANS

370 AQUA HOUSE
. a

PALM COURT 362364
a

SUSSEX HOUSE

15 NEVILLE LODGE

Newhaven, Denton Roundabout
36 postcards delivered

Page 131 of 151

Page 185



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Newhaven Town Area Ring Road

87 postcards delivered

BRIDGE COURT

oS
N

Wy

: e w i

PN, GRSl

‘a8 1aay | ) A
. Q‘L .

-

i A
1815 14 411
DAY

Page 186

Page 132 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix H:
Consultation Poster




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

HAVE YOUR SAY

East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures
Survey is open from Monday 31 July 2023 to Monday 25 September 2023

East Sussex County Council is proposing Bus Priority
Improvement Measures as part of their Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP) in Eastbourne, Newhaven and
Peacehaven.

Help shape bus priority schemes in East Sussex by providing
feedback on the proposals.

You can find more information about the
proposals and complete the feedback survey
by scanning the QR code or visiting
https://consultation.eastsussex.gov.uk/
economy-transport-environment/
busprioritymeasures/

In-person consultation events are being held at:
» Eastbourne Town Hall on 30th August from 2pm to 6pm
« Telscombe Civic Centre on 7th September from 10am to 1pm
« Community House, Peacehaven on 7th September from 2pm to s5pm
229¢7 « Newhaven Outdoor Market on 14th September from 11am to 2pm

« Hillcrest Community Centre, Newhaven on 14th September from 3:30pm to 7pm

« The Foundry, Eastbourne on 16th September from 9:30am to 1:30pm
(inside The Beacon shopping centre)

If you are unable to access the survey online, or if you need the
information in an alternative format, please contact us via:

@ BSIPConsultation@eastsussex.gov.uk @ 07514721385

East Sussex
County Council

MORE BUS LESS FUSS
g-2 Funded b Ry ey
@3 UK Gover¥lment [m wm
Page 134 of 151

Page 188




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix I:
Event Banners




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) BUS PRIORITY MEASURES
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL Public Consultation 2023

Map 50 Fackage 1w propased scheme Feienaven 4259 Cormder

Falran ana

Kamsans Pharmacy
to be upgraded

ay 1o provide

us lane to th
of Highiaw Road

uld be
retained
lacation, within the bus lane

Peacehaven A259 Corridor
Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions of the A25g Seuth Coast Road. This will complement the Proposed new shared-use pedestrian/cycle path through The Dell Park.

existing bus lanes along the A259 between Peacehaven, Telscombe Cliffs and Brighton.
New and upgraded pedestrian crossings.

Junction upgrades, including signalisation of the A259/Sutton Avenue junction with pedestrian crossing
facilities. Signal upgrades with bus priority at the A259 South Coast Road/Telscombe Cliffs Way junction.

We want your views on the proposed schemes as part of the BSIP Bus Priority Measures, If you would like to request a paper copy of the survey or have
Your views are important to us, and this public consultation is an opportunity to provide any questions and comments in relation to the BSIP Bus Priority
feedback and comments on the latest plans to help shape the detailed design stage. Measures, you can speak to one of the team or contact us via:

We have a number of ways that you can provide your views on the proposed schemes. You can .
complete our enline consultation survey and find out mere information by scanning the QR code or B BSIPCnnsultatnnn@eastsussex.guv.uk

visiting: https://consultation gov.uk/economy-transport- S
07514 72138
environment/busprioritymeasures % 7514 721385

Funded by e g
UK Government fi===—=i gﬁ

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) BUS PRIORITY MEASURES
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL Public Consultation 2023

Virtuat us Prority

Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout
Replacement of the existing mini-roundabout at the A26/Drove Road Eastbound bus lane between the Drove and Denton roundabouts.
junction with a traffic signal controlled junction.

Bus lane on the A259 westbound approach and extending around the
At o s Reallocate existing road space to introduce an eastbound bus lane Denton Roundabout and alongside The Drove to the Drove roundabout.
il el Taich \he Ring Rood between the A26/Drove Road junction and the A259 Drove Roundabout.
congestion v Westbound traffic would continue to use the westbound lane of Drove New shared use pedestrian and cycle paths, with new and upgraded
Road but accesses intofout of existing retail areas along this section pedestrian and cycle crossings.
would become left in, left out only.

Proposed virtual bus priority Wew and upgra
pedestiia

Widening of southern footpath along Drove Road between McKinley
Relocation of bus stops and i to bus stop i B Way and New Road roundabout,

. Newhzuen Town Area 3nd

Proposed northbound

bus lane

approach to Denton Proposed new dedicated
L Roundabout bus lanes on both sides

of the road

pr—

Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road
Bus priority measures through optimising and coordinating traffic signal timings,
ensuring that buses are given priority when navigating Newhaven Ring Road.

R

Enhanced pedestrian user experience and safety through traffic signal upgrades
and improvements.

Proposed new crossing
facilities

MeDenads Proposed bu L

bus priority when enteri

exiting the roundabout

Proposed bus lane
running through the:
roundabout

Existing junction would be upgraded

and con

Proposed junction upgrade with
and bus priority measures to speed up journey
times

Funded by
UK Government

Page 136 of 151

Page 190



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) BUS PRIORITY MEASURES
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

Public Consultation 2023

Proposed junctio
provide bus

may req
number of parking s

junction, to provide a tou
ing crossings on the remaining arms

hton Road and
Road

o1
ppasite

orth
Woodgate Road

Proposed upgrade to the

Romney

E———

between Seaford Road
and Beamsley Road

0ad junction to allo
for the new bus lane

roposed news
northbound bus

The existing bus stop near
Winchelsea Road would be
removed and relocated to

of
fight turn pock
the junction

3.arms of the
toundabout

approac
roundabout

jon upgrade at
th tr

lights, This would help reduce traffic
build up at Seaside Roundab

would be
upgrade
traffic lights

Funded by
UK Government

Seaside  Corridor and  Seaside
Roundabout

Provision of dedicated bus lanes from

east of Gilbert Road to Langney Rise

roundabout in both directions on Seaside

Road and St Anthony's Avenue to improve

bus journey times.

Shared use cycle path and cycle
improvements along Seaside Road and St
Anthony's Avenue to connect with
existing cycle routes.

New and upgraded pedestrian crossings
including a toucan crossing at the
Seaside Roundabout linking the two

existing sections of shared
footway/cycle-way along  Lottbridge
Drove.

Traffic signal upgrades to at several
junctions along A259 Seaside Road to
provide bus priority.

Relocation of bus stops and
improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) BUS PRIORITY MEASURES
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

Map 3 Package one progosed schere King s Orive, Upperion

Map a: Packs e ane preposed scham e Zas bourme Siaion frms

ecoy Drive and
undabout

Pio

posed new
ocation of bu:

o Drive a
Rodmill Roundatiout

Public Consultation 2023

King's Drive, Upperton
Implementation  of  bus
priority measures to enhance
the reliability and speed of
bus services, through the
introduction of a dedicated
bus lane, serving Easthourne
District General Hospital and
East  Sussex  College
Eastbourne campus.

o

A southbound bus lane is
proposed between Decoy
Drive and Rodmill
roundabout.

Existing bus.priori

Eastbourne Station Area
Dedicated bus lanes and
shared use cycle path
along Upperton Road and
Station Parade.

Replace existing Station
Parade/Southfields Road
roundabout with a traffic
signal controlled junction
including pedestrian
crossing facilities.

Complement the existing
bus priority measures
(dedicated bus lanes) in

Relacation of bus stops and
improvements to bus stop
infrastructure,

Mhap 5: Packae une prupused schems Savereisn Harbaut

traffic signals and pedestrian crossing facilities.

Town Centre
on Terminus Road and
Gildredge Road.

ey
s, | - Cartagemay
f | shared-use path
= Proposed bus lane

Aeiandszaped areas

Foatpath
Grass verge
@ Exsting bus stop

entry Lo
direction,

Former
Cineworld

Sovereign Harbour

New single lane
dedicated bus comidor,
which can be used in
both directions through
controlled traffic signals.

Realigned shared
pedestrian  and
route to link
existing  route  along
Atlantic  Drive  and
Harbour Quay/Pacific
Drive.

use
eyele
into the

Proposed landscaping
improvements with
planting, sheltered
seating areas and cycle

. Funded by
UK Government

Page 191

Junction alteration providing bus priority at Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay.

parking.

Page 137 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) BUS PRIORITY MEASURES
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL Public Consultation 2023

The proposed packages of schemes are in Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven and have been split into two packages of schemes, based on their
geographical location.

Package One
Package one is located in Eastbourne and comprises of four schemes:
« King's Drive, Upperton
« Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout
« Eastbourne Station Area
« Sovereign Harbour

Benefits of the proposed package include:

@ ',g'rpl;ﬁ:ig journey times and reduced delay @ Increased safety for pedestrians

/) Encoura i in th ti (et s ;
(m, ges an increase in the proportion /"
\_,./) of people travelling by bus \ﬁj’ Improved provision for cyclists

/@\ Reaching the train station becomes easier P Improved visibility and safety for all
\7) for pedestrians -7 users

Package Two o A e e
Package two covers Newhaven and Peacehaven and comprises of three
schemes:
- Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority
« Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout
« Peacehaven A259 Corridor ¢

FooHE 5
Mo

Benefits of the proposed package include:

- 5 n S
‘/:\ :g!rp;g\slgg journey times and reduced delay (k ] Increased safety for pedestrians
@ Improved visibility and safety for all users ﬁ" | Improved provision for cyclists 2 Nv

A2 Funded b .
1&% UK Gover¥1ment =) Q&
g |

BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (BSIP) BUS PRIORITY MEASURES
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL Public Consultation 2023

Welcome to the community consultation for East Sussex Bus Prority Measures proposed as part of the East Sussex County Council Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP) in Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven.

The Public Consultation Survey is open from Monday 31 July 2023 to Monday 25 September 2023

The purpose of this consultation is to:

o Provide an overview of the proposed schemes - Invite the community to provide feedback which will aid in further scheme design
b @

" and decision making

We're working to deliver a series of bus priority measures across the county

What is the Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP)?
to speed up journey times and make buses a more reliable and convenient

The Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) actively addresses the National Bus

travel option as part of the East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP). Strategy aiming to enhance bus services by collaborating with Local Transport
Authorities, bus operators, community and business voices, bus passengers, and
Proposed Bus PI'IOI'Ity Schemes Objectl\les the voluntary and health transport sector. Through the BSIP we will deliver bus
service improvements, bus stop improvements and bus priority measures.
The aim of the proposed measures is to make bus journeys quicker, more It alms for
efflaent‘and reliable. Tlilrnugh also introducing defllcated spaces f(:\r‘walkmg T Enenmerm
and cycling, we want to improve the safety, convenience and attractiveness of f\
these journeys, and help encourage more people to travel on foot, by bike, ) Reducejourney times
and use the bus. L,C‘E:g Increase bus patronage
g » . @5 Improve reliability, punctuality and accessibility
gﬂ I %&, .\6, Complement and support wider transport investment
- @ . I I
Improved Bus Reduce Encourage Complement  Create Safer  The proposed packages of schemes are in Eastbourne, Newhaven and
Reliability Congestion Greater Bus Wider Options Peacehaven and have been split into two packages of schemes, based
and Improve Use Initiatives on their geographical location.
Traffic Flow
442, Funded by s
A —
é‘*’% UK Government fim===| e

Page 138 of 151

Page 192



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

Appendix J:
Feedback Survey




Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 10f 14 East Sussex Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) - Bus
I Priority Measures Consultation Survey

Closes 25 Sep 2023 We want your views on the proposed schemes as part of the BSIP Bus Priority Measures.
W " Your views are important to us, and this public consultation is an opportunity to provide
iis service needs cookie

T feedback and comments on the latest plans to help shape the detailed design stage.
nable
You do not need to provide comment on all proposed measures and will have the choice to
skip questions when necessary.

The consultation is open from the 31st July 2023 to the 25th September 2023. You will have
until 11:59pm on 25th September to respond to the survey.

Paper copies of the brochure and survey will be available at all public consultation events.

1. Are you responding as....?

(Required)
- Aresident from within East Sussex

= Arep ive of a local ity group or resit ' association

On behalf of an educational establishment, such as a school or college
~ A business owner or representative
2 On behalf of a charity, voluntary or community sector organisation (VCS)
' Aresident from outside the county

Other, please specify below:

2. If you are responding on behalf of an organisation (business, community group,
residents’ iati al i council or any other organisation),
please tell us the name of your organisation. [mandatory, for those that selected they
arer ing on behalf of isation above]

add comments here

3. How did you find out about this consultation?
(Required)

© Postcard

7 Sacial media

7 East Sussex County Council website

© Email

O Press release

~ Word of mouth

= Other. Please specify below:

Page 140 of 151

Page 194



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

4. Thinking about your usual travel habits, on average, how often do you use the
following methods of transport when travelling in your local area? Please select one
option for each method of transport.

Fiveormore  Threetofour  Onetotwo Less
timesaweek  timesaweek  timesaweek  frequently

Never use
Bicycle fo fe fo ‘

Walking fo C - =

Using a mobility aid

such as a wheelchair C C [ (

or mobility scooter

Bus [e C ® fo 0
Train fo} ( ‘ 7

Motorbike L ( (

Private car - asa
driver

Private car - asa =
passenger =

Taxi - as a driver ( (
Taxi - as 2 passenger ( ( ( (
Van or lorry C C C

Other fo C

If other, please specify

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 20f 14 Package One
]

Package one is located in Eastbourne and comprises of four schemes:

Cl 25 Sep 2023
oses P 1. King's Drive, Upperton

€ needs cooki
2. Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout

3. Eastbourne Station Area

4. Sovereign Harbour

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 3 of 14 1. King's Drive, Upperton
A range of imp are being c d along King's Drive. These include:
Closes 25 Sep 2023

* Implementation of bus priority measures to enhance the reliability and speed of bus
services, through the introduction of a dedicated bus lane, serving Eastbourne District
General Hospital and East Sussex College Eastbourne campus.

« Asouthbound bus lane is proposed between Decoy Drive and Rodmill roundabout.

* Relocation of bus stops and improvements to bus stop infrastructure.

» Scheme Drawings

1. Do you want to answer questions on the bus priority proposal along Kings Drive,
Eastbourne? [If selecting 'no' please proceed to the continue button at the bottom of
the page. This will then take you to the next scheme.]

(Required)
2 Yes
© No

Page 141 of 151

Page 195



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

2. Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to
improve journey times, reduce delays for buses and encourage modal shift from
private car to bus along Kings Drive? [mandatory if responded yes to Question 1]

© Strongly support

O Support

O Neither support nor oppose

© Oppose

© Strongly oppose

© Don't know

3. To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the
proposal for the area?

Neither

SUOMElY g pport  supportnor  Oppose T8 Dot know

support . oppase
Implementation of ; ’ )
bus priority measures :
A suthbound bus
lane between Decoy - o o 0
Drive and Rodmill ’ : - ‘ ‘ '
roundabout

Assaciated changes
and improvements to

bus stop
infrastructure

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 4 of 14 2. Seaside Corridor and Roundabout
A range of impi are being c along Seaside Corridor and Roundabout.
Closes 25 Sep 2023 These include:

* Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions on Seaside Road to improve bus
enabled journey times.

This service needs cookie

« Shared use cycle path and cycle improvements to connect with existing routes.
* New and upgraded pedestrian crossings.
« Signal upgrades to prioritise buses.
It is anticipated that some existing parking arrangements may be affected, and a number of

trees may be impacted (for exact locations refer to our Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)).

» Scheme Drawings

1. Do you want to answer questions on the bus priority proposal along Seaside
Corridor and dab: b [If selecting 'no' please proceed to the
continue button at the bottom of the page. This will then take you to the next scheme.]

(Required)
- Yes
' No

2. Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to
improve journey times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and
improve access to Eastbourne Train Station along Seaside Corridor? [mandatory if
responded yes to Question 1]

© Strongly support

-~ Support
© Neither support nor oppose
© Oppose

© Strongly oppose

- Don't know

Page 142 of 151

Page 196



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

3. To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the
proposal for the area?

Neither

Strongly Strongly
Support  supportnor  Oppose
support e oppose

Don't know

Provision of

dedicated bus lanes . .
in bath directions on N
Seaside Road

Shared use cycle path

and cycle

improvements to C (o] (o] o] (o] (o]
connect with existing

routes

New and upgraded o o o o o o]
pedestrian crossings

Signal upgradies to
prioritise buses

¢Back || «First || Saveandcomeback later.. m

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 50f 14 3. Eastbourne Station Area
—

A range of improvements are being considered within the Eastbourne Station Area. These

Closes 25 Sep 2023 include:

* Dedicated bus lanes and shared use cycle path along Upperton Road and Station
Parade.

vice needs cook

* Junction upgrades, including improvements to the Station Parade/The Avenue junction
and bus priority signals and pedestrian crossings.

* Signalisation of the Station Parade/Southfields Road junction and improved crossing
facilities.

» Scheme Drawing

1. Do you want to answer questions on the bus priority proposal within the
Eastbourne Station Area? [If selecting 'no' please proceed to the continue button at
the bottom of the page. This will then take you to the next scheme.]

(Required)
Yes
' No

2. Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to
improve journey times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and
improve access to Eastbourne Train Station within the Eastbourne Station Area?
[mandatory if responded yes to Question 1]

© Strongly support
' Support

' Neither support nor oppose

’ Oppose

J Strongly oppose

- Don't know

Page 143 of 151

Page 197



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

3. To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the

proposal for the area?
Neither
i:m"y: Support  supportnor  Oppose i‘;::g: Don't know
N oppose

Dedicated bus lanes

and shared use cycle

path along Upperton C . s o] o}
Road and Station

Parade

Junction upgrades,
including
improvements to the
Station Parade/The
Avenue junction and
bus priority signals
and pedestrian
crossings.

Signalisation of the
Station Parade/
Southfields Road
junction and
improved crossing
facilities.

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 60f 14 4. Sovereign Harbour
—

Acrange of improvements are being considered within Sovereign Harbour. These include:

Closes 25 Sep 2023

New single lane dedicated bus corridor, which can be used in both directions through
controlled traffic signals.

vice needs cook

* Realigned shared use pedestrian and cycle route to link into the existing route along
Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay/Pacific Drive.

Proposed landscaping improvements with planting, sheltered seating areas and cycle
parking.

« Junction alteration providing bus priority at Atlantic Drive and Harbour Quay.

It is anticipated that a number of trees may be impacted (for exact locations refer to our
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs).

» Scheme Drawing

1. Do you want to answer gquestions on the bus priority proposal within Sovereign
Harbour? [If selecting 'no’ please proceed to the continue button at the bottom of the
page. This will then take you to the next scheme.]

(Required)
2 Yes

No

2. Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to
improve journey times, reduce delays for buses and improve active travel provisions
within ign Harbour? [mandatory if ded yes to Question 1]

© Strongly support
Support
Neither support nor oppose
Oppose
Strongly oppose

Don't know

Page 144 of 151

Page 198



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

3. To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the

proposal for the area?
Neither
SNl Support  supportnor  Oppose SUrOml it know
support e
oppose

New:single lane
dedicated bus

corridor, which can

be used in both C ( o [e ) o
directions through

controlled traffic

signals.

Realigned shared use
pedestrian and cycle

route to link into the

existing route along C
Atlantic Drive and

Harbour Quay/Pacific

Drive.

Proposed landscaping
improvements with
planting. sheltered
seating areas and
cycle parking.

Junction upgrades to
provide bus priority.

Back || «First || Saveand come back later.. m

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 7 of 14 Package Two
E——

Package two covers Newhaven and Peacehaven and comprises of 3 schemes:

Closes 25 Sep 2023 * Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority

This service needs

* Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout

* Peacehaven A259 Corridor

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 8.of 14 1. Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road Virtual Bus Priority
1

A range of impi are being consit d along the Town Centre Ring Road

Closes 25 Sep 2023 these include:

ervice needs cookie: * Bus priority through optimising and c inating traffic signal timings, ensuring
that buses are given priority when navigating Newhaven Ring Road.

* Enhanced pedestrian user experience and safety through traffic signal upgrades and
improvements.

» Scheme Drawing

1. Do you want to answer questions on the bus priority proposal along Newhaven
Town Centre Ring Road, Newhaven? [If selecting 'no’ please proceed to the continue
button at the bottom of the page. This will then take you to the next scheme.]

(Required)
- Yes
' No

Page 145 of 151

Page 199



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

2. Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to
improve journey times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and
improve safety for all users along Newhaven Town Centre Ring Road? [mandatory if
responded yes to Question1]

Strongly support
- Support
~ Neither support nor oppose

Oppose

Strongly oppose

Don't know

3. To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the
proposal for the area?

Neither
Support  supportnor  Oppose
oppose

Strongly
support

SUONEY it know
oppose

Virtual bus priority 0 0 ° ol

measures. ) ) ) )

Pedestrian
prioritisation and
safety improvements
through junction
signalisation.

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 9 of 14 2. Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton
— Roundabout
Closes 25 Sep 2023 Arange of i are being consi along Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and

Denton Roundabout. These include:

Replacement of the existing mini-roundabout at the A26/Drove Road junction with a
traffic signal controlled junction.

Reallocate existing road space to introduce an eastbound bus lane between the
A26/Drove Road junction and the A259 Drove Roundabout. Westbound traffic would
continue to use the westbound lane of Drove Road but accesses into/out of existing
retail areas along this section would become left in, left out only.

Bus lane on the A259 westbound approach and extending around the Denton
Roundabout and alongside The Drove to the Drove roundabout.

Eastbound bus lane between the Drove and Denton roundabouts.

Relocation of bus stops and imp to bus stop i ture.

New shared use pedestrian and cycle paths, with new and upgraded pedestrian and
cycle crossings.

Widening of southern footpath along Drove Road between McKinley Way and New
Road roundabout.

It is anticipated that a number of trees may be impacted (for exact locations refer to our
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs).

»_Scheme Drawing

1. Do you want to answer questions on the bus priority proposal along Drove Road,
Newhaven Town Area and Denton Roundabout? [If selecting 'no’ please proceed to the
continue button at the bottom of the page. This will then take you to the next scheme.]

[Required)
O Yes

© No

2. Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to
improve journey times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and
improve safety for all users along Drove Road, Newhaven Town Area and Denton

dak [ d y if ded yes to Question 1]

2 Strongly support
O Support

©' Neither support nor oppose

* Oppose

O Strongly oppose

~ Don't know

Page 146 of 151

Page 200



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

3. To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the
proposals for the area?

Neither
I I
STONBlY  Gupport  supportnor  Oppose oY

support oppase oppose

Don't know

Replacement of the

existing mini-

roundabout at the

A26/Drove Road 2} o )] o s}
junction with a tratfic

signal controlled

junction.

Reallocate existing
road space to
introduce an
eastbound bus lane
between the
A26/Drave Road
junction and the
A259 Drave
Roundabout.

A dedicated bus lane

on the A259

westbound approach

and extending around

the Denton s] o o] (o] (s} o}
Roundabout and

alongside The Drove

to the Drave

roundabout.

Easthound dedicated
bus lane between
The Drove and
Denton roundabouts.

Proposed new bus
mability hub at
Denton Corner
serving A259 and
Avis Way routed
services,

New shared use
pedestrian and cycle
paths, with new and
upgraded pedestrian
and cycle crossings

Widening of southern
footpath alang Drove
Road between
McKinley Way and
New Road
roundabout

Back « First Save and come back later.

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 10 0f 14 3. Peacehaven A259 Corridor

o A range of improvements are being considered along the Peacehaven A259 Corridor. These
Closes 25 Sep 2023 include:
This service needs » Provision of dedicated bus lanes in both directions of the A259 South Coast Road. This

enablet ) will complement the existing bus lanes along the A259 between Peacehaven, Telscombe
Cliffs and Brighton.

* Junction upgrades, including signalisation of the A259/Sutton Avenue junction with
pedestrian crossing facilities.

= Improvements to the A259/Sussex Way junction through traffic signalisation.

= Proposed new shared-use pedestrian/cycle path through The Dell Park.

New and upgraded pedestrian crossings.

Signal upgrades with bus priority at the A259 South Coast Road/ Telscombe Cliffs Way
Jjunction.

» Scheme Drawings

Page 147 of 151

Page 201



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

1. Do you want to answer questions on the bus priority proposal along the Peacehaven
A259 Corridor? [If selecting 'no' please proceed to the continue button at the bottom
of the page. This will then take you to the next scheme.]

(Required)

O Yes
© No

2. Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose suggested proposals that aim to
improve journey times, reduce delays for buses, improve active travel provisions and
improve safety for all users along the Peacehaven A259 Corridor? [mandatory if
responded yes to Question 1]

© Strongly support

O Support

O Neither support nor oppose

= Oppose

O Strongly oppose

© Don't know

3. To what extent do you support or oppose the following individual elements of the
proposal for the area?

Neither
Support  supportnor  Oppose
oppose

strongly
support

SUOMBY ot know
oppose

Provision of
dedicated bus lanes
in both directions of
the A259 South
Coast Road.

Junction upgrades,

including

signalisation of the

A259/Sutton Avenue O o} 8 0 °
junction with

pedestrian crossing

facilities.

Improvements to the

A529/Sussex Way 2 2 . =
junction through

traffic signalisation.

Proposed new

shared-use

pedestrian/cycle path C ° fo o (
through The Dell

Park.

New and upgraded
pedestrian crossings.

Signal upgrades with
bus priority at the
A259 South Coast
Road/Telscombe
Cliffs Way junction.

Back ||« Fust | sove andicome bockaer

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 11 of 14

Closes 25 Sep 2023

rvice needs co

Other

1. Do you have any further feedback on the East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures
that are being proposed?

add comments here

|

Page 202

Page 148 of 151



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 12 of 14 About You: Equalities Monitoring Form (short version)

‘We want to make sure that everyone is treated fairly and equally and that no one gets left
out. That's why we ask you these questions. Your data is important to us and we won't share
the information you provide with anyone else. Your information will only be used and

s service needs k reported anonymously to support the activity you have completed the ‘About You' survey for.
You do not have to answer these questions but by doing so you are helping to ensure our
services effectively meet the needs of all our service users. Full privacy notice: Privacy notice
= ‘About You' - East Sussex County Council

Closes 25 Sep 2023

1. What age are you?

) Prefer not to say

2. What is your gender?

- Female
- Male
Non-binary
Prefer to self-describe (please write in below)

 Prefer not to say

3. Is the gender you identify with the same as your sex registered at birth?

- Yes
No (please write in your gender identity below)

Prefer not to say

4. What is your ethnic group?

White English/Welsh/Scottish /Northern Irish/British
- White Irish
~ White Gypsy/Irish Traveller
White Roma
Any other White background (please write in below)
- Mixed White and Black Caribbean
- Mixed White and Black African
Mixed White and Asian
Any other Mixed or Multiple background (please write in below)
- Asian or Asian British Indian
- Asian or Asian British Pakistani
Asian or Asian British Bangladeshi
Asian or Asian British Chinese
~ Any other Asian background (please write in below)
- Caribbean
African background (please write in below)
Any other Black, Black British or Caribbean background (please write in below)
Arab
2 Any other ethnic group (please write in below)

Prefer not to say

Page 149 of 151

Page 203



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

5. Which of the following best describes your sexual orientation?

2 ‘Straight' / Heterosexual
-~ Gay or Lesbian
Bisexual
Prefer to self-describe (please write in below)

2 Prefer not to say

6. What is your religion or belief?

Mo religion

= Christian (including Church of England, Catholic, Protestant and all other Christian
denominations)

- Buddhist

2 Hindu
Jewish
Muslim

2 Sikh

2 Any other religion (please write in below)
Philosophical belief (please write in below)

Prefer not to say

7. Do you have any physical or mental health conditions or illnesses lasting or
expected to last 12 months or more?
2 Yes (please answer part B below)

No (go to the next question)

Prefer not to say (go to the next question)

b) Do any of your conditions or illnesses reduce your ability to carry out day-to-day
activities?

2 Yes, a lot (please answer part C below)
Yes, a little (please answer part C below)
Not at all (go to the next question)

- Prefer not to say (go to the next question)

) If 'yes', please state the condition or illness. If you have more than one please tick all
that apply. If none apply, please mark ‘Other' and write an answer in.

[ Physical Impairment

[ Sensory Impairment

) Learning Disability/Difficulty

[ Long-standing illness

O Mental Health condition

[ Neurodivergent condition

[ Other Developmental Condition
1 Other (please write in below)

O Prefer not to say

8. Please tell us your postcode:

] Prefer not to say

Thank you: this information will help us improve our services for everyone.

< Back « First Save and come back later.

Page 150 of 151

Page 204



Consultation Report: Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) — Bus Priority Measures

East Sussex BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Page 130f 14 Almost done...

You are about to submit your response. By clicking 'Submit Response' you
give us permission to analyse and include your response in our results. After
you click Submit, you will no longer be able to go back and change any of your
answers.

Closes 25 Sep 2023

Thank you for taking part in this consultation or survey. Your views are
important to us.

If you provide an email address you will be sent a receipt and a link to a PDF copy of
your response.

Email address

Back « First Submit Response

Page 151 of 151

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank



10z abed

Equality Impact Analysis Template

Equality Impact Analysis (EqlA) (or Equality Impact Assessment) aims to make services and public policy better for all
service-users and staff and supports value for money by getting council services right first time.

We use EqlAs to enable us to consider all relevant information from an Equality requirements perspective when procuring or
restructuring a service, or introducing a new policy or strategy. This analysis of impacts is then reflected in the relevant action plan
to get the best outcomes for the Council, its staff and service-users?.

EqlAs are used to analyse and assess how the Council’s work might impact differently on different groups of people?. EqlAs help
the Council to make good decisions for its service-users, staff and residents and provide evidence that those decision conform with
the Council’s obligations under the Equality Act 20103.

This template sets out the steps you need to take to complete an EqlA for your project. Guidance for sections is in the end-notes. If
you have any questions about your EqlA and/or how to complete this form, please use the contact details at the end of this form.

Title of
Project/Service/Policy*

BSIP Bus Priority Measures

Team/Department®

Major Projects & Growth

Directorate

Communities, Economy and Transport

Provide a comprehensive
description of your Project
(Service/Policy, etc.)
including its Purpose and
Scope®

East Sussex County Council submitted its Bus Service Improvement Plan (otherwise known as
BSIP) to Government in October 2021. The East Sussex BSIP actively addresses the National
Bus Strategy aiming to enhance bus services by collaborating with Local Transport Authorities,
bus operators, community and business voices, bus passengers, and the voluntary and health
transport sector. The BSIP sets out ambitious plans to improve the bus network across the
county and provide a cleaner, reliable alternative to car travel. It focusses on enhancing the bus
network within East Sussex to complement and support wider transport investment across the
country and encourage a sustainable mode shift towards bus usage.

2023

¢ Xipuaddy



80¢ abed

The bus priority measures under the capital element of the BSIP funding aim to improve bus
reliability, reduce congestion, encourage greater bus use, create safer options for active travel
and compliment wider initiatives across the county. ESCC are proposing 7 bus priority
measures and taking these to public consultation 31/7/23 — 25/9/23. The 7 bus priority schemes
are as follows:

Eastbourne

Scheme 1.1 King’s Drive

Scheme 2.1 Seaside Roundabout

Scheme 2.3 Seaside Corridor

Scheme 2.6 Sovereign Harbour

Newhaven

Scheme 3.2 virtual bus priority, Newhaven ring road

Scheme 3.4 Drove Road and Denton Corner

Peacehaven

Scheme 3.5 A259 Peacehaven Corridor

2023




60¢ abed

Initial assessment of whether your project requires an EqlA

When answering these questions, please keep in mind all legally protected equality characteristics (sex/gender, gender
reassignment, religion or belief, age, disability, ethnicity/race, sexual orientation, marriage/civil partnership, pregnancy and

maternity) of the people actually or potentially receiving and benefiting from the services or the policy.

In particular consider whether there are any potential equality related barriers that people may experience when getting to know
about, accessing or receiving the service or the policy to be introduced or changed.

Discuss the results of your Equality assessment with the Equality Lead for your department and agree whether improvements or
changes need to be made to any aspect of your Project.

Question Yes No Don’t
Know
1 | Isthere evidence of different needs, experiences, issues or priorities on the basis of the equality | Yes
characteristics (listed below) in relation to the service or policy/strategy area?
2 | Are there any proposed changes in the service/policy that may affect how services are run and/or | Yes
used or the ways the policy will impact different groups?
3 | Are there any proposed changes in the service/policy that may affect service-users/staff/residents | Yes
directly?
4 | Is there potential for, or evidence that, the service/policy may adversely affect inclusiveness or Yes
harm good relations between different groups of people?
5 | Is there any potential for, or evidence that any part of the service/aspects of the policy could have | Yes
a direct or indirect discriminatory effect on service-users/staff/residents ?
6 | Is there any stakeholder (Council staff, residents, trade unions, service-users, VCSE No
organisations) concerned about actual, potential, or perceived discrimination/unequal treatment
in the service or the Policy on the basis of the equality characteristics set out above that may lead
to taking legal action against the Council?
7 | Is there any evidence or indication of higher or lower uptake of the service by, or the impact of the | Yes
policy on, people who share the equality characteristics set out above?

If you have answered “YES” or “DON’T KNOW?” to any of the questions above, then the completion of an EqlA is necessary.

The need for an EqlA will depend on:

2023




0Tz abed

¢ How many questions you have answered “yes”, or “don’t know” to;

e The likelihood of the Council facing legal action in relation to the effects of service or the policy may have on groups sharing

protected characteristics; and

e The likelihood of adverse publicity and reputational damage for the Council.

Low risk

Medium risk

High risk

X

1. Update on previous EglAs and outcomes of previous actions (if applicable)’

What actions did you plan last time?
(List them from the previous EqlA)

What improved as aresult?
What outcomes have these actions
achieved?

What further actions do you need to
take? (add these to the Action Plan
below)

Not applicable: this is the first plan of this
sort.

2023




2. Review of information, equality analysis and potential actions

Consider the actual or potential impact of your project (service, or policy) against each of the equality characteristics.

Protected What do you know®? | What do people tell What does this mean0? What can you do'!?
characteristics | Summary of data you®? Impacts identified from data and All potential actions to:
groups under | about your service- Summary of service- feedback (actual and potential) . advance equality of
the Equality users and/or staff user and/or staff opportunity,
Act 2010 feedback . eliminate
discrimination, and
. foster good relations
East Sussex has a Will analyse feedback Passengers on the bus services in the | Actively target older
much older age profile | from consultation. proposed scheme locations are likely to | population groups during
_) compared to England be older, particularly during inter-peak | the consultation period.
& and the South East. times. Provide alternative
g 26% of the county’s means for older people
= population is aged 65 Older passengers may find it confusing | to engage with the
or over, compared to if bus stops are relocated. consultation process.
19% in England and
20% regionally. Item 5 Older passengers may be more at risk | Eastbourne Age
Aget? - Appendix 1 - Focus when using shared pedestrian/cycle Concern to host printed
on East Sussex.pdf ways. brochures and surveys.
In East Sussex 4.3% Older passengers may have safety Maintain clear
of people will be aged concerns when traveling late at night or | communication
85+, a greater in winter. There may also be concerns | throughout consultation
proportion than about anti-social behaviour on the and moving into next
England, 2.7%. busses. design stage — not just
Ranked 1st in England relying on online
for the highest platforms.
proportion of
2023 °



https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf

212 abed

population 85+, (ONS
estimate 2019) Iltem 5 -
Appendix 1 - Focus on
East Sussex.pdf

In Lewes District The
number of people aged
65 to 74 years rose by
just over 2,500 (an
increase of 23.0%),
while the number of
residents between 35
and 49 years fell by
around 2,500 (12.7%
decrease).

Older passengers will benefit from
reduced journey times and greater bus
reliability.

Older car drivers may be concerned
about the reallocation of road space on
some of the schemes and what this
might mean for them.

Young people are more likely to be
reliant on public transport, and more
likely to have concerns about fares and
bus reliability. One of the proposed
schemes serves two of the colleges in
Eastbourne. Given this, young people
will benefit greatly from quicker
journeys and improved reliability.

Improved bus provision will help
support better health outcomes for both
older and younger people.

A full safety assessment
will be carried out on all
proposed routes that are
taken through to the
next design stage.

In East Sussex, the
number of residents
who identify as
disabled is 20.3% -
Census 2021.

Will analyse feedback
from consultation.

Collectively the proposed schemes are
aimed at reducing congestion on the
roads and thus reducing vehicle
emissions. This will have great health
benefits for all but especially those with

Actively engage with
disability activist groups
and representatives
during the consultation
period to ensure their

13
Disability long-term respiratory conditions. voices are heard.
In Eastbourne over
20% of residents Those with disabilities (including Ensure that proposed
identify as disabled physical, learning disability and mental | designs are tested for
health) may have concerns about safety | accessibility and safety
2023 6



https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf

€1z abed

How life has changed
in Eastbourne: Census

2021 (ons.gov.uk)

The 2021 Census is
the latest
comprehensive data
we have on the
number of people with
a disability in the
county. Our local
projections suggest
that by 2032 there will
be over 130,000
people with a disability
in East Sussex. Iltem 5
- Appendix 1 - Focus
on East Sussex.pdf

travelling to the bus stops, at the bus
stops and while on the bus.

Improvements to bus stops, including
access, signage and live-time bus
timetables will benefit those with
disabilities to feel more confident and
reassured when travelling by bus.

Disabled passengers will benefit from
reduced journey times and greater bus
reliability.

Disabled car drivers may be concerned
about the reallocation of road space on
some of the schemes and what this
might mean for them.

Those with disabilities may be more at
risk when using shared use
pedestrian/cycle ways. Signage and
access needs to be considered.

as we move through to
the next design stage.

Gender
reassignment

0.4% of people
responding in the
Census 2021 indicated
that their gender
identity was different
from their sex
registered at birth.

Will analyse feedback
from consultation.

Transgender people will benefit from
greater bus reliability and improvements
to bus stop infrastructure. This will
improve perceived and actual safety
when using buses.

Make the safety benefits
clear when
communicating about
the bus stop proposals.

2023



https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000061/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000061/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000061/
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf

yT¢ abed

Pregnancy and
maternity1®

Lack of data.

Will analyse feedback
from consultation.

Pregnant people and those on
maternity will greatly benefit from
reduced bus journey times and
improved bus reliability — making
journeys by bus easier may in turn
reduce isolation of new parents.

Improvements to bus stops and
pedestrian crossings will make it safer
for those with pushchairs and small
children.

Make the social benefits
clear when
communicating about
the bus stop proposals.

Race
(ethnicity)1®
Including
migrants,
refugees and
asylum seekers

In the Census 2021,
88.3% identified as
'‘White British'.

No feedback received
currently.

Will analyse feedback
from consultation.

Safety for those who identify as black
and ethnic minority may have perceived
risks and actual when travelling on
public transport — including waiting for
busses and on the bus itself.

Also, possibly some issues for people
with English as an additional language,
or new arrivals to the UK (although
these numbers are relatively small - but
growing) when navigating public
transport.

Make the safety benefits
clear when
communicating about
the bus stop proposals

Religion or
belief!’

For the 2021 Census
60% of the population
in East Sussex stated
their religion was
Christian. 0.8% of the
population stated their
religion was Islam,
0.4% Buddhism and
0.3% Hinduism. 30%

No feedback received
currently.

Will analyse feedback
from consultation.

Safety concerns perceived and actual
risks of hate crime especially for more
'visible' religious minority groups (such
as Muslims and Sikhs).

Make the safety benefits
clear when
communicating about
the bus stop proposals

Actively engage with
religious groups
especially those who
have places of worship

2023




GTz abed

of the population
stated they had no
religion. ltem 5 -
Appendix 1 - Focus on
East Sussex.pdf

In 2021, 48.2% of
Lewes residents
reported having "No
religion" How life has
changed in Lewes:
Census 2021
(ons.gov.uk)

adjacent to proposed
bus priority schemes
(such as the mosque on
the A259 Peacehaven
Corridor) to ensure their
voices are heard.

52% of the county’s
population was
estimated to be female
and 48% male, similar
to the national split.
However, for those
aged 65 and over it
was estimated that
55% of the population

Will analyse feedback
from consultation.

Women are more likely to have caring
responsibilities that may require them to
make multiple short journeys or ‘chain-
journeys’ during a day, (for example to
drop children off at school, visit an
elderly parent and shop for food). This
can bounce them out of ‘usual’
commuting routes.

Seek opportunities for
women to feedback on
the proposed schemes
consultation. Offer
alternative options for
providing feedback and
be mindful of certain
times (e.g. school pick
up time) where women

Sex!8 was female and 45% Women are most likely to be the victims | are more likely to have
male. Item 5 - of sexual harassment and sexual abuse | caring responsibilities.
Appendix 1 - Focus on on public transport. Safety when
East Sussex.pdf travelling on public transport is a key Make the safety benefits

concern. clear when

In 2018 across communicating about
England men made the bus stop proposals.
slightly more journeys
by rail than women,
but women made over

2023 o



https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000063/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000063/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000063/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000063/
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf

9T¢ abed

a third more journeys
by bus than men.
Mode of travel -
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Sexual
orientation!®

15,200 residents (3.3%
of residents aged 16
years and over)
identified with an
LGB+ sexual
orientation. Within this
group, 8,260 (1.8% of
all residents aged 16
years and over)
described themselves
as gay or lesbian,
5,590 (1.2%)
described themselves
as bisexual, and 1,360
(0.3%) identified with a
different sexual
orientation. (Census
2021)

No feedback received
currently.

Will analyse feedback
from consultation.

Safety concerns perceived and actual
risks of hate crime especially for those
identifying as LGBTQ+ while travelling
on public transport.

It is not considered that
this protected
characteristic will
experience
disproportionate,
negative, neutral or
positive impact by the
report.

Marriage and
civil
partnership?

The latest data for
marital status is from
the 2021 Census.
29.1% of respondents
were single, 48.7%
were married or in a
civil partnership. 2.7%
of respondents were
separated from their
partners, 10.7% were

No feedback received
currently.

Will analyse feedback
from consultation.

It is not considered that this protected
characteristic will experience
disproportionate, negative, neutral or
positive impact by the report.

It is not considered that
this protected
characteristic will
experience
disproportionate,
negative, neutral or
positive impact by the
report.

2023

10



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/nts03-modal-comparisons#mode-by-age-and-gender
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/nts03-modal-comparisons#mode-by-age-and-gender

divorced or had been
in a civil partnership
which was dissolved.
The remaining 8.7% of
respondents were
widowed. Iltem 5 -
Appendix 1 - Focus on
East Sussex.pdf

In 2021, 21,173 people
in East Sussex
reported that they had

No feedback received
currently.

It is not considered that this protected
characteristic will experience
disproportionate, negative, neutral or

It is not considered that
this protected
characteristic will

Armed previously served in Will analyse feedback positive impact by the report. experience
Forces?! the UK armed forces from consultation. disproportionate,
(4.6% of usual negative, neutral or
T residents aged 16 positive impact by the
S years and over). report.
f) No feedback received. It is not considered that this protected It is not considered that
H characteristic will experience this protected
disproportionate, negative, neutral or characteristic will
Impacts on SR .
) positive impact by the report. experience
community ; .
cohesion? disproportionate,

negative, neutral or
positive impact by the
report.

Additional categories
(identified locally as potentially causing / worsening inequality)

Characteristic

What do you know?3?

you?4?

What do people tell

What does this mean25?

What can you do?6?

2023

11



https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf

8T¢ abed

The proposed bus priority
schemes are located in
Eastbourne, Newhaven

Rurality?’ and Peacehaven,
therefore this
characteristic is not
relevant.
In the Census 2021, No feedback received Carers have Actively engage with
Eastbourne saw the currently. responsibilities that may | carer groups and
South East's second- require them to make representatives during
largest percentage-point | Will analyse feedback multiple short journeys or | the consultation period to
rise in the proportion of from consultation. ‘chain-journeys’ during a | ensure their voices are
people who were day. This can bounce heard.
economically inactive them out of ‘usual’
because they were commuting routes.
looking after their family
or home (from 3.2% in Carers may also be
2011 to 4.3% in 2021). reliant on car travel and
be concerned about road
Carers Furthermore, Eastbourne space allocation in the
saw the South East's joint proposals.
largest percentage-point
rise in the proportion of
people (aged five years
and over) providing
between 20 and 49 hours
of weekly unpaid care
(from 1.4% in 2011 to
2.1% in 2021).How life
has changed in
Eastbourne: Census
2021 (ons.gov.uk)
2023 12



https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000061/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000061/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000061/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E07000061/

6T¢ abed

Note: Census 2021 was
undertaken during the
coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic. This may have
influenced how people
perceived and managed
their provision of unpaid
care, and therefore may
have affected how people
chose to respond.
Caution should also be
taken when making
comparisons between
2011 and 2021 because
of changes in question
wording and response
options.

Other groups that may
be differently affected
(including but not only:
homeless people,
substance users, care
leavers — see end note)?®

Assessment of overall impacts and any further recommendations?° - include assessment of cumulative impacts (where a change in
one service/policy/project may have an impact on another)

2023 13




02z abed

The public consultation period between 315t July-25" September 2023 will be key in better understanding the needs, concerns and
preferences on people living and working in Eastbourne, Newhaven and Peacehaven. At the start of the consultation survey, we have
asked people to answer a question on the mode and frequency of the transport they use each week — these responses, when brought
together with the Equality and Diversity Answers and the responses given on the proposed schemes will give us a much fuller picture of
the impact and benefits these proposals will bring. Technical consultants WSP will be using software to analyse the data and a report will
be available from Autumn 2023.

2023 14



Tz abed

3. List detailed data and/or community feedback that informed your EglA

Source and type of data (e.qg.
research, or direct engagement
(interviews), responses to
guestionnaires, etc.)

Date
Accessed

Gaps in data

Actions to fill these gaps: who else
do you need to engage with?

(add these to the Action Plan below,
with a timeframe)

State of the County 2021 Focus on
East Sussex: Appendix 1 [tem 5 -
Appendix 1 - Focus on East

Sussex.pdf

717/23

No data on sexuality

Have sourced data elsewhere

Ons Census 2021: East Sussex: East
Sussex facts and figures - E10000011

- ONS

717123

DfT Statistical data set: Mode of travel
Mode of travel - GOV.UK
(www.qgov.uk)

717/23

Chartered Institution of Highways and
Transportation: How can we make
public transport safe for women and

airls? | CIHT

717/23

2023

15



https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s37676/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Focus%20on%20East%20Sussex.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/areas/E10000011/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/areas/E10000011/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/areas/E10000011/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/nts03-modal-comparisons#mode-by-age-and-gender
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/nts03-modal-comparisons#mode-by-age-and-gender
https://www.ciht.org.uk/blogs/how-can-we-make-public-transport-safe-for-women-and-girls/
https://www.ciht.org.uk/blogs/how-can-we-make-public-transport-safe-for-women-and-girls/
https://www.ciht.org.uk/blogs/how-can-we-make-public-transport-safe-for-women-and-girls/

4. Prioritised Action Plan?3°

NB: These actions must now be transferred to service or business plans and monitored to ensure they achieve the outcomes

identified.
Impact identified and Action planned Expected outcome Measure of success Timeframe
group(s) affected
Age Actively target older A high return of completed 31 July — 25
population groups during consultation surveys from September
the consultation period. those aged 65 and over. 2023
Provide alternative
means for older people to A return of completed
engage with the consultation surveys from
o consultation process. those aged 30 and under.
Q
S Actively target younger
N population groups dynng
N the consultation period.
Disability Actively engage with A good return of completed 31 July — 25
disability activist groups consultation surveys from September
and representatives those identifying as being 2023
during the consultation disabled
period to ensure their
voices are heard.
Carers Actively target carer A good return of completed 31 July — 25
groups during the consultation surveys from September
consultation period. those identifying as carers. 2023
2023 16




gz abed

Sex

Seek opportunities for
women to feedback on
the proposed schemes
consultation. Offer
alternative options for
providing feedback and
be mindful of certain
times (e.g. school pick up
time) where women are
more likely to have caring
responsibilities.

Look more strategically
within ESCC at the
representation of
women’s needs within
transport planning and
infrastructure.

At least a 50% return of
completed consultation
surveys from women.

31 July — 25
September
2023

(Add more rows as needed)

EqlA sign-off: (for the EglA to be final an email must be sent from the relevant people agreeing it, or this section must be signed)

Staff member competing Equality Impact Analysis:

Directorate Management Team rep or Head of Service:
Equality lead:

2023

Indi Hicks
Richard Dawson
Sarah Tighe-Ford

Date: 7/7/23
Date: 21/8/23
Date: 7/7/23

17




yze abed

! The following principles, drawn from case law, explain what we must do to fulfil our duties under the Equality Act:

e Knowledge: everyone working for the Council must be aware of the Council’s duties under the Equality Act 2010 and ensure

they comply with them appropriately in their daily work.

Timeliness: the duty applies at the time of considering policy options and/or before a final decision is taken — not afterwards.

Real Consideration: the duty must be an integral, rigorous part of your decision-making process and influence the process.

Sufficient Information: you must assess what information you have and what is further needed to give proper consideration.

No delegation: the Council is responsible for ensuring that any contracted services, which are provided on its behalf need

also to comply with the same legal obligations under the Equality Act of 2010. You need, therefore, to ensure that the relevant

contracts make these obligations clear to the supplier. It is a duty that cannot be delegated.

e Review: the equality duty is a continuing duty. It applies when a policy or service is developed/agreed, and when it is
implemented and reviewed.

e Proper Record Keeping: to prove that the Council has fulfilled its legal obligations under the Equality Act you must keep
records of the process you follow and the impacts identified.

NB: Filling out this EqlA in itself does not meet the requirements of the Council’s equality duty. All the requirements above must
be fulfilled, or the EqIA (and any decision based on it) may be open to challenge. An EglA therefore can provide evidence that the
Council has taken practical steps comply with its equality duty and provide a record that to demonstrate that it has done so.

2 Our duties in the Equality Act 2010

As a public sector organisation, we have a legal duty (under the Equality Act 2010) to show that we have identified and considered
the actual and potential impact of our activities on people who share any of the legally ‘protected characteristics’ (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, and marriage and civil partnership).

This applies to policies, services (including commissioned services), and our employees. The level of detail of this consideration
will depend on the nature of your project, who it might affect, those groups’ vulnerability, and the seriousness of any potential
impacts it might have. We use this EqlA template to gather information and assess the impact of our project in these areas.

The following are the duties in the Act. You must give ‘due regard’ (pay conscious attention) to the need to:

2023 18



Gee abed

e avoid, reduce, minimise or eliminate any negative impact (if you identify unlawful discrimination, including victimisation
and harassment, you must stop the action and take advice immediately).
e promote equality of opportunity. This means the need to:
— Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by equality groups
— Take steps to meet the needs of equality groups
— Encourage equality groups to participate in public life or any other activity where participation is disproportionately low
— Consider if there is a need to treat disabled people differently, including more favourable treatment where necessary
o foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. This means:
— Tackle prejudice
— Promote understanding

3 EqlAs are always proportionate to:
e The nature of the service, or scope of the policy/strategy
The resources involved
The number of people affected
The size of the likely impact
The vulnerability of the people affected

The greater the potential adverse impact of the proposed service or policy on a protected group (e.g. disabled people), the more
thorough and demanding our process must be so that we comply with the Equality Act of 2010.

4 Title of EqlA: This should clearly explain what service / policy / strategy / change you are assessing
> Team/Department: Main team responsible for the policy, practice, service or function being assessed

6 Focus of EqlA: A member of the public should have a good understanding of the policy or service and any proposals after
reading this section. Please use plain English and write any acronyms in full first time - eg: ‘Equality Impact Analysis (EqlA)’

This section should explain what you are assessing:
¢ What are the main aims or purpose of the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function?

2023 19



Who implements, carries out or delivers the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function? Please state where this is more
than one person/team/body and where other organisations deliver under procurement or partnership arrangements.

How does it fit with other services?

Who is affected by the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function, or by how it is delivered? Who are the external and
internal service-users, groups, or communities?

What outcomes do you want to achieve, why and for whom? Eg: what do you want to provide, what changes, or
improvements, are required and what should the benefits be?

What do existing or previous reviews of the service, policy, strategy, practice, or function indicate to you?

What is the reason for the proposal, or change (financial, service scope, legal requirements, etc)? The Equality Act requires
us to make these clear.

" Previous actions: If there is no previous EqlA, or this assessment is for a new service, then simply write ‘not applicable’.

9z¢ abed

8 Data: Make sure you have enough information to inform your EglA.

What data relevant to the impact on protected groups of the policy/decision/service is available?®

What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (Eg: further research or engagement with the affected groups).
What do you already know about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each of the protected characteristics in turn. Eg:
who uses the service? Who doesn’t and why? Are there differences in outcomes? Why?

Have there been any important demographic changes or trends locally? What might they mean for the service or function?
Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any groups?

Do any equality objectives already exist? What is current performance like against them?

Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people in the community, or particular groups / communities?

9 Engagement: You must engage appropriately with those likely to be affected to fulfil the Council’s duties under the Equality Act.

2023

What do people tell you about the services, the policy or the strategy?
Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?
What information or data will you need from communities?
How should people be consulted? Consider:
(a) consult when proposals are still at a formative stage;
(b) explain what is proposed and why, to allow intelligent consideration and response;

20



/. 2z abed

(c) allow enough time for consultation;

(d) make sure what people tell you is properly considered in the final decision.
Try to consult in ways that ensure all different perspectives can be captured and considered.
Identify any gaps in who has been consulted and identify ways to address this.

10 Your EglA must get to grips fully and properly with actual and potential impacts.

The Council’s obligations under the Equality Act of 2010 do not stop you taking decisions, or introducing well needed
changes; however, they require that you take decisions and make changes conscientiously and deliberately confront the
anticipated impacts on people.

Be realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.

Be detailed and specific so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects. Instead of “the policy is likely to
disadvantage older women”, say how many or what percentage are likely to be affected, how, and to what extent.
Questions to ask when assessing impacts depend on the context. Examples:

Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?

Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?

If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?

If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims

Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so, the plan must be modified.

Does the proposal advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations? If not, could it?

O O O O O O

11 Consider all three aims of the Act: removing barriers, and also identifying positive actions to be taken.

Where you have identified impacts you must state what actions will be taken to remove, reduce or avoid any negative
impacts and maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.

Be specific and detailed and explain how far these actions are expected to address the negative impacts.

If mitigating measures are contemplated, explain clearly what the measures are, and the extent to which they can be
expected to reduce / remove the adverse effects identified.

An EglA which has attempted to airbrush the facts is an EqIA that is vulnerable to challenge.

12 Age: People of all ages

2023

21



8z abed

13 Disability: A person is disabled if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. The definition includes: sensory impairments, impairments with
fluctuating or recurring effects, progressive, organ specific, developmental, learning difficulties, mental health conditions and mental
illnesses, produced by injury to the body or brain. Persons with cancer, multiple sclerosis or HIV infection are all now deemed to be
disabled persons from the point of diagnosis. Carers of disabled people are protected within the Act by association.

14 Gender Reassignment: In the Act a transgender person is someone who proposes to, starts or has completed a process to
change his or her gender. A person does not need to be under medical supervision to be protected

15 Pregnancy and Maternity: Protection is during pregnancy and any statutory maternity leave to which the woman is entitled.

16 Race/Ethnicity: This includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality, and includes refugees and migrants, and Gypsies
and Travellers. Refugees and migrants means people whose intention is to stay in the UK for at least twelve months (excluding
visitors, short term students or tourists). This definition includes asylum seekers; voluntary and involuntary migrants; people who
are undocumented; and the children of migrants, even if they were born in the UK.

17 Religion and Belief: Religion includes any religion with a clear structure and belief system. Belief means any religious or
philosophical belief. The Act also covers lack of religion or belief.

18 Sex: Both men and women are covered under the Act.

19 Sexual Orientation: The Act protects bisexual, gay, heterosexual and leshian people

20 Marriage and Civil Partnership: Only in relation to due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination.

22 Armed Forces: The Armed Forces Act 2021 aims to help prevent service personnel, veterans and their families being

disadvantaged when accessing public services. The new duty applies to certain housing, education or healthcare functions, but it is
good practice to ensure consideration of impacts on current or former members of the armed forces, as well as their families.

2023 22



6¢¢ abed

22 Community Cohesion: potential impacts on how well people from different communities get on together. The council has a legal
duty to foster good relations between groups of people who share different protected characteristics. Some actions or policies may
have impacts — or perceived impacts — on how groups see one another or in terms of how the council’s resources are seen to be
allocated. There may also be opportunities to positively impact on good relations between groups.

23 Data: Make sure you have enough information to inform your EqgIA.

o What data relevant to the impact on protected groups of the policy/decision/service is available???

e What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (Eg: further research or engagement with the affected groups).

e What do you already know about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each of the protected characteristics in turn. Eg:
who uses the service? Who doesn’t and why? Are there differences in outcomes? Why?
Have there been any important demographic changes or trends locally? What might they mean for the service or function?
Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any groups?
Do any equality objectives already exist? What is current performance like against them?

Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people in the community, or particular groups or
communities?

24 Engagement: You must engage appropriately with those likely to be affected to fulfil the Council’s duties under the Equality Act .
What do people tell you about the services, the policy or the strategy?
Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?
What information or data will you need from communities?
How should people be consulted? Consider:
(a) consult when proposals are still at a formative stage;
(b) explain what is proposed and why, to allow intelligent consideration and response;
(c) allow enough time for consultation;
(d) make sure what people tell you is properly considered in the final decision.
e Try to consult in ways that ensure all different perspectives can be captured and considered.
o Identify any gaps in who has been consulted and identify ways to address this.

25 Your EqIA must get to grips fully and properly with actual and potential impacts.

2023 23



0geg abed

e The Council’s obligations under the Equality Act of 2010 do not stop you taking decisions, or introducing well needed
changes; however, they require that take decisions and make changes conscientiously and deliberately confront the
anticipated impacts on people.

o Be realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.

e Be detailed and specific so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects. Instead of “the policy is likely to
disadvantage older women”, say how many or what percentage are likely to be affected, how, and to what extent.

e Questions to ask when assessing impacts depend on the context. Examples:

Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?

Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?

If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?

If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims

Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so the plan must be modified.

Does the proposal advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations? If not, could it?

O O O O O O

26 Consider all three aims of the Act: removing barriers, and also identifying positive actions to be taken.
e Where you have identified impacts you must state what actions will be taken to remove, reduce or avoid any negative
impacts and maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.
e Be specific and detailed and explain how far these actions are expected to address the negative impacts.
e If mitigating measures are contemplated, explain clearly what the measures are, and the extent to which they can be
expected to reduce / remove the adverse effects identified.
e An EglA which has attempted to airbrush the facts is an EqIA that is vulnerable to challenge.

27 Rurality: deprivation is experienced differently between people living in rural and urban areas. In rural areas issues can include
isolation, access to services (eg: GPs, pharmacies, libraries, schools), low income / part-time work, infrequent public transport, high
transport costs, lack of affordable housing and higher fuel costs. Deprivation can also be more dispersed and less visible.

28 Other groups that may be differently affected: this may vary by services, but examples include: homeless people, substance
misusers, people experiencing domestic/sexual violence, looked after children or care leavers, current or former armed forces
personnel (or their families), people on the Autistic spectrum etc.

29 Assessment of overall impacts and any further recommendations

2023 24



e Make a frank and realistic assessment of the overall extent to which the negative impacts can be reduced or avoided by the
mitigating measures. Explain what positive impacts will result from the actions and how you can make the most of these.

e Countervailing considerations: These may include the reasons behind the formulation of the policy, the benefits it is
expected to deliver, budget reductions, the need to avert a graver crisis by introducing a policy now and not later, and so on.
The weight of these factors in favour of implementing the policy must then be measured against the weight of any evidence
as to the potential negative equality impacts of the policy.

e Are there any further recommendations? Is further engagement needed? Is more research or monitoring needed? Does
there need to be a change in the proposal itself?

30 Action Planning: The Council’s obligation under the Equality Act of 2010 is an ongoing duty: policies must be kept under review,
continuing to give ‘due regard’ to the duty. If an assessment of a broad proposal leads to more specific proposals, then further
equality assessment and consultation are needed.

Tz abed

2023 25



This page is intentionally left blank



gez abed

Appendix 4 — Bus Priority Measures — recommended next steps

Scheme Officer Recommendation Considerations/Comments
Kings Drive Recommended not to progress. The County Council will review the scheme in partnership with
the local bus operators and key stakeholders and explore
alternative funding sources to take this scheme forward in the
future as part of our pipeline of schemes.
Eastbourne Recommended to progress for further design work and
Station construction.
Seaside It is recommended that a balanced approach is taken to | There was a high level of opposition to the proposed bus lanes
Corridor and | redefine the design and scope of the bus priority on Seaside Corridor and Seaside Roundabout, especially with
Seaside measures along the Seaside corridor to ensure a the potential loss of on-street parking currently available to
Roundabout | refined proposal continues to support the aims of the | residents and businesses.
East Sussex BSIP.
However, significant journey time savings benefits per bus could
This should consider the deliverability and affordability of | be accrued by introducing bus priority measures on this corridor.
a revised scheme as well as local business and At present the number of bus passengers travelling in or through
residents’ views made during the consultation. the proposed scheme area on a typical weekday is
approximately 4,000 passengers. The number of bus
Given that this will require more time to develop, working | passengers who benefit from improved punctuality over the
in partnership with local bus operators and key length of bus routes travelling through the scheme area would
stakeholders, the council will need to seek approval from | be in the region of 11,300 per day.
the funding provider, the Department for Transport (DfT),
to proceed on this basis.
However, given the desire to see schemes delivered by
31 March 2025, if approval from the DfT is not
possible the scheme will not be progressed under
the current BSIP bus priority measures.
Sovereign Owing to the need to secure third party land from Depending on the outcomes of the landowner discussions or if
Harbour landowners to introduce the bus gate between the north approval from DIT is not possible given the desire to see
(Pacific Drive/Harbour Quay) and south (Atlantic Drive) schemes delivered by 31 March 2025, the Sovereign Harbour
Harbours, it is recommended that the Sovereign Harbour | scheme will not be progressed under the current BSIP bus

¥ Xipuaddy



yce abed

Scheme Officer Recommendation Considerations/Comments
bus priority proposals are revisited pending further priority measures programme and the County Council will look at
discussion with landowners and subject to approval | alternative funding sources to develop this project further in the
from the funding provider, the DfT. future as part of our pipeline of schemes.
Newhaven Recommended to progress for further design work and
Town Centre | construction.
Ring Road —
Virtual Bus
Priority
Newhaven Recommended to progress for further design work and In response to consultation feedback and the indicative cost
Drove Road | construction. estimates, the scheme will be descoped to remove the proposed
and Denton eastbound bus lane on Drove Road between Railway Road and
Roundabout Mckinlay Way.
Therefore, the Denton Corner and Denton roundabout to Drove
roundabout elements will be progressed.
A259 Recommended to progress for further design work and | In response to consultation feedback, the potential need for land
Peacehaven | construction. outside the highway boundary and the indicative cost estimates,

the scheme will be descoped with the removal of the proposed
Sutton Avenue section of bus lane meaning the retention of the
existing Sutton Avenue roundabout.

Therefore, only the Telscombe section of the scheme will be
progressed.




Agenda Iltem 6

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 15 January 2024

By: Director of Communities, Economy, and Transport

Title: Hastings and Bexhill Movement and Access Package

Purpose: To note and approve the revised Hastings and Bexhill Movement

and Access Package in line with the South East Local Enterprise
Partnership Accountability Board decisions.

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to:

(1) Note the South East Local Enterprise Partnership Accountability Board decision
to proceed with a revised delivery package for the Hastings and Bexhill
Movement and Access Package;

(2) Approve the revised package moving forward to construction in 2024/25 to be
included in the forthcoming Capital Programme for Local Transport
Improvements 2024/25; and

(3) Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer and Assistant Chief Executive, to
negotiate and agree the financial package development costs with the South
East Local Enterprise Partnership as covered in paragraphs 2.15 to 2.18 of this
report.

1 Background

1.1 In 2018, the County Council secured £9m of Local Growth Fund (LGF) monies from
the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) towards the development and delivery
of the Hastings and Bexhill Movement and Access Package (HBMAP). The integrated
package of schemes was developed to deliver cycling, walking and bus infrastructure, traffic
management and public realm improvements, aimed at supporting economic growth across
Hastings and Bexhill.

1.2 In 2022, following discussions with the County Council’'s Highways Contractor, it
became evident that the total amount of funding required to complete the design and delivery
of all schemes within the package would be significantly higher than the remaining LGF
monies available. This has primarily been driven by delays due to the Covid-19 pandemic, in
addition to high inflationary cost increases across the construction sectors, including on
elements such as materials and labour costs.

1.3 Programme delivery has therefore needed to be split into two phases with the first
phase of schemes having already been delivered between 2018/19 and 2023/24. The 2023/24
Capital Programme of Local Transport Improvements, of which the HBMAP forms an element,
was approved by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment at a decision-making
meeting on 13 March 2023. The Lead Member was advised that the work on the HBMAP
package would be paused while a full scheme review and programme assessment was
undertaken to determine which of the remaining schemes within the HBMAP could be taken
forward for final development and/or delivery.

1.4 The County Council has since undertaken a comprehensive review of the package in
line with the amount of funding available, ensuring that remaining schemes are deliverable,
still meet the original aims, value for money and benefits of the business case, and can be
delivered within the remaining LGF funding allocation.

15 The necessary approvals were sought from the SELEP Accountability Board in
September 2023 to reallocate project funding to three prioritised remaining schemes and
extend construction delivery timescales to March 2026.

Page 235



2 Supporting information

Progress to date

2.1 Since 2018, significant progress has been made in progressing each of the schemes
within the HBMAP.

2.2 The package primarily focuses on: improving traffic congestion and road safety;
supporting accessibility to public transport; improving active travel connectivity; and enhancing
the physical environment. To date, the HBMAP has successfully delivered the following
schemes across Bexhill and Hastings:

e Four new pedestrian crossings;

e Two T-junction conversions to mini roundabouts;

o Vehicle Activated Signs at a crossroads to improve road safety;

e Real Time Passenger Information infrastructure to support the bus service network in
both Bexhill and Hastings;
Accessibility improvements to 40 bus stops across Bexhill and Hastings;
Upgrade of ten bus stops along The Ridge corridor including kerbing and shelters; and
¢ Wayfinding improvements in Hastings.

2.3 As of March 2023 there were six remaining schemes within the package due to be
delivered (see Appendix 1):

Hastings Western Cycle Route

Bexhill Cycle Route A

Bexhill Cycle Route B

A259/Albert Road, Hastings

Station Approach, Hastings

Bexhill London Road Corridor Phase 2

2.4 Long term maintenance of these schemes is expected to be incorporated into the East
Sussex Highways asset management programme.

2.5 Owing to significant increases in construction costs as outlined in paragraph 1.2 of this
report the County Council commissioned transport consultants to undertake a cost review
estimate exercise to determine the total cost of constructing the remaining six schemes. The
outcome of the exercise demonstrated that a total funding amount of £11,320,000 would be
required to deliver the remainder of the HBMAP.

2.6 The costs shown at Appendix 1 for each scheme are estimated costs based on current
prices including design costs, preliminary traffic management costs, contingency or risk and
inflationary cost allowance as well as construction costs.

2.7 Consideration has been given as to whether there are options for descoping and/or
value engineering the schemes as well as exploring other available funding sources.

2.8 An Equality Impact Assessment was undertaken as part of the original business case.
This will be updated during the design and construction phases of the remaining schemes.

Consultation and Engagement

29 A thorough consultation and engagement programme was undertaken prior to
submission to the SELEP Accountability Board meeting in September 2023 to inform the
business case review. Prior to the submission of the revised business case to SELEP, officers
from Hastings Borough and Rother District Councils were briefed on 6 June 2023, with a
subsequent meeting on 18 July 2023. A County Council Transport Member panel was also

Page 236



convened on 29 June 2023 to seek feedback from all County Members on the proposed
package.

2.10 Team East Sussex (TES) in its role as the East Sussex federated local growth board
for SELEP, endorsed the revised package and business case being submitted to SELEP at
its meeting held on the 3 July 2023.

Updated business case

2.11 As part of the scheme package review, a prioritisation approach that aligns with
previous SELEP LGF business case assessment criteria has been developed focusing on:

deliverability;
affordability;

value for money; and
strategic fit.

2.12 From the prioritisation process and value for money assessment to support the
updated business case review, and engagements listed in paragraph 2.9 of this report, the
following schemes can deliver the benefits required to fulfil the objectives of the original
business case:

¢ Albert Road, Hastings

e Station Approach, Hastings and

e Bexhill Cycle Route A.

2.13 The package demonstrates that it still delivers high value for money and that the

schemes being delivered across all 4 areas of the package, will provide improvement towards:
e Increased levels of walking and cycling

Increased levels of bus patronage

Improved bus punctuality

Improvements to road safety

Improvements to congestion at key junctions

2.14 The total budget for these three schemes is £4.1m and will be funded from the
remaining available LGF monies, local development contributions and East Sussex’s Capital
Transport Programme. The revised business case includes an indicative remaining balance
of £3.3m of LGF and £541k of S106 funds, with the additional £260k overspend to be met
from match funding from the Capital Programme for Local Transport Improvements. As set
out in paragraphs 2.16 and 2.17, the exact amount of LGF budget remaining is currently under
review with SELEP and a decision is expected in January 2024.

Package Development Costs

2.15 As set out in paragraph 1.5, the proposed change of scope in the revised business
case, and extension of funding to March 2026 was approved by SELEP’s Accountability Board
in September 2023.

2.16 The Board recommended that a review needed to be undertaken to determine if there
was a compelling case for the County Council to retain LGF of up to £630,488 against the
project for schemes not proceeding to construction. The County Council have worked with
SELEP to review what can and cannot be funded within the package.

2.17 The County Council has recommended a portion of the costs of schemes that have
not proceeded can continue to be funded through this LGF budget, and a portion will be
covered by the Capital Programme for Local Transport Improvements. A final decision on the
amounts to be covered is expected at the 12 January 2024 SELEP Accountability Board
meeting.

2.18 The remaining £3.84m budget assumes that £630,488 is covered by the LGF. Any
changes to this may impact the amount of match funding required from the Capital Programme
for Local Transport Improvements.

Page 237



3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations

3.1 Since the County Council secured £9m of LGF monies from the SELEP towards the
development and delivery of the HBMAP in 2018, significant progress has been made in
progressing each of the schemes towards delivering cycling, walking, bus infrastructure, traffic
management and public realm improvements, aimed at supporting economic growth across
Hastings and Bexhill.

3.2 Due to sharp increases in costs across the construction sector because of high
inflation, the war in Ukraine and delays due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the cost to deliver the
remaining schemes now exceeds the £3.84m remaining funding.

3.3 Following a comprehensive cost estimate and business case review exercise
undertaken by transport consultants, and in consultation with key stakeholders as set out in
paragraphs 2.9 of this report, a revised scheme package was approved by the SELEP
Accountability Board in September 2023 to deliver the following remaining schemes by March
2026:

e Albert Road, Hastings

e Station Approach, Hastings and

¢ Bexhill Cycle Route A.

34 The Lead Member is therefore recommended to:

¢ Note and approve the revised HBMAP in line with the SELEP Accountability Board
decisions;

e Approve the revised package moving forward to construction in 2024/25 to be included
in the forthcoming Capital Programme for Local Transport Improvements 2024/25; and

e Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer and Assistant Chief Executive, to
negotiate and agree the financial package development costs with the SELEP as
covered in paragraphs 2.15 to 2.18 of this report.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Ellie McDaniel, Project Manager, Scheme Delivery
Email: Ellie.McDaniel@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS

Councillor Abul Azad (Bexhill North)

Councillor Charles Clark (Bexhill East)

Councillor Godfrey Daniel (Hastings Braybrooke and Castle)
Councillor Nuala Geary (Bexhill West)

Councillor lan Hollidge (Bexhill South)

Councillor Phil Scott (Hastings - Hollington and Wishing Tree)

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Capital Programme for Transport Improvements 2023/24

Page 238


mailto:Ellie.McDaniel@eastsussex.gov.uk
http://esmodgov01v/documents/s48536/Capital%20Programme%20for%20Local%20Transport%20Improvements%202023-24.pdf

Appendix 1
Appendix 1 — HBMAP Remaining Schemes

1. | A259/Albert Road Hastings Approx. £850,000

This junction improvement scheme aims to improve pedestrian connectivity between Hastings
town centre and seafront while improving road safety. It includes a new staggered crossing on
the western arm of Albert Road and a larger pedestrian crossing on Denmark Place.

The detailed design is complete, the scheme is highly deliverable, and lighting and signal
equipment has been purchased.

This scheme has been assessed as high VfM due to due to the improvements in safety for a high
volume of pedestrians.

2. | Bexhill Cycle Route A Bexhill Approx. £1,820,000

This is one of two cycle routes proposed in Bexhill and is a dependency for the wider Bexhill Cycle
Network. This route connects Collington to Worsham, linking the new north Bexhill development
and Enterprise Park to the seafront, Collington rail station, and leisure centre.

There is a risk to delivery as detailed design is still required to be completed, and the scheme
requires a cycle track order and traffic regulations order before it can be progressed. Further land
ownership negotiations and engagement with National Highways is also needed.

Due to the high construction delivery costs, it has been assessed as part of this review as
representing comparatively low benefits. The inclusion of this cycle route would ensure the overall
package fulfils the objectives of the original business case.

3. | Station Approach Hastings Approx. £1,430,000

This scheme focuses on improvements to the public realm and pedestrian connectivity from
Hastings train station to the town centre. The scheme includes widening of pavements around
the Station Approach/Havelock Road/Devonshire Road area and straightening the existing
staggered pedestrian crossing to improve usage and road safety.

Final stages of detailed design are needed to review the signals and pedestrian guard rail. This
scheme will also compliment the wider Hastings Town Centre Public Realm and Green
Connections scheme which is being developed separately which is focussed on the Havelock
Road/Harold Place corridor through the town centre to the seafront.

This scheme is highly deliverable given the stage of design. Due to the volume of pedestrians
and improvements to safety, this scheme has been assessed as providing high value for money.

4. | Bexhill Cycle Route B Bexhill Approx. £1,460,000

This is the second of the Bexhill cycle routes, connecting the seafront and Bexhill rail station to
Bexhill College and the Ravenside retail and leisure park.

There is risk to delivery as public consultation and detailed design are still required. The scheme
also requires a cycle track order and traffic regulations order which may be subject to objections
and further land ownership negotiations. Due to the high construction delivery costs, it has been
assessed as part of this review as representing comparatively low benefits. The inclusion of this
cycle route would ensure the overall package fulfils the objectives of the original business case.

Page 239



5. | Hastings Western Cycle Route Hastings Approx. £2,680,000

The cycle route runs from the western edge of Hastings, and the Coombe Valley Greenway
provided alongside the Bexhill Hastings Link Road, to Silverhill. It will provide active travel
connectivity between western residential areas of Hastings, two primary schools, a library,
community centre and major retail outlet, and Ponswood Industrial Estate. The route has a
complete detailed design and will be subject to successfully securing a cycle track order to progress
to construction.

Due to the high construction delivery costs, it has been assessed as part of this review as
representing low affordability, and low benefits comparative to cost. The inclusion of this cycle
route would ensure the overall package fulfils the objectives of the original business case.

6. | London Road Corridor Phase 2 Bexhill Approx. £3,080,000

Following on from Phase 1 which comprised the conversion of the London Road/Beeching Road
and Sackville Road/Buckhurst Place/Terminus Road junctions to roundabouts, Phase 2 includes
public realm and junction improvements on the Buckhurst Place section of the London Road
corridor. This involves the removal of the existing gyratory and improvements to the pedestrian
area outside Bexhill Town Hall.

It aligns with, although is not dependant on, Rother District Council’s wider placemaking strategy
and plan to upgrade the Town Hall and has been assessed as providing medium value for money.
There is risk to delivery due to requiring detailed design and the scheme is unaffordable within this
funding package.

Page 240




	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 11 December 2023
	4 Petition to introduce traffic calming measures including a 20mph speed limit, relevant mandatory signs and occasional radar checks to deliver safety in Southfields Road, Eastbourne
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	5 Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) - Bus Priority Measures Consultation Outcome
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	6 Hastings and Bexhill Movement and Access Package
	Appendix 1


